Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer,
Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01235 422523
E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 21 May 2018
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 30 MAY 2018 AT 6.30 PM
THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY
Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (ViceChairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request. These include
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this
agenda. Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

1

1.

Chairman's announcements

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping
matters.
2.

Apologies for absence

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.
3.

Minutes (Pages 4 - 12)

To adopt and sign as correct records the Planning Committee minutes of the
meetings held on 2 and 9 May 2018.
4.

Declarations of interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on
the agenda for this meeting.
5.

Urgent business

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the
matters urgent.
6.

Public participation

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.

Planning applications
All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working
file) and referenced by its application number. These are available to view at the
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be
reported and summarised at the meeting.

2

Summary index of applications
Site Address

Proposal

Application No

Page.

7.

Botley Centre,
West Way,
Botley, Oxford,
OX2 9LP

Variation of Conditions 2 and 4 of
P16/V0246/FUL for the inclusion of
amended plans.

P17/V3298/FUL

13 - 64

8.

Land to the
North West of
Radley

Outline planning application for up to
240 dwellings (comprising a mix of 1,
2, 3, 4 and 5 bedroom dwellings)
including affordable housing, open
space and all associated ancillary
works with all matters reserved
except access.

P17/V1894/O

65 - 106

9.

Land East of
Milton Hill,
Abingdon

Variation of condition 2 (approved
plans) of planning permission
P16/V2900/FUL

P18/V0301/FUL

107 129

10. Land at Park
Farm, East
Challow

Reserved matters application
following outline approval
P16/V0652/O (as varied by
application no. P17/V2884/FUL) for
the appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale. Development of up to 88
dwellings including 40% affordable
housing, landscaping and other
associated works with all matters
reserved with the exception of
access.

P18/V0744/RM

130 141

11. 8 Elms Road,
Botley, Oxford,
OX2 9JZ

Demolition of the existing house at 8
Elms Road and creation of nine new
apartments, as a development of the
extant permission on the site
P17/V1418/FUL.

P17/V3039/FUL

142 153

12. 7 Rimes Close,
Kingston
Bagpuize, OX13
5AL

Proposed erection of a new twobedroom dwelling adjacent to the
existing dwelling.

P18/V0447/FUL

154 167

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic

3

Agenda Item 3

Minutes
of a meeting of the

Planning Committee
held on Wednesday 2 May 2018 at 6.30 pm
in The Beacon, Portway, Wantage, OX12 9BY
Open to the public, including the press
Present:
Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman), StJohn
Dickson (in place of Chris McCarthy), Robert Hall, Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward,
Bob Johnston, Ben Mabbett and Catherine Webber
Officers: Holly Bates, Steve Culliford, Emily Hamerton, Laura Hudson, Josh Sharp, Penny
Silverwood and Stuart Walker
Number of members of the public: 6

Pl.176

Chairman's announcements

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.

Pl.177

Apologies for absence

Councillor Chris McCarthy had sent his apologies for absence; Councillor StJohn Dickson
attended as his substitute.

Pl.178

Declarations of interest

Councillor Anthony Hayward declared an interest in application P17/V1277/FUL at
Carswell Golf Course at Buckland, as he knew the applicant (minute Pl.183 refers).

Pl.179

Urgent business

None

Pl.180

Public participation

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the
meeting.

Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

Page 4

Pl.1

Pl.181

Land north of A417, east of Wantage

Councillors Jenny Hannaby and StJohn Dickson stepped down from the committee as
they were local ward councillors for this application.
The committee considered reserved matters application P17/V3248/RM for infrastructure
works, including ground levelling, an internal access road, service diversions and
landscaping on land north of the A417, east of Wantage.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Rebecca Bacon, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.
Councillor Jenny Hannaby, one of the local ward councillors, spoke in support of the
application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 The site had been allocated for housing in Part 1 of the adopted Local Plan
 There were no technical objections to this application
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/V3248/RM, subject to the
following conditions:
1.
Time limit – reserved matters
2.
Approved plans

Pl.182
Former Grove Airfield, to the west of Newlands Drive and
north of Denchworth Road, Grove
Councillors Jenny Hannaby and Ben Mabbett stepped down from the committee as they
were local ward councillors for this application.
The committee considered application P17/V3130/FUL to vary condition 7 of planning
permission P12/V0299/O to provide the development brief for the Local Centre prior to the
occupation of the 250th dwelling rather than before reserved matters adjoining the Local
Centre, on the site of the former Grove Airfield, west of Grove.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Chris Minors, on behalf of the applicant, spoke in support of the application.
Councillors Jenny Hannaby and Ben Mabbett, two of the local ward councillors, spoke in
support of the application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 the applicant was seeking additional time to prepare and consult on the
development brief for the local centre
 this application would not delay the provision of the local centre
Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

Page 5

Pl.2



the application would allow development to proceed as soon as possible

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/V3130/FUL, is granted and
condition 7 of outline consent P12/V0299/O is varied to require the submission of the local
centre development brief prior to the 250th dwelling being occupied on the site, subject to
the following conditions:
1.

All conditions on the outline consent P12/V0299/O remaining the same apart from
the amended wording for condition 7 which would read:
Prior to the occupation of the 250th dwelling on the site, a Development Brief for the
Local Centre shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The Development Brief shall include principles of:
(a) Phasing, general layout and arrangement of all the land uses within the local
centre and immediately adjoining areas including the site access 2 from
Newlands Drive;
(b) Location and site areas for the Community Hub and Extra Care Housing Site
and Health and Wellbeing Resource Centre;
(c) Urban Form and Design Principles for the public realm, built development and
civic open spaces;
(d) Access, including road hierarchy type and standard, servicing and manoeuvring
space, footpath and cycleway networks within and adjoining the Local Centre;
(e) Strategy and design principles for car parking including the provision for shared
parking for facilities;
(f) A strategy to accommodate public transport, indicating, where appropriate, bus
stops, bus laybys, bus shelters and bus turning facilities;
(g) Proposed landscape framework, including existing landscape features to be
retained and new structural planting;
(h) Details of any ground-recontouring or remodelling required within or adjoining
the local centre;
(i) Strategy for foul and surface water drainage in accordance with the site-wide
strategy;
(j) Details, quantum and location of civic open space, including pedestrianised and
sitting out areas;
(k) Programme for the provision of the community hub, other local centre facilities
and proposals for local stakeholder consultation;
(l) Details of the proposed marketing, timing and delivery of the local centre;
(m) Proposals for the management and maintenance of the public realm and
parking.
The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the approved
details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that infrastructure is delivered to meet the needs of the
development and to protect the amenity of the area in accordance with policies CP38
and CP7 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and saved policy H5 of the adopted
Local Plan 2011.

Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

Page 6

Pl.3

Pl.183

Carswell Golf Course, Buckland

Councillor Anthony Hayward declared an interest in this application and left the meeting
during its consideration.
The committee considered application P17/V1277/FUL for the development of a new
motorcycle assembly and display building at Carswell Golf Course, Buckland.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Mark Jepson, a representative of Buckland Parish Council, spoke objecting to the
application.
Gerry Lisi, the applicant, spoke in support of the application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 condition 9 would allow the council to assess details of the cessation of use and
removal of the existing business workshops to limit the operation of the business
 there was no objection from the county highways authority
The Committee supported the application subject to the addition of a condition to control
slab levels.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/V1277/FUL, subject to the
following conditions:
Compliance:
1.
Time limit
2.
Approved plans
3.
Submission of external lighting scheme.
4.
Hours of use and operation.
Details to be submitted prior to commencement:
5.
Materials
6.
Construction traffic management statement to be submitted.
7.
Landscaping details and management to be agreed.
8.
Surface and foul water drainage details to be agreed.
9.
Cessation of existing use and removal of buildings to be agreed.
10. Slab levels

The meeting closed at 7.20 pm

Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 2 May 2018

Page 7

Pl.4

Minutes
of a meeting of the

Planning Committee
held on Wednesday, 9 May 2018 at 6.30 pm
in the The Ridgeway, The Beacon, Portway,
Wantage, OX12 9BY
Open to the public, including the press
Present:
Members: Councillors Sandy Lovatt (Chairman), Janet Shelley (Vice-Chairman),
Jenny Hannaby, Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, Ben Mabbett and Catherine Webber,
St.John Dickson (in place of Robert Hall) and Julia Reynolds (in place of Chris McCarthy)
Officers: Holly Bates, Charlotte Brewerton, Emily Hamerton, Nicola Meurer and Sally
Stradling
Also present: Richard Warren, Strategic Manager and Cathy Champion, Principle
Infrastructure Officer, Oxfordshire County Council. Councillor Matthew Barber.

Pl.184

Chairman's announcements

The chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting, outlined the procedure to be followed
and advised on emergency evacuation arrangements.
Following his announcements, the chairman read out a statement concerning a complaint
from Cumnor Parish Council; in summary, in making certain remarks about back land
development in Cumnor at planning committee on 25 October 2017, the chairman stated
there was no intention to indicate a bias in his or other committee members’ approach to
planning applications.

Pl.185

Apologies for absence

Councillors Robert Hall and Chris McCarthy had submitted their apologies for absence.
Councillors St.John Dickson and Julia Reynolds attended as substitutes.

Pl.186

Minutes

RESOLVED: to approve the minutes of the committee meeting held on 18 April 2018 as a
correct record and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

Pl.187

Declarations of interest

Councillor Julia Reynolds declared that in relation to application P17/V2479/RM – King
Alfred School, East Springfield Road, Wantage, she would be stepping down for the
Vale of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Page 8

Pl.1

consideration of the item as she is the chairman of Wantage Town Council Planning
Committee and was present for the consideration of this item.

Pl.188

Urgent business

The development manager advised committee that application P18/V0301/FUL – land east
of Milton Hill, Abingdon, was deferred to allow the applicants to address objections raised.

Pl.189

Public participation

The list showing members of the public who had registered to speak was tabled at the
meeting.

Pl.190
P17/V2479/RM - King Alfred School, East Springfield Road,
Wantage
Councillors St.John Dickson and Julia Reynolds stepped down from committee and took
no part in the debate or voting for this item.
The committee considered reserved matters application P17/V2479/RM to determine the
layout, scale, appearance and landscaping for the development of 150 dwellings at King
Alfred School, East Springfield Road, Wantage.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Officer update: Wantage Town Council have raised no objections to the application; four
additional objections from residents have been received which raise matters already
addressed in the committee reports; and an extra condition is recommended for details of
the footpath link to Charlton Road to the north of the site to be submitted prior to
commencement.
Alun Bunney, Bernard Connelly and Leone Smith spoke objecting to the application.
Mike Robinson, the applicant’s agent, spoke in support of the application.
St.John Dickson, one of the local ward councillors, spoke to the application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 The total number of car parking spaces across the development exceeds policy
requirements;
 The minimum back to back distance between upper floor rear facing habitable
windows of 21 metres has been met across the scheme and it is therefore
compliant with the design guide;
 While part of open space provision for the scheme includes an attenuation pond
area, it would be useable as a recreational space outside of times of flooding (one
in thirty-year events) and therefore on balance is acceptable;
 A condition is included for lighting arrangements within the site;
 A request for native deciduous trees to be included in the landscaping scheme was
noted by officers;
Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Page 9

Pl.2




Permitted development can be restricted on the land between plot numbers 80 and
81; and
Members requested that the agent make contact with the residents of 32 Fyfield
Close with regards to boundary treatments, which was noted by officers.

A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application with the extra conditions for a
footpath link and permitted development restrictions detailed above, was declared carried
on being put to the vote.
RESOLVED: to grant planning permission for application P17/V2479/RM, subject to the
following conditions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Approved plans.
Material details to be agreed.
Boundary details to be agreed.
Traffic calming details to be agreed.
Details of play area to be agreed including boundary fencing.
Landscape details – including additional planting and replacement planting to be
agreed.
7. Sustainable drainage scheme in accordance with updated flood risk assessment to
be agreed.
8. Slab level details to be agreed.
9. Street lighting details to be agreed.
10. Parking and turning areas in accordance with plans.
11. Hours of construction work.
12. Obscure glazing to upper floor side-facing bathroom windows where necessary.
13. Details of the footpath link to Charlton Road to the north of the site to be submitted,
prior to commencement.
14. Permitted development restriction on land between plot numbers 80 and 81.

Pl.191

P18/V0301/FUL - Land east of Milton Hill, Abingdon

This application was deferred from consideration at planning committee on 9 May 2018, to
allow the applicants to address an objection that has been made.

Pl.192

P17/V1154/LB - Steventon Overbridge, High Street, Steventon

The committee considered listed building consent application P17/V1154/LB to demolish
the Grade II listed railway overbridge on the High Street, Steventon and provide a
replacement bridge.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
Officers were joined by the following, to help with any questions from committee:
 Sally Stradling, Conservation and Design Officer for Vale of White Horse District
Council;
 Richard Warren, Strategic Manager for Oxfordshire County Council; and
 Cathy Champion, Principle Infrastructure Officer, Oxfordshire County Council.

Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Page 10

Pl.3

Dr. Chris Wilding, a representative of Steventon Parish Council, spoke objecting to the
application.
Robert Green spoke objecting to the application.
The following spoke in support of the application:
 Colin Field, Town Planning Manager, Western & Wales Network Rail;
 Nick Preston, Senior Sponsor, Western Route Network Rail; and
 Alastair Byers, Consents Manager, Western Route Network Rail.
Matthew Barber, the local ward councillor, spoke objecting to the application.
In response to questions raised by the committee, the officers reported that:
 The option of lowering the tracks to enable the retention of the bridge was deemed
unsuitable due to the Environment Agency’s assessment of the site being in flood
zone 3, which is characterised as a functional flood plain. Committee were advised
that there is an option to defer the application to further explore the track lowering
and flooding mitigation.
 From a conservation perspective, bridge lifting would not be appropriate as this
could harm the integrity of the bridge structure.
 Oxfordshire County Council would work with Network Rail to ensure that the
temporary diversion to enable the demolition of the existing bridge and construction
of a new bridge would be of minimal disruption as possible and that local business
owners and residents would be involved in discussions.
Committee members were not satisfied with the evidence presented in regard to justifying
the demolition of the bridge; members requested further investigations into alternative
options, such as track lowering and associated flood mitigation before they could assess
the application fully. Members were also of the view that the applicants had not sufficiently
demonstrated the substantial impact on the railway network if speed restrictions were put
in place to allow trains to pass under the existing structure.
A motion, moved and seconded, to defer the application was declared carried on being put
to the vote.
RESOLVED: to defer application P17/V1154/LB for listed building consent for further
investigations to take place into the technical impacts of flooding as a result of track
lowering.

Pl.193
P18/V0240/LB - Beaulieu Court Cottage, Pen Lane,
Sunningwell
The committee considered application P18/V0240/LB for extensive internal and external
works and upgrading of Grade II listed Beaulieu Court Cottage, Pen Lane, Sunningwell.
Consultations, representations, policy and guidance and the site’s planning history were
detailed in the officer’s report which formed part of the agenda pack for this meeting.
A motion, moved and seconded, to approve the application was declared carried on being
put to the vote.

Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Page 11

Pl.4

RESOLVED: to grant listed building consent for application P18/V0240/LB, subject to the
following conditions:
1. Commencement within three years.
2. Development completed in accordance with approved plans.
3. Details and materials in accordance with application.

The meeting closed at 8.35 pm

Vale of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes
Wednesday, 9 May 2018

Page 12

Pl.5

Agenda Item 7
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P17/V3298/FUL
Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford, OX2
9LP
NORTH HINKSEY
Variation of Conditions 2 and 4 of
P16/V0246/FUL for the inclusion of amended
plans (as amended by drawings and information
received 19 March 2018 and 25 April 2018).
Demolition and redevelopment of existing
shopping centre and adjacent buildings (but
excluding Elms Parade) for new retail
development (Use Classes A1-A5) at ground
floor level, with development above comprising
140 residential units (C3), 123 bedroom hotel
(C1) and 261 units of academic residential
accommodation for university staff and students
(sui generis). New community building
(incorporating library) and replacement Baptist
church (D1), small flexible office space (B1).
Associated car parking and landscaping and
altered vehicular accesses from West Way,
Westminster Way and Arthray Road.
Debby Hallett
Emily Smith
Botley Development Company
Stuart Walker

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is
delegated to the head of planning subject to:
1. The completion of a deed of variation to the S106 legal agreement of
application P16/V0246/FUL.
2. The draft conditions attached at Appendix 1.
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

The application seeks to vary two of the planning conditions attached to
planning permission P16/V0246/FUL for the redevelopment of Botley centre.

1.3

The proposal seeks to vary:

This application is referred to planning committee as at the time of submission,
the council owned part of the site.

Condition 2 in relation to amending the approved layout and elevation plans;

Page 13

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Condition 4 in relation to site assembly.
1.4

A general summary of the changes proposed is as follows:
Block B – Elevational changes with minor repositioning of doors and windows,
relocation of energy store, mezzanines introduced to accommodate plant, first
floor podium reduced, glazed enclosure to hotel revised, changes to internal
layout and cycle storage.
Block C – Elevational changes, with minor repositioning of doors and windows,
relocation of energy centre, revised service arrangements, ground floor
finished floor levels revised, change to design of balconies and terraces,
changes to internal layout and student accommodation means of escape stair
revised.
Block D – Ground floor footprint reduced, elevational changes with minor
repositioning of doors and windows, change to design of balconies and
terraces, revised service arrangement, changes to internal layout to
accommodate two food stores and small storage basement introduced.
Block E – Lowering of block to remove service ramps to rear.
Block F – Elevational changes with minor repositioning of doors and windows,
revisions to internal layouts for the Baptist Church, Community Hall & Library,
introduction of bin stores, alterations to terraces, day room added and lifts
taken to third floor level to ensure roof terrace is fully accessible.
Car Parking – Alterations to access, circulation, car parking arrangements,
pedestrian links and car park accessibility. Introduction of wider landscape
buffer and improved boundary treatment to decked car park.
Public Realm – creation of two separate levels in the central street, provision
of service layby outside Block D, alterations to landscaping scheme.

1.5

Since its submission, officers have negotiated amendments, which have been
subject to the appropriate consultations. The key change in the latest
amendment has been the reintroduction of the car park ramps and provision of
automatic number plate recognition cameras in place of vehicle control
bollards. The latest ground floor layout plans are attached at Appendix 2. All
plans and supporting documentation can be viewed online at
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received to both the original plans and the
amendments is below. Full comments made can be viewed online at
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.
North Hinksey Parish Council
Amendment 2

Page 14

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

No objection, but request that the four car parking spaces in Church Way be
removed and the reinstatement of the grass verges.
Amendment 1
No objection, provided the proposed operation of the bollards was for sensible
hours and the means of operation agreed.
Original submission
No objection.
 Following further discussions between NHPC and the developers
MACE, the NHPC's Planning
Committee has decided to withdraw its objections to the application
provided the developer has locked bollards and the VWHDC agreed
suitable times (e.g. full access for emergency vehicles and only access
between 6am to 8am and after 6.00pm for delivery vehicles) for
vehicles servicing Block C from the front.
Initial objection
 Councillors noted that there were a number of proposed changes
including access arrangements and the fact that Church Way and
Arthray Road would be the main access to the upper floor of the car
park and believed that the lift between floors of the car park needed to
be bigger to meet the needs for disabled access. The committee
supported the view that 6% (not the proposed 5%) of the parking
spaces should be allocated for disabled parking. Concern was
expressed about larger vehicles delivering goods to shops in Block C
and the fact that no restrictions on delivery hours had been mentioned.
 It is clear that some of the construction traffic will use Arthray Road and
as a result there needs to be a provision for the re-instatement/repair of
any damage done to that road by the construction vehicles.
 Councillors UNANIMOUSLY AGREED to OBJECT to the planning
application on the basis of the proposed delivery route to block C
shops and asked that the other concerns were addressed.
Cumnor Parish Council
Amendment 2
No Objection.
Amendment 1
Objection.
 The area between the proposed Community Building and the main
shopping centre was supposed to be a pedestrian area. The new
plans propose to make the area a through route serving the upper car
park from Arthray Road and West Way directions plus HGV’s access
for delivering to the Co-op, Tesco and Iceland meaning that nearly all
deliveries / servicing would be carried out by vehicles passing through
Church Way, thereby creating potential safety problems. The proposed
changes set out to use Church Way and Arthray Road as the main
access to the upper floors of the car park will inevitably result in a

Page 15

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

greater amount of traffic using Arthray Road. This will impact on safety
and amenity due to unacceptable traffic volumes placed on the
residential roads for both deliveries and car park access by visitors to
the new centre. The proposals are contrary to the Core Policy 11
(Botley Central Area) of the adopted Local Plan 2031: which states that
the redevelopment will be supported provided that: ’It can be
demonstrated that proposals will not harm the character or appearance
of the local area, particularly West Way, Arthray Road, and
Westminster Way’ and ‘Proposals for the site are prepared through a
comprehensive master planning process providing an integrated
solution to site access, traffic management, air quality management,
servicing and sufficient car parking, whilst prioritising the pedestrian
customer environment.’ The internal ramps in the car park should
remain as their removal appears to be the key factor in necessitating
the proposed changes and the resulting overload on local residential
roads.
Original submission
No response received.
Residents
Amendment 2
Seven letters of objection have been received and issues raised are
summarised as follows:
 Good to see reinstatement of ramps – closure of Church Way is no
longer necessary and will cut off Elms Parade and make vehicle
access to the community building more difficult.
 There should be no parallel parking in Church Way.
 Parking spaces behind block E are not practical for use.
 The challenges of delivery access remain unresolved.
 The proposal has significantly reduced cycle parking and that provided
is unsafe for use.
 There is insufficient secure cycle storage.
 No consideration has been given to dock less bicycle parking.
 Proposed landscaping is not fit for purpose.
 The provision of steps and ramps are inconvenient – the precinct
should be level.
 No dog bins are shown.
 Public art proposals are awful.
 Development shows no commitment to sustainable forms of travel and
should be refused.
 Pedestrian area is now a through route for HGVs.
 The changes will impact Elms Rise Estate and Arthray Road – traffic
should go via West Way only.
 The location of the car park ramp is different to that previously
approved, making the route to the upper deck inconvenient.
 An independent transport assessment is required.

Page 16

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Amendment 1
37 letters of objection were received and issues raised are summarised as
follows:
 The use of bollards is not acceptable. The closure of Church Way
reduces vehicle access and will undermine the centre’s viability as
people will travel elsewhere.
 The closure will make accessing the car park awkward.
 Traffic using Arthray Road will be greater and will create an adverse
safety and amenity impact for residents of Arthray Road.
 The proposal is contrary to policy CP11 iv and v as it changes the
character of Arthray Road.
 The closure means Elms Parade can only be accessed from West Way
and is now isolated from the new development, reducing its viability.
 Internal car park ramps should be reinstated.
 Parallel parking is dangerous should be removed.
 The central area with steps and ramps is no longer accessible for all or
pedestrian prioritised and should remain as previously approved.
 The West Way left in service only access must be made two-way and
available for all traffic to use.
 Servicing arrangements will increase traffic in Church Way.
 No detailed servicing plan has been produced to prove it will work.
 The Transport Assessment incorrectly identifies Arthray Road as a high
street.
 The proposed changes to Block E should be considered in this
application.
 Swift boxes should be provided.
 Parking restrictions are required.
Original submission
15 letters of objection were received and summarised as follows:
GENERAL
 Application does not provide complete information and is selective in
the description of changes proposed.
 The cumulative impact of the changes is significant and not minor
changes to the scheme.
 The proposal is contrary to the SPD.
 No calculations have been provided to show the changes in floor space
from the approved scheme.
 No information has been provided on how the centre will operate.
 The redevelopment offers little for residents.
 Impact on residents during construction.
 Loss of existing amenities.
 The development was not designed for 3 food stores and the resultant
servicing will adversely impact the functioning of the development.
 The changes will have a damaging impact resulting from service
access and deliveries through Church Way.
 The scheme is no longer viable given the amount of student
accommodation permitted in the city.

Page 17

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018






There is no provision made for dock less cycle parking.
The Transport Assessment assumptions are too low / inconsistent.
The West Way left in service access should be changed to a two-way
access.
There is no provision for keeping the chip shop.

CAR PARK CHANGES
 The removal of the ramps will lead to more traffic flows through the
pedestrian area, Church Way and Arthray Road.
 The proposed changes are contrary to the SPD which was to reduce
traffic from Arthray Road / Church Way and access via Westminster
Way.
 Proposal will increase traffic.
 Lack of disabled spaces.
 Parallel parking spaces in Church Way are likely to lead to conflicting
traffic movements and will be a danger to pedestrians / cyclists.
 Electronic signage is of no benefit - locals will ignore them and use
other routes.
 There are no electric charging points shown.
 Lift between car park levels is too small.
BLOCK B CHANGES
 The changes result in expansion of the food store to the detriment of
the block.
 Cycle parking at 1st floor level is inconveniently located and will not be
used.
 Segregation of hotel / students.
 Accessible rooms in the hotel are too far away from entry points.
 The means of escape for students appears to imply exit is through
Block C
BLOCK C CHANGES
 There is no rationale for changes to the energy centre.
 Block C has been changed to act as a buffer between food stores.
BLOCK D CHANGES
 The ground floor level is now 30cm higher than previously approved.
 It creates food stores on the western part of the site contrary to the
SPD principle of seeking such activity to be located towards the east.
STREETSCAPE
 The levels in the main street have changed and introduce steps and
ramps which are unsuitable for users with limited mobility.
 There is a lack of convenient cycle parking in the central avenue
space.
 The proposed changes result in the loss of the communal space linking
to block F – it will now be a road.
 The proposed changes result in a loss of soft landscaping.
 The proposed landscaping prevents criss-crossing of the central street.

Page 18

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

SERVICING
 The servicing is materially different to the previous strategy.
 The proposed routing and parking of service vehicles / HGVs through
the pedestrianised area is unacceptable and will cause a highway
safety problem for pedestrians and cycle users.
 There are no dedicated service areas – all use public access areas.
 Delivery times are likely to clash with rush hour.
 There is no information on who will enforce delivery times and there is
no restriction on small van deliveries.
 Servicing for Block E is no longer pedestrian priority.
 The bus stops on Westminster Way will block service traffic if in use at
the same time.
 It will no longer be feasible to close the public square to traffic for
community events.
One letter of comment was received requesting contributions towards cycle
infrastructure improvements along the Eynsham Road / B4044.
West Way Community Concern
The summaries of the group’s responses are set out below. Their full detailed
responses are available to view online.
Amendment 2
Objection
 The principal issues in this current application relate to: cycle parking
and storage, the central boulevard, Church Way access restrictions,
delivery scheduling, and consistency of documentation.
 The revised plans do not make the required provision of 261 secure
cycle spaces for students, and should not be approved until
appropriate spaces are provided within the plans.
 The proposed plans for a lowered block E and a two-level boulevard,
with its associated landscaping, should be refused.
 The proposed access restrictions to Church Way are incoherent and
will not protect pedestrian users.
 No coherent and workable scheme for scheduling deliveries has yet
been produced by the developer.
 The draft Framework Transport Plan submitted with V0246 is no longer
compatible and needs to be resubmitted.
 The CEMP submitted to discharge the conditions on V0246 should be
included in the supporting documentation for this S73 application.
 Our objections to these features are developed in the following
document, in the context of a brief history of the evolution of this
proposal.
 The current proposals are not sustainable development and should not
be approved. We conclude that the issues arise directly from overdevelopment of the site, such that there is inadequate space and small
changes produce a material change elsewhere.

Page 19

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Amendment 1
Objection
 The removal of the ramps in the car park and closure of the secondary
access via West Way and Church Way together result in an
unacceptable level of traffic on Arthray Road. We consider that the
application to remove the ramps in the two-deck car park should be
REFUSED.
 The proposed landscaping plans should be REFUSED, and the
landscaping of the central street should remain as per the consented
plans.
 No coherent and workable scheme for scheduling deliveries has yet
been produced by the developer. There are challenging conflicts to be
resolved in order to avoid danger to school children and users of the
centre, and disturbance to residents in the centre and Arthray Road.
 The amended plans should not be treated as compliant with CP11,
item v. while a satisfactory solution is still not forthcoming.
Original submission
Objection.
 The material changes which concern us relate to:
 (i) re-configuration of Block D; (ii) re-design of main car park, to remove
the internal ramp between lower and upper decks; (iii) proposals within
the new draft deliveries and servicing strategy (TN13).
 The developer tries to present these changes as minor, while in fact
they would significantly change how the centre would operate, in terms
of vehicle access, servicing and deliveries. A new limited transport
assessment (TN12) is therefore provided with the application, and a
new draft deliveries and servicing strategy (TN13).
 In providing an amended deliveries and servicing strategy, the
developer is effectively requesting a change to one of the planning
conditions on V0246 (condition 17). No application has been made for
either amendment or discharge of that condition, but approval of the
S73 application could be pre-determining the condition.
 The overriding reason for asking for refusal is that the changes cause
increased concerns over public safety, over and above those which
were identified when the original application P16/V0246/FUL was
approved.
 The amended servicing strategy creates safety issues. This should be
revised to minimise dangerous left turns, and all deliveries by large
vehicles should avoid rush hours and school drop-off and collection
times. HGVs should not use Arthray Road during night hours.
 The changes to the car parks mean that traffic through the centre of the
site will be much greater than previously stated, changing the way in
which a key central area can be used and reducing its safety.
 There are issues relating to disability and accessibility and security
arising from bad design, which need to be addressed.

Page 20

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Councillor Debby Hallett
Amendment 2
I consider the following issues remain to be resolved:















Car and cycle parking. Car parking figures aren't internally consistent,
so it's not clear how many parking spaces are planned. It looks like
cycle parking has been cut by approx. 90 spaces, or 20% of provision.
What was previously cycle parking is now a plant room and basement
entrance to Block D. Please could we have a definitive statement of car
and cycle parking numbers and locations.
Traffic volumes. The Botley Centre SPD (and good neighbourliness
practice) put policy in place intended to minimise the impact of any new
development on residents, particularly those who live in Arthray Road.
We are concerned that the introduction of a service area in the shared
community space on the western side of the site will lead to increases
in traffic in local residential roads. There isn't agreement between the
community expert and the Mace traffic consultant on this impact.
Independent traffic consultant. I mentioned to you awhile back that I
thought an independent traffic consultant would add value to this
project, because so far, we have two views from the two experts
on each side of the issue. What have county had to say about
the traffic assessment for this application? What can council do to
increase our understanding of the traffic data and work towards
agreement and resolution?
No mention of dock less cycles. This is quickly becoming a problem
in Botley. Does this development need provision of space for them?
The parking spaces behind Elm's Parade. Are the spaces between
the back of Elm's Parade and Block E intended to be public parking
spaces? How will the servicing and rubbish collection for the Elm's
Parade shops be managed (it currently takes place from this area)?
New entrance off West Way (into Chapel Lane). I thought County
had insisted that this should be a left-in only access. The amended
plans don't address this. What is to prevent vehicles from leaving via
this access?
Accessibility: emergency vehicle access between the retail blocks
seems to be by jumping over or driving right through planters and
ruining landscaping. Is that what's planned? Is the council's equalities
officer satisfied with what's on offer for visibility impaired people, and
other disabled people? Are backless seats adequate?
The Construction Management Plan. A few things.
o I realise this is a DIS of condition and so is a separate planning
application. I'm including it here for convenience.
o The CMP has re-introduced the controversial left turn into the
construction site off West Way, when we had all agreed the
construction traffic would access the site in a safer, clockwise
direction, entering from Westminster Way and exiting (with a
banksman at the road entrance) turning right onto West Way.
o The Construction Management Plan doesn't include Block A on
the corner of West Way and Westminster Way. Is this an
oversight, or intentional?

Page 21

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

o The Construction Management Plan refers to A34 as the
Newbury bypass and a route to Salford, and that this
construction is demolishing Seacourt Tower. It was obviously
prepared by someone unfamiliar with the area and this actual
project. The plan needs careful expert attention to correct such
errors and ensure it is fit for purpose.
Amendment 1
Objection.
 My main concern is to do with the impact of the changes on the lives of
residents in Arthray Road, who have been writing to me. Mace's traffic
consultants (and Mace) try to reassure us that there will be no problem.
Local traffic experts using the same data as Mace, claim there will be a
problem. Each side has a dog in the fight and their interpretations
support their own views. Could Vale get an independent traffic
consultant to study what's proposed and estimate the effect of these
changes on traffic in Arthray Road?
 Councils' Botley Centre SPD has something to say about minimising
the effect on local residential roads. Planning decisions have been
increasingly in contradiction of the policies in the SPD.
 Can you ensure the site visit includes a visit to Arthray Road, so
members can imagine the number of HGVs, delivery vans (not only for
the shops but for the 500+ residents living there) and private vehicles
and the impact of that traffic volume on Arthray road residents.
 I think, as does West Way Concern, that the approved plans are better
for residents. The intention was to have the main traffic entering the
site via Westminster Way. Now that there is no connection between the
two parking areas, there is a reliance on the entrance off Arthray Road
for a big percentage of the traffic. That's not what was intended either
by Vale policy or the original plans.
Original submission
Objection.
 The full response is attached at Appendix 3.
Councillor Emily Smith
Amendment 2
No further response received.
Amendment 1
Objection.
 I am concerned about the loss of the ramps between the two levels of
parking and the additional car movements particularly along Arthray
Road that will result. Arthray Road is effectively a one lane road
because of parked cars along the stretch from Church Way to
Westminster Way. Adding more traffic to this residential road is not
helpful for local people driving out of Botley in the morning rush hour,
or for residents living on Arthray. This is contrary to the SPD for Botley
Centre.

Page 22

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



I am also concerned about the lack of turning space in the parking at
the front of Elms Parade. It is quite tight getting in and out of these
spaces already, so removing access from one end of the front carpark.
I have mixed feelings about the bollards across Church Way. I am
pleased there is a solution to protect pedestrians from traffic in the
mixed-use area in Church Way, but this needs to be balanced with any
increased traffic in Arthray.

Original submission
No response received.
County Councillor Judy Roberts
Amendment 2
No further response received.
Amendment 1
Objection.
 A section of Church Way has now been made into a pedestrian / cyclist
area by the introduction of raised lockable bollards. I welcome this
addition as this area is opposite the Community facilities block (F) and
also the narrowest area for school children to navigate. The closing of
Church Way will make it more difficult to park and obstruct the roadway
opposite the access point to Elms Parade where vehicles currently
park illegally to use the ATM. The main disadvantage of this addition is
that it will double the amount of traffic accessing the upper car park
from Arthray Road. This road is a residential one with resident parking
on both sides so not suitable for this level of traffic. The access times
for the various delivery routes should be stipulated at the planning
approval stage as an enforceable condition, not at the TCMP stage and
I agree with the suggested times of NHPC. I think the 8 parking bays
for Block D along the Church Way access from Arthray Road will cause
obstruction for vehicles accessing the upper car park especially as
large transit vans will be used as an
 in hours alternative for many of the units. It will make this already busy
area hazardous for cyclists and pedestrians. The proposed use of this
space for parking just shows how critically low parking provision is in
this scheme. I suggest that bike parking racks are substantially
increased(doubled) as has happened at Oxford Parkway and the
Westgate shopping area to encourage non- car use. Since the east
end of Elms Parade is no longer a through way, could the end section
be remodelled to have the same number of parking bays but a turning
circle incorporated into the design using the space shielded by the
planters.
Original submission
Objection.
 The S73 application raises concerns over public safety and the way in
which the approved development was designed to flow. Church Way
was designed as a primarily pedestrian area, but will now
accommodate a greater number of vehicles of all types including many

Page 23

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018







HGVs per day. This raises concern over public safety, especially
school children accessing Botley Primary, and also goes against the
SPD.
The change to Block D creates two new larger food stores out of the
four smaller ones that were approved. This conflicts with the SPD
where the new food stores in block D will create a high activity area at
the western end rather than the eastern end of the development. The
new Deliveries and Servicing document, TN13 is materially different
from TN4 in as much as it: a. Trebles the number of articulated lorries
through the West Way junction and
along Church Way. b. Introduces a delivery bay for such lorries on
Church Way. c. A new servicing route 3 which accesses the main
pedestrian route through the development. This would mean that the
shared space idea for Church Way is not viable and will require a
separate pedestrian route. If route 3 is approved there will have to be
restricted outside retail use hours as there should be for service route
5.
The access between the upper and lower car park decks by lift must be
of a sufficient size to take mobility vehicles and wheelchairs. Also, the
access points between Blocks B and C and Blocks C and D are very
narrow and have some steps so not suitable for DDA. Technical note
12 now expects the Car Parking spaces to be 99% full at peak times
which does indicate that there is insufficient car space available.

Oxfordshire County Council
Amendment 2
Objection.
Transport.
 The full response is attached at Appendix 4.
Amendment 1
No objection.
Transport.
 The Local Highway Authority (LHA) does not have an objection to this
application, subject to changes made in relation to service delivery and
access. These changes were requested in previous consultation
responses. If these changes are not made to the satisfaction of the
LHA, the recommendation will revert to one of ‘Objection’.
Original submission
No objection.
Transport
 While this response does not constitute a formal highway objection,
there are a number of reasons why the proposals are not considered to
be favourable or beneficial. Consequently, the highway authority is not
supportive of the application.

Page 24

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Archaeology
 There are no archaeological constraints to the variation of Conditions 2
& 4 of P16/V0246/FUL.
Highways England
Amendment 2
No further response received.
Amendment 1
No objection.
Original submission
No objection.
Drainage Engineer
Amendment 2
No further comment received.
Amendment 1
No further comment received.
Original submission
No objection, subject to conditions.
 Condition 34 of P16/0246/FUL, related to drainage of the site and the
approved FRA of Jan 2016, and should be repeated for this.
Historic England
Amendment 2
No comment.
Amendment 1
No comment.
Original submission
No comment.
Conservation Officer
Amendment 2
No objection.
 The amended plans do not alter my previous comments on the impacts
to wider heritage assets. The return to bollard-free traffic management
near to Elms Parade is not considered to be harmful to the setting of
the non-designated asset.
Amendment 1
No objection.
 The amended plans do not alter my previous comments on the impacts
to wider heritage assets. The use of bollards near to Elms Parade is
not considered to be harmful to the setting of the non-designated asset.

Page 25

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Original submission
No objection.
 There is no heritage objection to this application to vary conditions 2
and 4.
Tree Officer
Amendment 2
No further comment received.
Amendment 1
Holding objection.
 The recently submitted landscape details demonstrate that my earlier
concerns in respect of the provision of trees, based on the available
layout plan, were largely unfounded. The scheme does seek to provide
sufficient tree cover and, by and large, is designed to achieve a
proportionate and satisfactory balance between the built environment
and the provision of trees.
 These amendments to the proposed variation of conditions 2 and 4
have little bearing on the available landscape areas but I remain
concerned that the design of the southern end of Church Way does not
allow for sufficient tree planting or present a suitable species where
trees are proposed. The visual character of the development at this
location is important and was a feature in the very early presentations
of the design ethos. A tree-led scheme was championed from the
outset so it is disappointing to now see the feature planting significantly
scaled-back and effectively dominated by linear parking. It is far from a
gateway to the development yet it is likely to see an increase in usage
given the omission of the internal parking ramps.
Original submission
Holding objection.
 The proposed variation of Conditions 2 and 4 appear to be beneficial to
the provision of landscaping along the Arthray Road boundary. As an
advocate of securing as an appropriate level of mitigation planting as
possible, I am pleased that the scheme is now heading to a position
where the proposed landscape treatment along the southern boundary
could be realised. This increased optimism is tempered by the
knowledge that, despite numerous meetings and exchanges of views
with the landscape consultants in regard to the landscape scheme
across the site, the mitigation for the removal of all of the mature trees
is not close to being realised.
 Whilst there are no landscape plans submitted with this current
application, the layout appears to show a continued lack of space for
tree planting. Given that, from the outset, the applicant lauded their
intention to compensate the loss of protected trees with replacement
trees of such quantity and distinctive character that the loss would be
outweighed by the environmental gain and creation of a sustainable
landscape, I remain concerned that the availability of space for tree
planting is diminishing.

Page 26

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



I have previously sought substantial tree planting along the south end
of Church Way and have been rebuffed due to concerns with services
and footway widths. I note that parking spaces are now shown on the
layout at this location and this gives rise to concerns at both the loss of
space for landscaping and the detriment to the visual character of the
scheme at this point. The layout also shows the loss of trees within the
pedestrian areas, the relocating of landscape spaces and the
containerisation of trees that are proposed along West Way. I have
previously voiced my concerns in this regard and would advise that the
current layout has not addressed any of them. The landscaping
remains unresolved and the layout plan submitted with this application
should not pre-determine the space available for landscaping that
incorporates replacement trees.

Landscape Officer
Amendment 2
No objection, subject to further detail.
 I welcome the proposed amendment of vehicle movements so they are
restricted from the central community space as per the original
application.
 Also, the amendment to reduce the amount of parking on Church Way.
It would be our preference that there is no parking on the southern
entrance to the site, as per the original scheme.
 There are a number of detailed issues which need addressing and
clarified and I submitted comments on these under the P18/V0120/DIS
application. However, I note that many of these issues and comments
have not been addressed in the revised information submitted as part
of this application.
Amendment 1
Holding objection.
 The proposed restriction of vehicles into the central community space
between the community building and the main shopping street
addresses my main issue of concern about the usage of the site.
 I have commented on the details of the site under application
P18/V0120/DIS. However, I note the restriction of vehicle movements
through the centre of the site will mean that signage will be required to
direct cars to the car park accessed from Church Way from the
Westminster way/ Arthray Road route and therefore the proposed
signage plan does not seem to address the different routes required to
access the upper or lower floors of the carpark now that they are not
linked.
 I also note the proposed parking along the Church Way entrance from
Arthray Road changes the character of this entrance, reducing the
number of tree proposed at this location and reduces the attractiveness
of this entrance.
Original submission
No response received.

Page 27

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Natural England
Amendment 2
No comment.
Amendment 1
No comment.
Original submission
No comment.
Countryside Officer
Amendment 2
No comment.
Amendment 1
No comment.
Original submission
No objection.
 The proposed variations do not give rise to any additional ecological
impacts and I have no comments.
Health & Housing Food Safety
Amendment 2
No objection.
Amendment 1
No new comment.
Original submission
Comments on requirement for compliance with food safety legislation.
Health & Housing Contaminated Land
Amendment 2
No objection.
Amendment 1
No objection.
Original submission
No objection.
Health & Housing Air Quality
Amendment 2
No further response received.
Amendment 1
No objection.

Page 28

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



It would be helpful if additional information could be provided to
indicate that air quality impacts from the relocation of the energy centre
have been considered and if there are any such impacts that have
been mitigated where necessary.

Original submission
No comment.
Health & Housing Protection team
Amendment 2
No objection.
Amendment 1
No objection.
Original submission
No objection.
Equalities Officer
Amendment 2
Holding objection.
 Feathered steps and slope – I am still very concerned about the design
as although the slope is wide, having the feathered steps either side
feels very unsafe for the user. We would be adding a barrier and trip
hazard for wheelchair users and visually impaired people that doesn’t
exist in the current centre. Which as we are building from new doesn’t
feel acceptable. It is so close to being considered a ramp i.e. a gradient
of 1:20 would be a ramp that requires a resting place at 10 metres, with
handrails. There is also the margin of error danger due to 1:21 being so
close.
 I suggest further discussions with the landscape architect to look at
options that would make the use of the slope safer for wheelchair user
and visually impaired people.
 If any element of the steps must be kept. I would recommend colour
contrasting between the steps and the slope to help people with visual
impairments identify the level changes /avoid trip hazards.
Amendment 1
No response received.
Original submission
Holding objection.
 Accessible parking not in accordance with Part M (lower deck).
 Lack of accessible spaces.
 Query size of lift – is it big enough for mobility scooters?
Waste Management Team
Amendment 2
No comments.

Page 29

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Amendment 1
No new comment.
Original submission
No objection.
 No comments regarding changes because the developer will be
arranging a private waste collection from this site as previously agreed.
National Planning Casework Service
Amendment 2
No further response received.
Amendment 1
No comment.
Original submission
No response received.
3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
The site is large and covers many planning units. As such the history of the
site is extensive but mainly involves retail and service related developments,
and adverts. The most relevant applications in relation to this application are:
P17/V1507/FUL - Approved (05/10/2017)
Temporary planning consent for a period of 3 years for the change of use,
relocation and addition of units at Botley Local Centre. Works also include
alterations to access and egress arrangements, provision of 43 (39 plus 4
disabled) car parking spaces, partial demolition of Grant Thornton House and
Seacourt Hall and installation of a portacabin (A1 use) (as amended by plans
and information received 21 July 2017). As amended by plans and information
received 4 September 2017.
P16/V0246/FUL - Approved (16/09/2016)
Demolition and redevelopment of existing shopping centre and adjacent
buildings (but excluding Elms Parade) for new retail development (Use Classes
A1-A5) at ground floor level, with development above comprising 140
residential units (C3), 123 bedroom hotel (C1) and 261 units of academic
residential accommodation for university staff and students (sui generis). New
community building (incorporating library) and replacement Baptist church (D1),
small flexible office space (B1). Associated car parking and landscaping and
altered vehicular accesses from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray
Road (as amended by drawings and information accompanying agents letter
dated 10 May 2016)

3.2

Pre-application History
None.

3.3

Screening Opinion requests
None.

Page 30

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

4.2

The addendum confirms that the key development components of the project
remain unchanged from a EIA perspective. The only assessments in the
original ES that have the potential to be materially affected by this application is
the landscape and visual assessment chapter and the transport chapter.
These chapters of the ES and the relevant part of the Non-Technical Summary
have therefore been updated to reflect the changes to the plans. All other
chapters remain unchanged.

4.3

The landscape and visual assessment confirms the inherent design mitigation
approach remains unchanged and that the proposed elevational changes do
not result in any change in the assessment.

4.4

The transport chapter confirms the overall traffic impact during operation
remains negligible.

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES

5.2

The principle of varying conditions

A section 73 application is considered a new application for planning
permission under the 2017 Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations.
The 2016 application was EIA development and the applicant has provided an
addendum to the Environmental Statement (ES) submitted with that
application.

The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application
are:
1. The principle of varying conditions
2. Condition 2
3. Design
a. Changes to buildings
b. Height, scale and massing
c. Public space and streets
4. Landscape and visual impact
5. Landscaping and trees
6. Residential amenity
7. Heritage assets
8. Traffic, parking and highway safety
a. Traffic generation
b. Access
c. Car parking
d. Cycle parking
e. Servicing and deliveries
9. Condition 4
10. Other technical matters

When planning permission is granted, development must take place in
accordance with the permission and conditions attached to it, and with any
associated legal agreements. New issues may arise after planning permission
has been granted, which require modification of the approved proposals, and
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application

Page 31

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

can be made to vary or remove conditions associated with a planning
permission. One of the uses of a section 73 application is to seek a minor
material amendment, where there is a relevant condition that can be varied.
5.3

Condition 2
This condition agreed drawings / plans by which the development would be
implemented. Following more detailed work for construction, it is proposed to
revise the drawings to align them with this more recent work. The changes are
assessed below.

5.4

Design
Changes to buildings
The elevational and internal layout changes to the buildings are acceptable.
However, further detail is required on the appearance of the energy centre
external flue in Block C. This can be secured by condition.

5.5

Height scale and massing
The height, scale and massing of the development remains largely unchanged.
There is a slight increase in height of block F resulting from taking the lift to the
third floor. This is acceptable.

5.6

Public space and streets
The layout form remains as previously approved.

5.7

Overall the changes in terms of design are acceptable. The proposed
development is in accordance with the development framework strategy of the
adopted Botley SPD, relevant principles of the design guide and policy CP37 of
the adopted local plan.

5.8

Landscape and visual impact
A landscape and visual impact assessment was produced as part of the ES
which assessed a range of viewpoints to examine the effects of the
development on the landscape and visual amenities. The assessment
concludes that whilst there would be some effects arising in the construction
stage and early years post completion, overall the development would not have
a significant landscape or visual impact.

5.9

The changes sought under this application are not considered to materially
alter this conclusion and consequently officers consider the changes are
acceptable in terms of visual impact on the wider landscape and the setting of
Oxford.

5.10

Landscaping and trees
The landscaping scheme proposed for the development has changed due to
the proposed changes to the blocks. Whilst details are to be approved by
condition, officers requested inclusion of the proposed landscaping concept
with this application to allow wider public consideration.

Page 32

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.11

The proposal involves two key changes; a) the creation of an increased
landscape buffer along the Southern edge of the site which also allows light
and ventilation into the lower level of the car park; and b) the provision of a split
level central avenue.

5.12

The changes to the southern boundary are acceptable. However, much local
concern has been raised over the two levels in the central avenue, particularly
from the introduction of ramps and steps.

5.13

The proposal has been assessed by the equality officer and landscape officer.
Whilst the concept of steps and ramps is acceptable to officers, further
revisions are required to ensure the public realm remains accessible for all. In
addition, minor revisions are required to tree and plant species, tree pit details,
street furniture and hard landscape features. Officers are content these
matters can be resolved through the discharge of condition application
P18/V0120/DIS which remains undetermined, pending the outcome of this S73
application.

5.14

Residential amenity
The proposed changes would not have any material harmful impact in terms of
light pollution, general noise and disturbance, or loss of privacy to properties in
both Arthray Road and West Way that adjoin the site, especially given existing
day to day commercial activities that occur in the locality. Servicing and
delivery arrangements is addressed elsewhere in this report. Overall, officers
consider the proposal is acceptable in amenity terms and accords with policy
DC9 and the NPPF.

5.15

Heritage assets
The setting of heritage assets within Oxford City has been addressed
elsewhere in this report. The site and surrounding area are not within a
conservation area and there are no listed buildings on site or in the immediate
vicinity. There is also no evidence that features that are demonstrably of
equivalent importance to a schedule ancient monument are present within the
application area.

5.16

The Elms Parade is considered as a non-designated heritage asset meriting
consideration in planning decisions. In terms of its setting, the conservation
officer raises no objection. It is therefore considered the proposal is acceptable
and accords with policy CP39 and the NPPF.

5.17

Traffic, parking and highway safety
Traffic generation
The scale of development and associated traffic generation is not significantly
different from that originally consented. Officers consider any impact to be
negligible in this context.

5.18

Access
The proposed points of access remain as approved. The site will be accessed
from West Way, Westminster Way and Arthray Road. It is proposed to stop up

Page 33

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

the existing Westminster Way access and create two new junctions to provide
access to car parks. The existing accesses from Arthray Road and West Way
will remain with the addition of a left in, in only, junction on West Way for
service vehicles.
5.19

Concern has been raised over the lack of a second exit for vehicles from the
car park to the front of Elms Parade and there is local support to change the
left in, in only, service vehicle access to a two-way junction. The highway
authority however has been very explicit in requiring that the eastern end of the
Elms Parade car parking to be physically and permanently closed off to prevent
the incorrect and unauthorised use of the ‘service vehicle only’ access point by
other vehicles, to the extent they raise an objection to the proposal on this point
as the submitted plans do not show the detail on how the service access will be
restricted.

5.20

The original application required these details to be agreed by condition in
consultation with the highway authority. Officers therefore consider this matter
is no different to that considered under the original application and the original
condition can be re-imposed. The use of the condition therefore overcomes the
highway authority’s objection.

5.21

Car parking
Concern has been raised that the revised car parking provision is inadequate to
meet the needs of the development. The permitted scheme included a total of
321 parking spaces across the site. The current proposal is for 322 parking
spaces across the site as follows:
Elms Parade – Front
Elms Parade – Rear
Block A
Decked car park – lower
Decked car park – upper
Decked car park – total
Community area
Church Way
Total

Approved
40
21
34
97
94
191
33
321

Proposed
38
29
34
86
98
184
33
4
322

The revisions to the decked car park will provide seven less spaces than
previously approved. To compensate, four new spaces are provided in Church
Way and the parking provision to the rear of Elms Parade has been increased
by eight spaces through reconfiguring the space and by the lowering the floor
level of Block E.
5.22

As previously approved, 5% will be accessible spaces and electric charging
points will be provided at various locations throughout the site. Similarly, there
is no change to the previous proposal of parking provision being unallocated
across the site. A car park management plan is proposed and can be secured
by condition.

Page 34

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.23

The ramps in the car park have now been reinstated and it is anticipated traffic
movements will be no different to that anticipated in the approved application.
Further concern has been raised over the ramps location away their position on
the approved scheme. The highway authority raises no objection to their
revised location within the car park.

5.24

Concern has been expressed by locals, North Hinksey Parish Council, the tree
officer and landscape officer that the provision of the four spaces in Church
Way adversely impact on the proposed landscaping scheme and introduce
conflicting traffic movements. Officers consider the removal of these spaces
would not materially harm the parking provision across the site, but would
improve the public realm and streetscape of the proposal. A view has been
sought from the highway authority and an update will be given at the meeting.

5.25

Cycle parking
A total of 525 cycle spaces, made up of 1/unit for the student and residential
use (401) and 124 public spaces will be provided. Despite local concern,
officers consider the proposed development provides sufficient cycle parking
on site to meet the needs of public users and student residents. In relation to
dock less cycles, officers consider any issues arising from bikes being
discarded can be controlled by the landowner as the centre will remain private
land.

5.26

Servicing & deliveries
Much concern has been raised over service vehicle / HGV access through
Church Way, and the provision of a service bay adjacent to block D. Concern
is also raised that these changes are contrary to the adopted Botley SPD which
seeks to direct service traffic away from public areas and minimising vehicle
movements on residential streets.

5.27

The highway authority confirms the proposals for servicing are not considered
to be well devised and is not supportive of the proposals. However, the
highway authority does not object to the proposed service arrangements and
officers are mindful servicing arrangements are not significantly different to that
considered and agreed as part of the original application.

5.28

In the original application, service vehicle access through Church Way was
accepted as part of the approved scheme. Vehicles servicing Blocks C and D
were to use the car park to the rear, but they would have accessed the car park
via Church Way. Vehicles servicing Blocks A and B were proposed to drive
through the site along Church Way, along Arthray Road and then back up
Westminster Way.

5.29

The key change is the formation of a dedicated service bay in Church Way and
the inference service vehicle activity will be more intense through HGV use
servicing the two food stores in Block D, in turn leading to conflict with
pedestrians and other users of the centre.

5.30

The applicant’s servicing and delivery technical note confirms the main part of
the centre would operate on a shared surface area basis, but to minimise

Page 35

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

conflict it will be necessary for restricted servicing hours to be in operation. In
addition, officers have sought through amendment to restrict car park access
through Church Way to reduce the level of vehicle activity during the day to
service vehicles only.
5.31

In the absence of a formal objection from the highway authority, officers
consider on balance that the proposed servicing and delivery arrangements are
acceptable, subject to further details on how it will operate. These can be
secured by condition and a similar condition for a management plan for
servicing and delivery was imposed on the original permission.

5.32

Overall, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of its
implications for traffic, parking and highway safety. The application therefore
accords with the expectations of policies CP33, CP35 and DC5 of the adopted
local plan and the NPPF.

5.33

Condition 4
This condition sought a confirmatory deed to bind all legal and equitable
interests for each respective phase by the obligations covenants and
undertakings secured under the Section 106 Agreement. It was imposed at the
time as the applicant did not have complete ownership of the application site.

5.34

The applicant initially sought to vary the phasing plans for this condition, but as
they now have taken ownership of the site, condition 4 and the relevant clauses
of the s106 are no longer necessary. It is therefore suggested that condition
4 is removed from the new planning permission and the s106 agreement is
amended accordingly through a deed of variation. This is considered
acceptable.

5.35

Other technical matters
Technical matters of retail impact, affordable housing, viability, flood risk,
drainage, ecology & biodiversity, air quality, noise & vibration and contaminated
land were assessed in detail on the previous application and were considered
acceptable (subject to relevant conditions). Officers consider the changes to
the plans under this application do not result in any material change to these
matters to warrant refusal on such grounds, subject to relevant conditions
being imposed (see appendix 1).

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION

6.2

The application has been assessed against relevant policies in the adopted
development plan, adopted SPD, National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and Planning Practice Guidance (PPG) and all other material planning
considerations. In considering the application, due regard has been given to the
representations received from statutory and other consultees and residents.
These have been taken in to account in assessing the overall scheme.

The application has been assessed against relevant policies in the adopted
local plan, the NPPF, PPG, adopted SPD and all other material planning
considerations.

Page 36

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

6.3

The application site is identified in the adopted Local Plan as a town centre
redevelopment site. The changes to the conditions sought will aid delivery of
the site and are considered acceptable. There are no technical concerns with
the application, subject to the recommended conditions and the ES addendum
is considered robust and fit for purpose in assessing the proposal.

6.4

Overall, the proposed development amounts to sustainable development and
should be approved.

The following planning policies have been taken in to account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 1 policies:
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03 - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04 - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP07 - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP08 - Spatial Strategy for Abingdon on Thames & Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP11 - Botley Central Area
CP22 - Housing Mix
CP23 - Housing Density
CP24 - Affordable Housing
CP26 - Accommodating Current and Future Needs of the Ageing Population
CP31 - Development to Support the Visitor Economy
CP32 - Retail Development and other Main Town Centre Uses
CP33 - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36 - Electronic communications
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38 - Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39 - The Historic Environment
CP40 - Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42 - Flood Risk
CP43 - Natural Resources
CP44 - Landscape
CP45 - Green Infrastructure
CP46 - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 policies:
DC3 - Design against crime
DC4 - Public Art
DC5 - Access
DC6 - Landscaping
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10 - The Effect of Neighbouring Uses or Previous Uses on New
Development
DC12 - Water Quality and Resources
DC20 - External Lighting
TR5 - National Cycle Network

Page 37

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

HE1 - Preservation and Enhancement: Implications for Development
HE9 - Archaeology
HE10 - Archaeology
HE11 - Archaeology
CF1 - Protection of Existing Services and Facilities
CF2 - Provision of New Community Services and Facilities
S12 - Policies for Local Shopping Centres
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 part 2:
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been
subject to public consultation, and will likely be examined in the Summer. Until
examination, this Local Plan remains at an early stage of preparation and
accordingly its policies have limited weight at present. Notwithstanding, the
following policies are material to the consideration of this application:
DP8 - Community Services and Facilities
DP11 - Community Employment Plans
DP16 - Access
DP17 - Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP18 - Public Car Parking in Settlements
DP20 - Public Art
DP21 - External Lighting
DP23 - Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 - Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 - Noise Pollution
DP26 - Air Quality
DP27 - Land Affected By Contamination
DP28 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DP36 - Heritage Assets
DP39 - Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments
Neighbourhood Plan
A neighbourhood plan area was designated 19 June 2015 and includes the
application site. Although the neighbourhood plan is developing, it has not been
submitted to the Council for Examination. Consequently, very limited weight
can be given to any policies that may be emerging in the draft neighbourhood
plan.
Adopted guidance
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
Botley Centre SPD – January 2016
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Other Relevant Legislation
 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act) 1990
 Community & Infrastructure Levy Legislation
 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010

Page 38

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018







Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006
The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
Localism Act (including New Homes Bonus)

Officer:
Contact number:
Email:

Stuart Walker
01235 422600
stuart.walker@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 39

Appendix 1

No
1

Draft Conditions
TL1 - Time limit - Full Application (Full)
The development to which this permission relates shall be
begun no later than 16 September 2019.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the
Town & Country Planning Act, 1990.

2

Approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved plans listed below:
DRAWING LIST
Except as controlled or modified by conditions of this
permission and in accordance with the following documents:
·
The Environmental Statement and Environmental
Statement addendums
·

Planning Statement and addendum

·

Design and Access Statement and addendum

·
Transport Assessment, addendum and technical notes 1 4, 13 & 16
·

Student Management plan update

·

Retail Impact Assessment

·

Landscape Statement and addendum

·

Tree Survey

·

Phase II Geotechnical Assessment.

Reason: To define the relevant approved plans and
documentation.
3

Environmental Statement
The development, hereby permitted, shall be carried out in
accordance with the mitigation measures as set out in the
Environmental Statement, dated January 2016, addendums and
supplementary documents and strategies. Wherever in these
conditions the local planning authority is given power to approve
a variation to those mitigation measures imposed by that
condition it shall only do so if it is satisfied that the relevant
variation would not have significant environmental effects other

Page 40

than those assessed in the Environmental Statement and its
addendum.
Reason: To ensure that the development takes place in
accordance with the principles and parameters contained within
the Environmental Statement.
4

legal agreement
No longer required - Omitted

5

Schedule and sample materials
Before development above slab level within any phase or subphase begins, samples and details of the materials to be used in
the construction of all external surfaces of the development for
that phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority (including sample reference panels
erected on site). Development shall be carried out only in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of visual appearance and to ensure a
high-quality development is achieved in accordance with policy
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

6

Building Details
Before development above slab level within any phase or subphase begins, full details of the design, materials and finish of all
windows, window sills and lintels, external doors and rainwater
goods and the treatment of all verges and eaves of the new
building(s) within that phase shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be built in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure the new
development is built to a high quality in accordance with policy
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

7

Shop front and fascia details
Before development above slab level within any phase or subphase begins, full details of the design, materials and finish of all
shop fronts and fascia details of all retail units within that phase
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be built in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure the new
development is built to a high quality in accordance with policy
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

Page 41

8

Hard and soft landscaping scheme for the site
Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved drawings,
prior to the commencement of development above slab level, full
details of both hard and soft landscaping works shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. These details shall include: existing trees and other
landscape features to be retained; soft landscaping details
including a planting plan, specification (including cultivation and
other operations associated with plant and grass establishment),
schedules of plants, noting species, planting sizes and proposed
numbers / densities where appropriate; details of construction
methods in the vicinity of retained trees; details of pit design for
tree planting within streets or areas of hard landscaping;
existing and proposed levels comprising spot heights, gradients
and contours, grading, ground modelling and earth works; hard
landscaping materials; locations and specifications for street
furniture and minor artefacts including signs, seats bollards,
cycle racks, bus shelters, lighting columns, planters, refuse
bins, play areas and equipment; existing and proposed services
above and below ground; boundary treatments and means of
enclosure including particulars of height, materials, brick bonds
and fencing styles; and a timetable for works in relation to the
development of the site. All hard and soft landscaping shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved scheme prior to
the development being brought into use for that phase or subphase to which it relates, or the first planting season following
that phase.
Reason: To ensure the implementation of appropriate
landscaping which will improve the environmental quality of the
development in accordance with policies CP37 and DC6 of the
Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

9

Landscaping scheme for roof gardens and green roof
Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved drawings,
prior to the commencement of development above slab level, full
details of both hard and soft landscaping works of the roof
gardens and green roofs shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of visual appearance and to ensure a
high-quality development is achieved in accordance with
policies CP37 and DC6 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

10

Landscape management plan

Page 42

No development above slab level shall commence until a
landscape operational management plan for a period of 25 years
from the date of implementation of the landscaping scheme has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme shall include long term design
objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance
schedules for the landscaped areas. The landscaping shall be
managed in accordance with the approved plan, and shall only
be varied following prior written agreement with the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To help integrate the development into its surroundings
and enable high quality design in accordance with policies CP37
and DC6 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.
11

Slab Levels
The development shall be constructed in accordance with the
proposed slab, finished floor and roof levels of the buildings in
relation to existing and proposed levels of the site and the
surrounding land and buildings as detailed on the approved
drawings.
Reason: To help integrate the development into its surroundings
and enable high quality design in accordance with policies CP37
and DC6 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011.

12

Construction Environmental Management Plan
No development shall commence on any phase of development
until a site wide Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority in consultation with Highways England
and the Highway Authority. The CEMP shall include:
a) Proposed earthworks and the raising of land levels (if
required);
b) Construction vehicles to use the A420 and A34 only, and not
Cumnor Hill, Westminster Way (other than the section between
West Way and the site) or Eynsham Road for site access and
egress.
c) Contractor's access arrangements for vehicles, plant and
personnel including the location of construction traffic routes to
and from the site, details of their signing, monitoring and
enforcement measures;
d) Details of haul routes to the site from the national highway
network, including details of number of vehicles;

Page 43

e) A plan specifying the area and siting of land to be provided for
parking, turning, loading and unloading of all vehicles visiting
the relevant parts of the site and siting of the contractor’s
compound during the construction period to be agreed on a
phased basis;
f) Collection and delivery times for construction purposes;
g) Dust management and wheel washing or other suitable
mitigation measures such as lorry sheeting, including the
consideration of construction / engineering related emissions to
air, to include dust and particulate monitoring and review and
the use of low emissions vehicles and plant / equipment;
h) Noise and vibration (including piling) impact / prediction
assessment, monitoring and recording protocols / statements
and consideration of mitigation measures in accordance with the
provisions of BS5228 (2009): Code of practice for noise and
vibration control on construction and open site - Part 1 and 2 (or
as superseded);
i) Where relevant results of a noise assessment of the potential
impact of construction noise on the proposed residential
properties on the adjacent site and details of suitable mitigation
measures as appropriate (in accordance with relevant standards
and best practice);
j) Full details of mitigation measures to be employed to protect
species from adverse impacts for each phase of the
development (where appropriate);
k) Details of best practice measures to be applied to prevent
contamination of the water environment during construction;
l) Measures for soil handling (where appropriate), including
appropriate storage and re-use of higher value soil resources
displaced during construction within gardens, parks and
recreational grounds and disposal of any surplus soils in a
sustainable manner in accordance with the Construction Code of
Practice for the Sustainable Use of Soils on Constructions Sites
(DEFRA 2009) or as superseded.
m) Site lighting for the relevant part of the site;
n) Screening and hoarding details;
o) Access and protection arrangements around the site for
pedestrians, cyclists and other road users;
p) Procedures for interference with public highways;

Page 44

q) External safety and information signing notices;
r) Liaison, consultation and publicity arrangements, including
dedicated points of contact;
s) Complaints procedures, including complaints response
procedures;
t) Membership of the considerate contractors' scheme;
u) The provision of safe walking and cycling routes through the
construction site including routes serving completed phases of
the development;
v) A Travel Plan setting out measures to encourage site
operatives and visitors to travel to and from the site using
sustainable means of transport; and
w) On-site waste management and off-site disposal
All construction activities shall be carried out in accordance with
the approved CEMP to which they relate.
Reason: To ensure the environmental impact of the construction
of the development is adequately mitigated in the interests of the
amenity of nearby residents / occupiers and to ensure that
construction does not result in avoidable congestion on the A34
Trunk Road in accordance with policies DC5 and DC9 of the Vale
of White Horse Local Plan and section 10 of the Highways Act
1980.
13

Hours of Construction
The hours of operation for construction and demolition works
shall be restricted to 07:30-18:00 Monday to Friday and 08:0013:00 on a Saturday. No work to take place on Sundays or Public
Holidays without the prior written authority of the Local Planning
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not
detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of
undue disturbance in accordance with policy DC9 of the Vale of
White Horse Local Plan.

14

Scheme of Acoustic Insulation
No development above slab level shall commence until a
detailed scheme of noise insulation measures has been
submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The scheme of noise insulation measures shall be
prepared by a suitably qualified consultant/engineer and shall
take into account the provisions of BS 8233:2014 "Guidance on

Page 45

Sound Insulation and Noise Reduction for Buildings". The
approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the
commencement of the use and be permanently retained
thereafter.
Reason: To protect the occupants from noise disturbance in
accordance with policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan.
15

Fixed Mechanical Plant
All plant, machinery and equipment to be used by reason of the
granting of this permission shall be so installed, maintained and
operated so as to ensure that the rating noise level from the
equipment shall be at least 5 dB below the pre-existing
background noise level (L90) when measured at the nearest
noise sensitive premises with the measurements and
assessment made in accordance with BS4142:2014 -'Methods for
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound'.
Reason: To protect the occupants of nearby residential
properties from loss of amenity due to noise disturbance in
accordance with policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan.

16

Service Areas delivery times
No deliveries shall be received at, or dispatched from, the site
between the hours of 22:00 and 07:00 each day of the week.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not
detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of
undue noise from delivery vehicles entering or leaving the site in
accordance with policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan.

17

Service and delivery management plan
No building shall be occupied until details of a comprehensive
servicing and delivery management plan (broadly in accordance
with Technical Notes 13 and 16 and the letter from the applicant
dated 25th April, and including details on the management and
use of service areas) has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Highway Authority. At all times thereafter, deliveries and service
areas shall be managed in accordance with the agreed scheme.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not
detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents by reason of
undue noise from delivery vehicles entering or leaving the site

Page 46

and in the interests of highway safety in accordance with
policies DC5 and DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.
18

Waste management plan
Prior to the commencement of development above slab level, full
details of waste management, refuse and recycling storage
within the development shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The management of
waste, refuse and recycling storage shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first
occupation of the development hereby approved and retained
thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that adequate provision is made for the
storage of recyclables in accordance with policy DC7 of the Vale
of White Horse Local Plan.

19

Details of all external plant and machinery
Prior to the commencement of development above slab level, full
details of all external plant and machinery (to include any
enclosure / screening details and ducting runs) within the
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The external plant and machinery
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details
prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved
and retained thereafter.
Reason: To enable high quality design in accordance with policy
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

20

Lighting
Prior to the first occupation of development, full details of all
external lighting shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The external lighting shall be
designed in accordance with the following principles:
·
The main beam angle is not directed towards any potential
observers;
·
Lighting sources (bulbs and reflectors) shall not be visible
from any adjacent properties;
·
Luminaire's front glazing shall be kept as near to parallel
to the ground surface as possible (facing downwards), and shall
not exceed 20 degrees from the horizontal;
·
Light trespass into the windows of any light sensitive
premises shall not have a Vertical Illuminance greater than 10
Lux for pre-curfew periods (before 23:00) and 2 lux post-curfew

Page 47

(between 23:00 - 07:00) in accordance with the Institution of
Lighting Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction of
Obtrusive Light.
Thereafter, the lighting shall be retained in accordance with the
approved scheme.
Reason: To ensure that the development hereby permitted is not
detrimental to the amenity of nearby residents in accordance
with policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.
21

Kitchen extract systems
Building F (the community hub building) or any A1, A3, A4 or A5
unit hereby permitted shall not be occupied until there has been
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority a
scheme for ventilation of those premises, including extraction
and filtration of cooking fumes. The scheme shall include
details of the height, position, design, equipment, materials of
any chimney or extraction vent and a programme of
maintenance, the acoustic characteristics of the extraction
system (fan noise characteristics, sound power levels and
octave band frequency analysis) and information relating to the
proposed odour abatement techniques (filtration types,
maintenance schedules). The approved scheme shall be carried
out prior to the commencement of the premises to which it
relates and shall be maintained at all times thereafter in
accordance with the approved maintenance details.
Reason: To protect the occupants of nearby residential
occupiers from noise and odour disturbance in accordance with
policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

22

Advert and signage strategy
Prior to the first occupation of development, an external advert
and signage strategy shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing prior to installation, all adverts and signage
shall be installed in accordance with the approved strategy prior
to the first occupation of the unit to which it relates and retained
thereafter.
Reason: To enable high quality design in accordance with policy
DC1 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

23

Lift overshoots
Prior to the commencement of development above slab level, full
details of all external lift overshoots, associated plant and
machinery shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the

Page 48

Local Planning Authority. The lift overshoots, and associated
external plant and machinery shall be installed in accordance
with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the
development and retained thereafter.
Reason: To enable high quality design in accordance with policy
CP37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.
24

Site security management plan
Prior to the first occupation of development, a site security and
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The site shall be managed in
accordance with the approved plan.
Reason: To enable the prevention of crime in accordance with
policy DC3 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

25

CCTV and ANPR
Prior to the first occupation of development, details of all CCTV
and ANPR camera equipment shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details
shall include locations, swept areas and their design. Unless
otherwise agreed in writing, camera equipment shall be installed
in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To enable effective management of the site, prevention
of crime and to ensure the development is not detrimental to the
amenity of nearby residents in accordance with policies DC3,
DC5 and DC9 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

26

Archaeology investigation
condition 26 has been discharged and is no longer required omitted.

27

Archaeology monitoring & reporting
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
archaeological watching brief (Ref: 16e225wb dated 2 Nov 2016)
approved under application P18/V0398/DIS. Once the watching
brief has been completed its findings shall be reported to the
Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the recording of archaeological matters
within the site in accordance with the NPPF.

28

Site access
Prior to the first occupation of development, the means of site
access shall be formed and laid out, and constructed in
accordance with the Highway Authority's specifications and all

Page 49

ancillary works specified shall be undertaken to the approval of
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, residential amenity
and convenience in accordance with policies DC5 and DC9 of
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.
29

Vision splays
Prior to the first occupation of development, visibility splays
shall be formed, laid out and constructed in accordance with
detailed plans, which shall first be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the
Highway Authority. Vision splays shall be maintained free from
obstruction at all times thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with
policy DC5 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

30

Car parking strategy
No building shall be occupied until a comprehensive Parking
Management Strategy for the whole site in accordance with the
Technical Note 2 has been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall also include
details of maintaining electric charging points. Thereafter, the
car parking within the site shall be provided in accordance with
the approved plans prior to first occupation and be managed in
accordance with the approved strategy.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, residential amenity
and convenience in accordance with policies DC5 and DC9 of
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

31

Cycle parking
No building shall be occupied until its respective means of cycle
parking has been implemented in accordance with the approved
drawings.
Reason: To encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport
and provide adequate cycle parking in accordance with policy
DC5 of the adopted Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

32

Framework travel plan
Prior to the first occupation or operational use of any part of the
site, a Framework Travel Plan shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel
Plan shall include arrangements for monitoring and effective
enforcement. Thereafter and prior to the first occupation or
operational use of any individual use element of the site a

Page 50

Supplementary Travel Plan or Travel Plan Statement shall be
produced. Each Supplementary Travel Plan shall link back to the
targets and objectives in the main Framework Travel Plan.
Reason: To minimize traffic generated by the development, to
encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport and to
ensure the A34 trunk road continues to be an effective part of
the national network in accordance with policies CP33, CP35
DC5 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 and section 10 of
the Highways Act 1980.
33

Details of West Way service access
No building shall be occupied until full details of the service
vehicle access point on West Way between Elms Parade and
Block A has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway
authority. The details shall include permanently installed
bollards or other form of physical barrier between the access
route into the site from West Way and the eastern end of the car
parking at the front of Elms Parade to prevent the passage of
cars between the car park and the service access route.
Thereafter, the access point shall be formed and constructed in
accordance with the approved details and the bollards or
physical barrier shall be maintained and kept in place at all
times.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, residential amenity
and convenience in accordance with policies DC5 and DC9 of
the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

34

Drainage
Prior to the commencement of development, a fully detailed foul
and surface water drainage scheme of the development shall be
developed in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment in
Accordance with NPPF & Drainage Strategy ref. 10/4452 dated
January 2016 prepared by Ward Cole Consulting Engineers and
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, in consultation with the water authority. The approved
scheme shall be implemented prior to the occupation of any
building to which the scheme relates and shall include a fully
detailed management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of
the development.
Reason: To ensure the effective drainage of the site and to avoid
flooding in accordance with policy CP42 of the Vale of White
Horse Local Plan.

Page 51

35

Contaminated Land
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
Ground Investigation Report approved under application
P18/V0698/DIS. Following implementation of the remedial
measures identified in the report, a full validation report detailing
the measures carried out to ensure compliance shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. All
implemented works shall be maintained in place thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the
future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised,
together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological
systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and
other offsite receptors in accordance with policies DC9 and
DC10 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan.

36

Air Quality
Prior to the commencement of development, a scheme for
offsetting air quality impacts shall be submitted to and agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be
consistent with the mitigation proposals in the chapter 7 of the
RSK Air Quality Assessment January 2016 and in accordance
with the 2015 EPUK-IAQM Land Use Planning and Development
Control document. Thereafter, the agreed scheme shall be
implemented in full and actively maintained.
Reason: To ensure the development is not detrimental to the
amenity of future occupiers and neighbouring residents in
accordance with policy DC9 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan.

37

Piling Method Statement
No piling shall take place until a piling method statement
detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the
methodology by which such piling will be carried out, including
measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to
subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the
works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority in consultation with Thames Water.
Unless otherwise agreed in writing, any piling shall be
undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling
method statement.
Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to
underground water utility infrastructure and piling has the

Page 52

potential to impact on local underground water utility
infrastructure.
38

Community Employment Plan
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the
Community Employment Plan (CEP) approved under application
P18/V0317/DIS.
Reason: To secure sustainable economic growth in order to
create jobs, reduce unemployment and to increase prosperity
within Oxfordshire in accordance with Government advice
contained in the NPPF.

Page 53

Appendix 2
© Mountford Pigott LLP 2016
Reproduction in whole or in part by any means is prohibited without the prior
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.
This drawing is only to the stated scale if it is printed correctly. MPLLP cannot accept
responsibility for the incorrect scaling of drawings printed by third parties.

SEACOURT ROAD

All dimensions are in mm unless otherwise stated.

This drawing may incorporate information from other professionals. Mountford Pigott
LLP cannot accept responsibility for the integrity and accuracy of such information.
Any clarification and/or additions that are required appertaining to such information
should be sought from the relevant profession or their appointment representative as
listed below.

ELMS ROAD

POPLAR ROAD

If this drawing forms part of an application for planning permission on behalf of the
applicant named below, it shall not be used for any other purpose without the express
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.

LIST OF INFORMANTS :

AGT Land & Building Surveyors
Ridge & Partners LLP - Engineering Services
Ridge & Partners LLP - M&E
Macgregor Smith Limited - Landscape
Make Architects

WEST WAY

REVISIONS

DATE

DRN

GENERAL UPDATES
GENERAL UPDATES
GENERAL UPDATES
GENERAL UPDATES
LEVELS ADDED
LANDSCAPE COORDINATED WITH
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS PLAN
CAR PARK RAMPS ADDED
RAMPS AT REAR OF BLOCK E REMOVED

21/07/17
10/08/17
27/09/17
20/10/17
09/02/18
23/02/18

TW/VA A
VA
B
CA
C
CA
D
CA
E
CA
F

REV

23/04/18
24/04/18

CA
CA

G
H

ALL LANDSCAPING SHOWN FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
FOR FINAL DETAILS REFER TO
SEPARATE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
LAYOUTS & DOCUMENTATION

E021
E018
E004
E020
E017
E003
E023
E022
E019
E005

E026
E029
E007
E031
E025
E027
E006
E009
E024
E028
E030
E008

E035
E032
E037
E034
E010
E038
E036
E033

INSTER

WAY

E013
E002
E016
E015
E012
E001
E014

Glass Bin

Glass Bin

Food Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

REFUSE
Mixed Bin

Glass Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Glass Bin

STORE 1

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

STORE 2

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

STORE 2

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

REFUSE
Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

STORE 1

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Glass Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Glass Bin

WESTM

ELMS PARADE

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

REFUSE
DETAIL 17
85.4 m²

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

RESI
ENTRANCE

RETAIL 16
204.4 m²

RETAIL 18
84.0 m²

RETAIL 19
84.0 m²

RETAIL 21
236.8 m²

RETAIL 20
84.0m²

FFL 62.250

ACCESS
PANEL

RETAIL
10

RETAIL
09

FFL 61.650

FFL 62.900

ACCESS
PANEL

RETAIL
11

ACCESS
PANEL

Page 54

BLOCK C
FFL 62.800

FFL 62.800

BLOCK B

ACCESS
PANEL

DOWN

FOOD STORE
FFL 62.000

BLOCK D
BASEMENT
FFL 60.050

FFL 61.750
PLA

NT A

PLA

REA

CYCLE
STORES

CYC
L
STO E
RES

A34

ENERGY CENTRE
UP

NT A

REA
1:14

RAMP

FFL 61.800

UP
1:7.5

FFL 61.850

1:14
1:14

1:7.5

RAMP
LOWE

R CAR

DOWN

1:14

PARK

FFL 61.700

A
E
F
D

C
B

No

rth

0m

10m

20m

30m

40m

WESTWAY PLACE, BOTLEY
MASTERPLAN-LOWER GROUND FLOOR
1205-AP-099-H
1:500 @ A1
DRAWN BY VA

14/06/17

© Mountford Pigott LLP 2016
Reproduction in whole or in part by any means is prohibited without the prior
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.
This drawing is only to the stated scale if it is printed correctly. MPLLP cannot accept
responsibility for the incorrect scaling of drawings printed by third parties.

SEACOURT ROAD

All dimensions are in mm unless otherwise stated.

This drawing may incorporate information from other professionals. Mountford Pigott
LLP cannot accept responsibility for the integrity and accuracy of such information.
Any clarification and/or additions that are required appertaining to such information
should be sought from the relevant profession or their appointment representative as
listed below.

ELMS ROAD

POPLAR ROAD

If this drawing forms part of an application for planning permission on behalf of the
applicant named below, it shall not be used for any other purpose without the express
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.

LIST OF INFORMANTS :

AGT Land & Building Surveyors
Ridge & Partners LLP - Engineering Services
Ridge & Partners LLP - M&E
Macgregor Smith Limited - Landscape
Make Architects

WEST WAY

FFL 61.300

FFL 61.100

E022
E021
E020
E019
E018
E017
E023

E028
E026
E025
E031
E030
E029
E027
E024

E037
E036
E035
E034
E033
E032
E038

E005
E004
E003

E008
E007
E006
E009

E010

Glass Bin

Glass Bin

Food Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

REFUSE
RETAIL 16
204.4 m²

DETAIL 17
85.4 m²

FFL 62.350

FFL 62.350

Mixed Bin

RESI

FFL
62.350
ENTRANCE

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

BLOCK E
RETAIL 18
84.0 m²

RETAIL 19
84.0 m²

FFL 62.200

FFL 62.200

23.04.18
24.04.18

CA
CA

J
K

REFUSE

INSTER
WESTM

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Glass Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Glass Bin

STORE
1
FFL
62.000

STORE
2
FFL
62.000

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

FFL
STORE
62.000
2

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

STORE
1
FFL
62.000

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

REFUSE

Glass Bin

240l Eurobin
0.715m(d) x
0.580m(w) x
1.075m (h)

Glass Bin

BLOCK A
Mixed Bin

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

WAY

E015
E016
E014
E013
E012

E002
E001

FFL 61.850

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

REV

VA
VA
CA
CA
VA
CA
CA
CA

FFL 60.900

ELMS PARADE

Mixed Bin

DRN

02.08.17
09.08.17
27.09.17
20.10.17
10.11.17
09.02.18
15.02.18
23.02.18

HOTEL

FFL 61.200

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

DATE

ALL LANDSCAPING SHOWN FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
FOR FINAL DETAILS REFER TO
SEPARATE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
LAYOUTS & DOCUMENTATION
FFL 61.850

(100
HOTEL)
BED

REVISIONS

GENERAL UPDATE
GENERAL UPDATE
GENERAL UPDATE
GENERAL UPDATE
BLOCK D UPDATE
LEVELS ADDED
LEVELS ADDED TO BLOCK E
LANDSCAPE COORDINATED WITH
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS PLAN
CAR PARK RAMPS ADDED
RAMPS AT REAR OF BLOCK E REMOVED

FFL 62.000
Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin
1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

Mixed Bin

Mixed Bin

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

1100l Eurobin
1.070m(d) x
1.360m(w) x
1.465m (h)

FFL 62.000

RETAIL 21
236.8 m²

RETAIL 20
84.0m²

FFL 62.200

FFL 62.000

FFL 61.350

LOUNGE
FFL 63.700

FFL 62.000

FFL 62.000

FFL 63.700

FFL 61.500

Page 55

BLOCK F
A34

COMMUNITY HALL
FFL 63.700

CHURCH HALL
FFL 64.500

RETAIL
11
BELOW

RETAIL 13
FFL 63.300

RETAIL 15
FFL 63.650

FFL 63.300
RECEPTION
FFL 64.500

RETAIL
10
BELOW

RETAIL
09
BELOW

BLOCK C

BLOCK D

BLOCK B

RETAIL 14
FFL 64.300

FOOD STORE BELOW

ENERGY CENTRE

PLANT
ROOM

UP

FFL 64.700

STOR

E

PLANT

AREA

FFL 64.900

CHU
RCH
WAY

1:14

RAMP

UP

CYCLE

1:7.5

STOR

E

1:14

UPPE

R CAR

1:7.5

PARK
DECK

RAMP

DOWN

1:14

FFL 64.700

AR

TH

RA

YR

OA

D

A
E
F
D

C
B

No

rth

0m

10m

20m

30m

40m

WESTWAY PLACE, BOTLEY
MASTERPLAN - GROUND FLOOR
1205-AP-100-K
1:500 @ A1
DRAWN BY

VA

12/06/17

© Mountford Pigott LLP 2016
Reproduction in whole or in part by any means is prohibited without the prior
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.
This drawing is only to the stated scale if it is printed correctly. MPLLP cannot accept
responsibility for the incorrect scaling of drawings printed by third parties.
All dimensions are in mm unless otherwise stated.
If this drawing forms part of an application for planning permission on behalf of the
applicant named below, it shall not be used for any other purpose without the express
permission of Mountford Pigott LLP.
This drawing may incorporate information from other professionals. Mountford Pigott
LLP cannot accept responsibility for the integrity and accuracy of such information.
Any clarification and/or additions that are required appertaining to such information
should be sought from the relevant profession or their appointment representative as
listed below.
LIST OF INFORMANTS :

ELMS
ROAD

POPLAR
ROAD

AGT Land & Building Surveyors
Ridge & Partners LLP - Engineering Services
Ridge & Partners LLP - M&E
Macgregor Smith Limited - Landscape
Make Architects
REVISIONS

DATE

DRN

GENERAL UPDATES
LANDSCAPE COORDINATED WITH
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS PLAN
CAR PARK RAMPS ADDED

20/10/17
23/02/18

CA
CA

A
B

23/04/18

CA

C

ALL LANDSCAPING SHOWN FOR
ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES ONLY.
FOR FINAL DETAILS REFER TO
SEPARATE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
LAYOUTS & DOCUMENTATION

WEST WAY

(100
HOTEL)
BED

HOTEL

E015
E019
E018
E017
E016
E014
E013
E012

E025
E022
E021
E020
E024
E023

E028
E026
E031
E030
E029
E027
E034
E033
E032

E003
E002
E001

E006
E005
E004

E010
E008
E007
E009

E037
E036
E035
E038

KEY

1
ER WA

Y

ELMS PARADE

MAIN SERVICE ROUTE,
FIRE TENDER & REFUSE
CIRCULATION ROUTE

MINST

BLOCK A

WEST

5

OCCASIONAL SERVICE
VEHICLE ROUTE FOR
LARGER VEHICLES TO
BLOCK C

BLOCK E

DELIVERY BAY

6
1

BLOCK A
SERVICE LAYBY ON
WESTMINSTER WAY

2

BLOCK B
SERVICE LAYBY ON
WESTMINSTER WAY

BLOCK F

3
Page 56

4

REV

BLOCK D

A34

BLOCK C

BLOCK C
FRONT SERVICING

3

BLOCK B
UP

2

BLOCK D
SERVICE LAYBY ON
CHURCH WAY

4

BLOCK E
REAR SERVICING

5
1:14

WAY

1:7.5

1:14

BLOCK C SERVICE
VEHICLES < 7.5t

6

1:14

CHU

RCH

BLOCK F
DROP-OFF AREA ON
CHURCH WAY

1:7.5

AR

TH

RA
YR

OA

FIN

MO

RE

WEST

RO

AD

MINS
TER W

AY

D

ARTHR
AY RO

A
E
F
D

C
B

No

rth

AD

0m

10m

20m

30m

40m

WESTWAY PLACE, BOTLEY
SERVICE DELIVERY PLAN
1205-AP-111-C
1:500 @ A1
DRAWN BY

SC

28/09/17

Appendix 3
Calling in P17/V3298/FUL
I am calling into planning committee the latest West Way application. In previous instances I have
called in a Mace application with confidence the issues addressed could be resolved. In this case, I
think the application is just wrong in too many ways and needs to be widely re‐thought.
The overriding reason for call‐in is that the S73 application raises concerns over public safety,
beyond those identified when V0246 was approved. Therefore, if officers are minded to approve this
application, I’d like to ensure the Planning Committee members are given a chance to assess the
changes.
1. The application covering letter describes this as being for ‘a number of minor material
amendments’. The text of the letter concentrates on minor design changes, while failing to put
forward clearly the larger changes, and the resultant impacts. In particular, the change to Block
D creates two new larger stores out of the four smaller ones that were approved in the original
application. This and the other changes radically alter the way in which the new Church Way
through the site will function. Church Way was designed as a primarily pedestrian area, but will
now accommodate a greater number of vehicles of all types including many HGVs per day. This
raises concerns over public safety, and also goes against the SPD.
2. The proposed changes affect traffic flow, pedestrian and cycle routes, and transform the
western end of the site from a gentle shared use arrangement of a public space, to a through
way for HGVs and the main servicing area for the foodstores and hotel. The changes I refer to
are:
a. Changes to the number and layout of stores
b. Changes to the servicing arrangements
c. Changes to traffic flow through and around the site
d. Changes to the car park configurations: access, circulation, car parking, pedestrian links
and car park accessibility
e. Changes to the public space as defined in the approved application to become more of a
through road and servicing area for many HGVs per day
3. The application includes two new technical notes; Deliveries and Servicing (TN13) and Transport
Statement addendum (TN12), which replace the technical notes which supported the approved
application.
4. The note TN13 supersedes the original draft strategy TN4. Planning condition 17 of V0246 says
that ‘No building shall be occupied until details of a comprehensive servicing and delivery
management plan (broadly in accordance with Technical Note 4 and including details on the
management and use of service areas)’. TN13 is materially different from TN4. The key changes
between TN4 and TN13 are:
a. The trebling the number of articulated lorries through the West Way junction and along
Church Way;
b. The introduction of delivery bay for such lorries on Church Way.
This is not ’broadly in accordance with TN4’, as Condition 17 requires. If this application were to
be approved, by implication it would be accepted that delivery would be as per TN13, not TN4,

Page 57

Appendix 3
then it would be pre‐judging discharge of condition 17 to V0246. It would not be possible for the
Vale to refuse to accept the delivery strategy once the development was built.
5. The plans in this application conflict with the Botley Centre Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD). The proposed Deliveries and Servicing strategy is not in alignment with policy in the SPD;
the plan now wants nearly all deliveries to go through the site rather than via a “dedicated
access and servicing facility accessed from Westminster Way” (SPD 4.6.4). As a consequence of
this, other aspects of the SPD would be severely weakened – pedestrian safety, amenity space
and permeability of the site. The changes proposed under S73 materially alter the way the
centre would operate.
6. Block D was to have 4 retail units, total 907.4sqm GIA, uses A1‐A5. It has now been re‐
configured to accommodate 2 foodstores, Tesco and Iceland, the latter with a basement storage
area introduced. There is one additional tiny retail unit. The centre was not designed to have 3
foodstores. By locating 2 additional foodstores, of combined GIA similar to that of the intended
Co‐op ‘anchor store’, sited together in Block D, a zone of high activity is created at the western
end of the site. This is contrary to the SPD, whereby zones of high activity were to be
concentrated to the east of the site, and it is at variance with the consented scheme. Vehicle
access, servicing and deliveries are all made more difficult and less safe as a result of these
changes.
7. Specifically, on deliveries and servicing, the SPD says:
a. 4.6.4 Service vehicle traffic should be directed to a dedicated access and servicing facility
accessed from Westminster Way thus avoiding public areas and minimising service
vehicle movements on residential streets. Secondary service vehicle access may be made
from West Way, though limited to smaller service vehicles.
b. 4.6.5 A Service and Delivery Management Plan will be expected to accompany
development proposals to minimise public highway and residential area impact.
This S73 application proposes the exact opposite of what the SPD advocates. All servicing is
directed from (or to) West Way and involves Church Way. It uses public areas as both access
routes and delivery bays (currently all deliveries to Iceland, Tesco and Co‐op use dedicated
service yards). Service vehicle movements on Arthray Road, a residential street, would be
increased, both as compared to the present arrangements and as compared with what TN4
proposed. What have county consultees had to say about the traffic and servicing plans?
8. As a consequence of the proposed delivery and parking arrangements further features of the
design framework set out in the SPD would be abandoned or weakened: pedestrian safety
would be compromised, amenity space adversely impacted, and permeability of the site
reduced. In terms of fulfilment of the aims of the SPD, the S73 proposals are a retrograde step.
(See the full list of design principles built on the SPD framework, as summarised in the Planning
Officer’s report on V0246.)

Page 58

Appendix 3
9. The Botley Centre SPD para 4.6.5 asked for “proposals to minimise public highway and
residential area impact”. In the proposed arrangements, all large vehicles will need to pass along
Arthray Road.
10. Safety on Church Way is compromised. Under the proposed arrangements, Church Way would
now:
1. Provide delivery bays for HGVs serving two foodstores and other as yet undefined
retail outlets, trebling the numbers of large HGVs as envisaged in V0246;
2. Provide the only access to 137 parking spaces (compared to 33 in V0246);
3. By being kerbed through the centre, be much more of a through route from the
Elms Rise estate to West Way, used at school times and whenever congestions was
expected at the West Way/ Westminster Way junction;
4. In addition, serve all the other functions described in V0246 ‐ pedestrian route,
accommodating smaller delivery vehicles, incorporating a ‘community plaza’.
5. Have the disabled parking spaces replaced by the delivery bay. The bulk of parking
spaces for users with disabilities are on the lower deck.
8.

Accessibility: made more difficult for people with mobility difficulties by using narrow ramps
and steps included in the access points between Blocks B and C and between Blocks C and D
to the upper and lower car park decks. Even for able bodied people the access would be
narrow and intimidating especially at night‐time, with issues for personal security.

9.

Cycle parking for Block B involves an unsafe route through the upper deck of the car park.

10.

Technical Note 13 – Deliveries and Servicing is incomplete. TN13 does not describe deliveries
by LGVs (‘white vans’ and others) and nor does it account for the recent growth in internet
deliveries which, especially with 262 students and over 200 residents, could have a major
impact. No mention is made of other vehicles, such as removal vans, which will need to park
near to residential accommodation from time to time.

11.

Issues with Technical Note 12 ‐ Transport statement addendum: The new parking
accumulation figures for the whole site now imply a maximum of 321 out of 324 spaces being
filled at peak times. With six individual car parks accessed by four separate entrances this
would lead to severe problems when individual car parks are filled.
The Vehicle Management System and encouragement to use the lower deck will have little
impact on local residents (the vast bulk of users) who know the layout well and will select the
most convenient car park.
Arthray Road will have much higher use by HGVs, other deliveries and local users.

12.

Security: needs to be given more consideration in this application. ‘Before first occupation’
planning condition will be too late, because the principles of ‘secured by design’ need to be
applied, and the Crime Prevention Design Advisor engaged.

13.

Waste management: has not been addressed adequately in the new plan. Where will the
three stores and hotel store their high volumes of waste awaiting pickup?

Page 59

Appendix 3

Cllr Debby Hallett, 3 January 2018

Page 60

Appendix 4

Application no: P17/V3298/FUL-3
Location: Botley Centre West Way Botley Oxford

Transport Development Control
Recommendation:
Objection

Key issues:
This is a further amendment to the application. The highway authority responded to the
original application on 30 January 2018. No objection was made against the proposals
although there were a number of issues which the highway authority felt should be
reconsidered. The proposals were seen to –
significantly increase vehicle movements on Church Road;
increase development traffic along Arthray Road;
increase vehicle movements within the development to reach the main car park;
offer poor service access arrangements;
lack details on the Phasing Plan.
The highway authority also responded to a previous amendment to the application on 11 April
2018. While there were details on some drawings that were not considered to be acceptable
and not in accordance with agreements reached during previous discussions with the
Applicant, again no objection was made against the proposals subject to the necessary details
being amended accordingly. A notable amendment required related to the closing off of the
eastern end of the Elms Parade parking from the service vehicle only access point on West
Way. The amended application proposed the installation of bollards on Church Road which
would be lowered only to allow the passage of overnight service vehicles.
The application failed to provide clear proposals that would satisfy the restricted use of the
new service vehicle only access point from West Way. The highway authority has been very
explicit in requiring that the eastern end of the Elms Parade car parking to be physically and
permanently closed off to prevent the incorrect and unauthorised use of the ‘service vehicle
only’ access point by other vehicles. This has previously been agreed by the applicant, but
the submitted proposals failed to confirm it and the highway authority made it clear that the
proposals as shown were not acceptable. This application also fails to address this matter
and therefore the highway authority finds it necessary to recommend a Refusal.
In its previous responses, the highway authority commented on other matters, including the
proposals for a Phasing Plan, advance signage and servicing. The planning authority is
requested to have due regard to those previous comments in so far as they remain applicable.

Page 61

Legal agreement required to secure:
A legal (s.106) agreement relating to the consented development under planning application
P16/V0246/FUL has been in place with effect from 15 September 2016. All requirements of
that agreement shall apply to any consent issued relating to this application.

Conditions:
The application seeks to vary Conditions 2 and 4 on P16/V0246/FUL
The Planning Authority is recommended to impose upon any planning permission they
may grant the additional CONDITION(S) set out below:
Prior to the first operational use of the service vehicle only access point on West Way,
permanently installed bollards or other form of physical barrier shall be constructed
between the access route into the site from West Way immediately to the west of Block
A and the eastern end of the car parking at the front of Elms Parade. The positioning
of the bollards or physical barrier shall be such as to prevent the passage of cars
between the car park and the site access route and the bollards or physical barrier
shall be maintained and kept in place at all times.

Informatives:
-

Detailed comments:
The current application includes the Agent’s letter dated 25 April 2018.
The letter confirms that the ramps within the proposed car park have been reinstated although
they have been relocated from their position on the approved scheme.
The previous proposal for bollards on Church Way has been withdrawn.
It is now proposed that a signage system will be used on Church Way to show it as closed to
all but delivery traffic between 1000-1600 every day and this will be enforced by an ANPR
camera. Vehicles that are not registered as delivery vehicles will be fined if they travel the
length of Church Way.
The proposals continue to show no physical restriction between the service vehicle only
access point on West Way and the eastern end of the Elms Parade car parking. It is proposed
that the access point would be controlled using ANPR. The proposals also refer to removing
‘the amount of street clutter’ which presumably would mean there would be no signs advising
of the restricted use of the access point.
With the ramps in the car park reinstated, access to all of the main car parking will again be
from Westminster Way. Therefore, the need to provide directions to alternative access points
no longer seems to exist and the proposals for advance signing are confusing.
A Technical Note 16 Revised Parking Arrangements (Church Way Restricted, Ramps in
Decked Car Park) has been submitted. It confirms that Church Way will not be physically

Page 62

closed but will be controlled as commented on above and that the ramps within the car park
are to be reinstated. The car park will now accommodate 86 spaces on the lower deck and
98 spaces on the upper deck. TN16 totals these to be 187. Overall, the number of car parking
spaces is not materially changed from the consented scheme. For the avoidance of doubt the
highway authority expects and requires that cycle parking will also continue to be provided in
accordance with the consented scheme.
TN16 comments on the traffic impact of two options. Option 1 proposes the signed closure of
Church Way to all traffic between the hours of 10.00 and 16.00. Option 2 proposes that Church
Way would be signed as closed during all operational hours, including the peak periods.
The term ‘operational hours’ is not defined and, given that there will be a wide range of trading,
from supermarkets to cafes, this needs to be clarified.
Although Option 1 is the proposal put forward, TN16 confirms that the traffic impact of Option
2 would be small and within the daily variation of traffic flows. It would seem, therefore, that
with the added benefits of the non-vehicle operational use of Church Way, Option 2 might be
considered as the better solution to take forward.
It is not clear why Option 1 has been
preferred.
TN16 confirms that it is proposed to control the service vehicle only access point from West
Way using ANPR. Presumably this would mean that any vehicle using the service access as
a means of either entry to or exit from the Elms Parade parking would be recorded and a
financial penalty would be imposed. Consequently, the access and egress to and from the
car parking at that point would be under the control of the retail centre management although
the car parking does not form any part of the development.
Given that this control is intended to be in place to prevent such use, the applicant needs to
demonstrate how the parallel parking at the front of the Elms Parade shops would operate
satisfactorily.
The location of the ANPR camera on drawing no 1205-AP-114 clearly shows that the camera
would be intended to recognise the improper use of the access route leading southwards into
the site past Block A, presumably in terms of vehicle type or time of day. Quite evidently it is
not intended to monitor and record vehicles that might pass between the service vehicle only
access point on West Way and the Elms Parade car parking.
The highway authority continues to require that the access route leading into the site from the
service vehicle only access point on West Way has a form of physical barrier to prevent any
vehicles from entering or leaving the Elms Parade car parking at this point. The application
drawings should be amended to demonstrate this. If this is not done then the highway
authority would request the planning authority to attach the above condition to any planning
permission that may be granted.
Overall, the proposals rely on a number of future commitments regarding how it is expected
the retail centre will be operated.
Servicing to be restricted to outside of retail hours
Vehicles servicing through the centre of the site to be further controlled so that they
would not be delivering whilst the site is commercially active.
Goods vehicles travelling through the site would be timed so as to avoid peak periods,
and so to ensure no more than one vehicle arrives at the site at a time.
Accesses and parking to be controlled by ANPR and the issue of financial penalties

Page 63

The highway authority is very sceptical about the ability to keep such commitments for
controlling the vehicle movements within the shopping centre in place, especially over the
longer term. There remains a lack of clarity regarding the various terms used in relation to
vehicle movement restrictions. Such terms as ‘retail hours’, ‘commercially active’, ‘operational
hours’ should be clearly defined.

Officer’s Name: John M Patey
Officer’s Title: Development Control (Transport) Consultant
Date: 11 May 2018

Page 64

Agenda Item 8
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)

APPLICANT
OFFICER

P17/V1894/O
Land to the North West of Radley Radley
RADLEY
Outline planning application for up to 240
dwellings (comprising a mix of 1, 2, 3, 4 and 5
bedroom dwellings) including affordable
housing, open space and all associated
ancillary works with all matters reserved except
access (as amended by plans and
documentation submitted on 3 April 2018).
Edward Blagrove
Bob Johnston
Robert Hall
Vicky Jenkins
Radley College
Holly Bates

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant outline consent is delegated to
the head of planning subject to:
I.

A Section 106 legal agreement being entered into in order to ensure
financial contributions towards local infrastructure and to secure
affordable housing; and

II.

Conditions (or provision in S106 as appropriate) as follows:

Standard
1. Time limit – outline
2. Submission of reserved matters
3. Approved plans
Pre-commencement
4. Construction environment management plan for biodiversity to be
agreed.
5. Air quality screening assessment to be agreed.
6. Contaminated land phased risk assessment to be agreed.
7. Details of protection of strategic water main to be agreed.
8. Sustainable drainage details to be agreed.
9. Drainage maintenance plan to be agreed.
10. Groundwater monitoring to be agreed.
11. Clearance and survey of existing culvert and ditch to be agreed.
12. Method statement for groundwater management during
construction phase to be agreed.
13. Foul water drainage details to be agreed.
14. Construction method statement (including construction traffic
management plan) to be agreed.

Page 65

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

15. Details of pedestrian/cycle crossing point for Church Lane to be
agreed.
16. Details of connection to Church Farm access to be agreed.
17. Details of Whites Lane stopping up to be agreed.
18. Details of off-site highway works and timetable for implementation
to be agreed.
19. Written scheme of archaeological investigation to be agreed.
20. Programme of archaeological work to be agreed.
21. Tree protection plan to be agreed.
With reserved matters
22. Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP).
23. Implementation of noise mitigation measures.
24. Housing mix to be agreed.
25. Electric charging points designed into properties with garages.
Pre-occupation
26. Contaminated land validation report.
27. Confirmation of wastewater network upgrade completion or housing
and infrastructure phasing plan agreed.
28. Access and visibility splays to be provided in accordance with
plans.
29. Updated residential travel plan statement.
Compliance
30. Hours of construction work.
31. New estate roads to Highway Authority specification.
32. No drainage to highway.

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

This application relates to land within Radley village extending to around 13.54
hectares of undeveloped arable land. It is a strategic site allocation contained
within the council’s adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1. A site location plan is
included overleaf.

The application comes to committee because this is a large scale major
application.

Page 66

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

1.3

The application seeks outline planning consent with all matters reserved other
than access, for up to 240 dwellings. An illustrative masterplan has been
submitted with the application showing how the development could be
achieved along with areas of open space, landscaping, play areas and access
points to Whites Lane and Church Road. Amended plans have been received
during the application in order to address comments received, including
additional details regarding vehicular access, cycle links and archaeology and
amending the residential area to address biodiversity, habitat and wildlife
matters. Extracts from the application plans are attached at Appendix one.

1.4

The total site would provide a mix of 1, 2, 3 and 4 bedroom dwellings and
would have an approximate net density across the site of 29 dwellings per
hectare. 35% affordable housing would be provided, equating to 84 dwellings.

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received to the current amended proposal is
overleaf. A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 67

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

2.2

Radley Parish Council
Object. The parish’s concerns can be summarised into the following topic
areas:












Site connectivity;
Sewerage;
Cycle track to Kennington;
Sugworth Lane traffic;
Construction traffic;
Housing mix;
Biodiversity;
Developer obligations;
Community Infrastructure Levy;
Church Road pedestrian crossing;
Archaeology.

A full copy of the parish council’s response to the amended application is
attached at Appendix two.
Abingdon Town Council
Object on the grounds that there is no recommendation for a condition
requiring the Lodge Hill Slips to be in place prior to any commencement on
site.
Other points raised include:
 Adequate arrangements for drainage and disposal of sewerage and foul
water;
 Increased traffic in and around Abingdon;
 Improvements required to Radley Station including more parking and a
good and direct cycle path;
 Whites Road needs to be improved/widened.
Oxfordshire County Council – Transport and highways
No objections, subject to conditions:
 Access in accordance with plans;
 Updated residential travel plan statement;
 Drainage details;
 Construction Method Statement (including traffic plan).
Oxfordshire County Council – Archaeology
No objections, subject to conditions:
 Written scheme of archaeological investigation to be agreed;
 Programme of archaeological work to be agreed.
Oxfordshire County Council – Education
No objections subject to provision of land for primary school expansion.
Countryside Officer Vale
No objections, subject to s106 provision for biodiversity offsetting and
conditions:
 Construction Environment Management Plan for Biodiversity;
 Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP).

Page 68

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Conservation Officer Vale
Support. Materials, boundary treatments, landscaping, density and height
details to be assessed at RM stage.
Highways England

No objection.

Environmental Health - Air Quality
No objections, subject to condition:
 Air quality screening assessment.
Environmental Health – Noise
No objections, subject to condition:
 Implementation of noise mitigation measures
Environmental Health – Contaminated Land
No objections, subject to conditions:
 Contaminated land phased risk assessment
 Validation report
Natural England

No objection.

Environment Agency

No comments.

Thames Water
No objection, subject to conditions:
 Confirmation of wastewater network upgrade completion or housing and
infrastructure phasing plan agreed;
 Details of protection of strategic water main
Waste Team Vale
No objections, subject to contribution.
Drainage Engineer Vale
No objections, subject to conditions:
 Sustainable drainage details;
 Maintenance plan;
 Groundwater monitoring
 Clearance and survey of existing culvert and ditch
 Method statement for groundwater management during construction
phase;
 Foul water drainage details.
Landscape Officer Vale
No objections subject to details being provided at the reserved matters
stage.
Forestry Officer Vale
No objections, subject to conditions.
Leisure Team Vale
Comments on leisure contributions; these would now be secured via CIL.

Page 69

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group
Object due to increased pressure on local services and would like to
discuss how the development would contribute to the local health economy.
n.b. Contributions to mitigate this would now be secured via CIL.
Oxfordshire Badger Group
Object for the following reasons:
 Mitigation for badgers remains inadequate and presents several threats
to the survival of the resident population of the protected species;
 A significant loss of habitat and biodiversity will still result from building
in the centre of the quarry area to the southern part of the site;
 A net gain in biodiversity has not been proved in the published
documentation.
Councillor Edward Blagrove (Kennington and Radley)
Comments submitted covering the following summarised topics:





Insufficient connectivity;
The development should contribute towards a mitigation scheme for
increased traffic on Sugworth Lane;
Construction traffic should be controlled;
Additional financial contributions and/or infrastructure are required to
mitigate the scheme.

Neighbour object (30)
30 representations from 26 properties have been received to the
application and its amendments. These can be summarised as follows into
the following categories:
Amenity
 Loss of privacy;
 Overlooking;
 Loss of security;
 Loss of light;
 Increased light pollution;
 Increased air pollution;
 Building work noise and disturbance;
 Any new access to Ferny Close would be resisted;
Traffic and highway safety
 Increased traffic on road network;
 Additional traffic would cause highway safety issues including for
children accessing the primary school;
 A34 slip roads should be completed prior to commencement;
 Access to Church Road is unsafe as it is opposite the primary school;
 Access to Church Lane should be amalgamated with the College
properties to reduce number of exits;
 Whites Lane must be realigned and crossing points reconsidered to
ensure safety;
 Roads are in a poor state of repair;
 Concerns regarding construction traffic impact, routes and timings;
Pedestrian/cycle access and connectivity

Page 70

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



Dedicated cycle lane should be adopted between North Abingdon and
West Radley;
 Adequate, convenient cycle routes are not catered for by the
development which is a wasted opportunity;
 All properties need cycle storage;
 Step-free access to Radley Station is required and funding is needed;
 Developers should include existing residents of Radley in the discount
plan for cycle accessories;
 A new cycle/pedestrian link from SE corner of the development is
required;
 Connectivity with the existing village is crucial;
 Layout does not support non-car uses;
 Any new access to Ferny Close would be resisted;
Character, land use, landscape
 Destruction of the Green Belt;
 Not all land within the site boundary has been allocated within the local
plan;
 Loss of agricultural land;
 Change to the character of the village;
 Roof lines and building styles should fit with the properties in Whites
Lane;
 Clarification is required on boundaries to Whites Lane, existing hedging
should be retained as part of proposals;
 Substantial adequate boundary treatments will be required
 No details regarding landscaping of current ditch or security walls for
existing residents;
 Scheme is too dense;
 Lack of clarity on natural borders and consistency in the plans;
Environmental aspects
 Impact on wildlife;
 Harmful effect on badger sett and foraging areas for badgers;
 Damage to residential properties from badgers foraging;
 Loss of habitats;
 No net loss for biodiversity;
 Increased light pollution;
 Increased air pollution;
Drainage and flooding
 Increased pressure on drainage system;
 Sewerage system needs to be upgraded;
 Increased risk of flooding;
 Builders should not let their building material enter the drains;
 All drains in the village should be cleaned;
Infrastructure
 There are not enough services and facilities in the village to support this
development;
 The primary school needs to be expanded to cope with impact of
development;
 Affordable housing should be affordable and made available for
residents of the village;
Other
 Pets will not have anywhere to roam;
 Future changes to the masterplan by future developers/builders;
 Plans are vague and ambiguous;

Page 71

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



The applicants should remain liable for any problems their development
causes after it has been built;
Inaccurate tree constraints plan;
Loss of view (n.b. this is not a material planning consideration);
Loss of property values (n.b. this is not a material planning
consideration).





3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.2

Pre-application History

None.

P16/V2920/PEJ - Response (22/03/2017)
Proposed development of up to 253 houses.
3.3

Screening Opinion requests
P17/V0301/SCR – EIA not required on 22/02/2017
Screening opinion for up to 253 residential units with associated green
infrastructure and SUDS.
P15/V1233/SCR – EIA not required on 15/07/2015
Screening Opinion request for up to 263 residential units, a new village hall, a
new one form entry primary school, retail provision, green infrastructure
(including the retention of existing hedgerows and trees wherever possible),
and sustainable drainage systems (SuDS). The existing Radley Village Hall to
be demolished as part of the development.

4.0
4.1

5.0
5.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
The application has been screened under Environmental Impact Assessment
regulations and the screening opinion provided concludes that the submission
of an environmental statement in connection with the development is not
required.

MAIN ISSUES
The main planning considerations for this application are:












Current housing policy;
Traffic, parking and highway safety;
Biodiversity and ecology;
Landscape and visual impact;
Design and layout;
Residential amenity;
Historic environment;
Archaeology;
Flood risk and drainage;
Affordable housing and housing mix;
Financial contribution requests.

Page 72

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.2

Current housing policy
The adopted Local Plan Part 1 2031 focuses housing growth at the market
towns and larger villages and identifies Radley as a larger village in the
Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area. Within this strategy, Core
Policies 4 and 8 identify the strategic site allocation of North-West Radley as
suitable for new housing.

5.3

Therefore, Officers consider that the principle of the application is acceptable in
delivering housing as part of the plan-led sustainable growth as set out in the
adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.4

Greenbelt
As part of the evidence base to support the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, the council
undertook a Green Belt review. This review recommended the removal of this
site from the Oxford Green Belt. The council has done so to facilitate the
delivery of housing.

5.5

A small section of the site to the north-eastern boundary with Church Road is
located outside of the identified site allocation. This element of the application
site therefore remains within the Green Belt and Core Policy 13 of the adopted
Local Plan 2031 Part 1 applies. The construction of new buildings in the Green
Belt is considered to be inappropriate development and this policy states that
inappropriate development will not be approved except in very special
circumstances.

5.6

Very special circumstances must demonstrate that the potential harm is clearly
outweighed by other considerations, in line with the National Planning Policy
Framework.

5.7

The small addition to the site area would allow the development to have an
access point onto Church Road as well as an active frontage to this road. This
would be a significant benefit to the development in ensuring it is well
connected to the existing village and in providing a main connecting route from
north to south throughout the development.
The site template document for this strategic site contained within the appendix
to the local plan requires an integrated development which includes linkages
(where possible and appropriate) between the site, the adjacent housing
developments and nearby facilities and services.

5.8

5.9

The scheme has come forwards with this additional area of land adjacent to
Church Road which is able to deliver these required linkages. It would provide
vehicle, pedestrian and cycle links onto Church Road and beyond, including
convenient access to the primary school directly opposite and shorter more
convenient routes to the other services and facilities within the village. This
would be of significant benefit to the scheme.

5.10

The illustrative masterplan provided indicates a small number of buildings, the
main access point and associated landscaping would be provided in the area in
question, allowing an active frontage to Church Road and complementing the
proposed redevelopment of the Church Farm site to the north-west.

Page 73

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.11

Therefore, Officers consider that the construction of a small part of the
application site on land within the Green Belt would allow a significantly more
integrated and well-connected development. This is considered to amount to
very special circumstances given the importance of delivery of this strategic
housing site adopted in the local plan to deliver plan-led sustainable growth
within the District. The limited harm in allowing some development on this small
area of land would be significantly outweighed by the benefits.

5.12

Traffic, parking and highway safety
Access is the only matter for consideration at this outline stage. The
development is proposed to be served by two access points, one from Whites
Lane to the south and one from Church Road to the north. Traffic, highway
safety and pedestrian/cycle connectivity have all been raised as particularly
pertinent issues by local residents and the parish council. These elements have
all been carefully considered and are addressed below.

5.13

The application has been supported by a Transport Assessment (TA). The
local highway authority have reviewed all of the information submitted and have
raised no objections on highway grounds, subject to conditions.

5.14

White Lane access
Vehicular access to the south of the site will be via a minor arm of a priority
controlled T-junction from White’s Lane. Amended plans submitted have
demonstrated sufficient visibility splays from this junction and have also
included sufficient pedestrian/cycle crossing points.

5.15

Whites Lane would be realigned as part of the provision of this access. The
realignment would provide Whites Lane as the priority route to direct traffic this
way rather than through the village. Foxborough Road would form the minor
arm junction which in turn would provide access to Thrupp Lane, which would
continue to function in its current form. Visibility splays and tracking swept
paths have been demonstrated, and OCC are satisfied with this arrangement.

5.16

A new 3.5-metre-wide footway/cycleway is shown on the western side of the
new White’s Lane alignment. A pedestrian zebra crossing with an adjacent
cycle crossing, known as a tiger crossing, is proposed on a ramp on White’s
Lane to the immediate north of the reconfigured junction. The existing weight
restriction imposed on White’s Lane is to be retained. Suitable footways and a
shared footway/cycleway connection at the reconfigured junction and the
southern site access are to be provided

5.17

The land required to secure this new arrangement is within the applicants’
ownership and therefore the works can be secured via a highways s278
agreement.

5.18

A section of White’s Lane along its existing alignment would remain to ensure
existing properties retain their vehicular access to the public highway. This
section of White’s Lane will be redesigned as a no-through route with an
appropriate turning facility provided

Page 74

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.19

Church Road access
Vehicular access to the north of the site will be via a minor arm of a priority
controlled T-junction from Church Road.

5.20

As part of this access point, a crossing would be provided to the primary school
opposite the site. It is anticipated that this would take the form of a zebra
crossing and indicative plans show this to the west of the proposed access to
the site. However, further details of this crossing are to be provided by
condition and the applicants have agreed that the exact location is able to be
flexible to best serve the needs of the community, including the expanded
primary school.

5.21

In the longer term, it is proposed that the adjacent proposed redevelopment of
Church Farm would also be served by this main access. OCC have confirmed
that this is acceptable, on the condition that the temporary access serving
Church Farm is stopped up once this main access is available and delivered.
This is to ensure that two access points are not retained in such close proximity
to each other. Conditions are recommended to secure this arrangement.

5.22

Traffic generation and impact – Lodge Hill Slips
OCC have assessed the trip generation rates submitted and concur that the
methodology used is appropriate for the site. OCC have confirmed that this
would not have a detrimental impact on the junctions in the vicinity of the site in
terms of traffic generation.

5.23

However, the strategic highway network for Abingdon does not currently have
capacity to accommodate this site, or the three other strategic housing sites to
come forward in Abingdon and Radley/Kennington.

5.24

Therefore, the key piece of strategic infrastructure necessary to mitigate these
developments is the Lodge Hill South Facing Slips. The slips would create a
redistribution of traffic, freeing up capacity in Abingdon for traffic from this site.

5.25

This site will therefore make a contribution of £3,500 per dwelling (index linked)
towards the Lodge Hill Slips to mitigate the impact of traffic on the Abingdon
network.

5.26

OCC have confirmed that a ‘Grampian’ condition requiring the slips to be in
place before any development on site, is not required.

5.27

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has recently
confirmed to OCC that the funding shortfall for Lodge Hill South Facing Slips
will be provided in order to unlock growth in this area. Due to recent experience
of successfully delivering a similar scheme (Chilton North Facing Slips), OCC is
confident of delivering this scheme by the end of 2020. In order to achieve this,
OCC is providing forward funding to enable the Lodge Hill South Facing Slips
scheme to progress to avoid any delays.

Page 75

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.28

DCLG funding is predicated on accelerated delivery of housing in the area.
Now that funding has been received, OCC has confirmed that it would not be
appropriate to delay the delivery of this development. Based on the current
programmes associated with Lodge Hill Slips and housing delivery, OCC
expects this scheme to be open for public use before this development site is
fully built out and occupied

5.29

The parish council consider that the development should contribute to a
scheme for improving the junction at Sugworth Lane. Oxfordshire County
Council do not require this in their consultation response. The application is
contributing towards a significant strategic infrastructure project and will also
upgrade and improve the alignment of Whites Lane and the Twelve Acre
Drive/Radley Road/Audlett Drive roundabout. These mitigation measures are
considered to be reasonable, necessary and proportionate to the scale and
location of the development proposed and officers do not have the justification
to ask for further mitigation measures related to this application.

5.30

Off-site cycle provision
As part of the development site’s highway mitigation package, the applicant
has agreed that a cycleway improvement is to be undertaken on the eastern
side of Kennington Road to successfully connect the development with the
wider cycle network and provide sustainable transport modes.

5.31

An illustrative plan has been submitted and agreed by OCC but the detailed
extent of these works are to be approved prior to work commencing on site via
a Grampian condition or S106 obligation from the applicant. These cycle
improvement works are considered deliverable as this route can be provided
within land classed as public highway via S278 works.

5.32

OCC’s objective is to be able to secure two cycle routes between Radley and
Kennington to provide cyclists and pedestrians with a choice of suitable, direct
and safe routes for both villages and for onwards journeys between Abingdon
and Oxford. Radley Parish Council support this, and provision is also made in
the draft neighbourhood plan for enhanced cycling and walking connections.

5.33

In providing the ‘East of Kennington Road’ route as indicated above, this
application contributes towards achieving this objective. The applicant has also
agreed to safeguard a section of land that is in their ownership alongside the
west of the railway line. This safeguarding and dedication of the land to OCC
would allow OCC to deliver their alternative route, once the remainder of land
alongside the railway is also secured.

5.34

An indicative plan has been provided showing the section of land to be
safeguarded and dedicated, which would be 5m in width. The safeguarding
period for this route is to be 10 years from when the S106 legal agreement is
completed.

5.35

Officers consider that the scheme would provide sufficient cycle connections
not only throughout the site and beyond which would significantly contribute to

Page 76

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

a well-connected and integrated development and promote sustainable forms
of transport.
5.36

Public transport
A contribution towards improving the existing bus service will be required to go
towards a service frequency increase of four buses an hour in both directions.
This contribution is listed in the table at paragraph 5.125.

5.37

There are a number of bus stops located in Radley along Foxborough Road
and Church Road, and the service through Radley is well-established. The
realignment of White Lane would not be suitable for any new bus stops but
contributions to upgrading existing bus stops would be required to mitigate the
development. The development would provide suitable connections to these
bus stops.

5.38

Public rights of way
Contributions have been requested to be directed towards upgrading and
improving existing public rights of way in the vicinity to mitigate the additional
usage resulting from the development. The amounts are listed in the table at
paragraph 5.125 and would be directed towards Thames Path National Trail,
the footpath north of Kennington and other identified local routes and new
connections. It would go towards new or replacement structures like gates,
bridges and seating, surfacing, sub-surfacing and drainage to enable easier
non-vehicular access, improved signing and protection measures such as antimotorcycle barriers.

5.39

Parking provision
The application is not assessing layout, which is a reserved matter. Therefore,
levels of parking provision and its layout would be assessed at any future
reserved matters stage, along with storage provision of bicycles.

5.40

Construction traffic
The parish council and the local ward member have raised concerns regarding
construction traffic. OCC have requested a condition to secure the submission
of a construction method statement. This would include a construction traffic
management plan requiring such information as routing of construction and
delivery vehicles to and from the site and delivery times which must be outside
network peak and school peak hours. This condition is recommended.

5.41

Highway conclusion
Officers are satisfied that safe and convenient vehicular, pedestrian and cycle
links are provided for this application. In terms of all pedestrian requirements
including school children and the elderly as suitably wide and safe pavements
and crossing points are to be provided. Off-site highway works will be secured
by way of a highway s278 legal agreement.

5.42

Suitable and proportionate mitigation for the traffic generated by the
development would be provided both by direct delivery works designed into
relevant identified local junctions and by a financial contribution towards the

Page 77

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

strategic infrastructure at the Lodge Hill slips. OCC as highways authority have
no objections to the application, subject to conditions. Officers consider that the
application complies with local plan policies and national policy with regards to
traffic and highway safety.
5.43

Biodiversity and Ecology
The main constraints present on the site are the location of a main badger sett
(and annex setts) and the habitats of elevated ecological importance
associated with the former quarry on the site. The proposals must also
demonstrate that they can avoid a net loss of biodiversity. Ecology and
biodiversity are recognised as very important matters locally, and a number of
representations from neighbours as well as the Oxfordshire Badger Group
have referenced the importance of protecting badgers and wildlife, as well as
the habitats present on the site.

5.44

Badgers
The location of the badger sett would be safeguarded from direct impacts and
retained within an area of dense scrub and open space within the site.
However, the countryside officer was very concerned with the illustrative layout
as originally submitted as it did not provide sufficient direct links for the badgers
to access their foraging areas. If the sett is isolated from the surrounding
habitats this then significantly increases chances of road causalities, and
badger damage to surrounding gardens and houses.

5.45

As a result, an amended illustrative masterplan has been sought. This removes
a significant amount of the development to the southernmost parcel and retains
a direct and uninterrupted link along the southern boundary of the site to
connect the badgers to off-site foraging habitats to the west.

5.46

The countryside officer is now satisfied with the proposed amendments. While
the application is in outline with only access to be considered at this stage,
various parameter plans have been submitted to fix certain principles of the
development to come forwards. One of these is land use, showing the areas of
the site to be residential development and various types of open space.
Therefore, Officers felt that this matter was a principle matter to establish at this
outline stage to ensure the direct and uninterrupted link for the badgers will be
fixed by the granting of outline consent.

5.47

Further amendments to the proposals will still be required at any subsequent
reserved matters stage once layout is to be assessed, as the countryside
officer will need to see detailed proposals to avoid disturbance to the sett.

5.48

Habitats
The amended plans have also addressed another concern of the countryside
officer, which was the significant loss of habitats within the site. The original
proposals submitted would have involved the loss of all the existing grassland
habitats within the quarry. The amended plans which reduce the amount of
residential development in this area therefore retain larger areas of these
habitats. The countryside officer has recommended a condition requiring the

Page 78

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

submission of a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan, which officers support and is
included here.
5.49

The loss of a proportion of the habitats associated with the former quarry is
acknowledged. While there are areas in this section of the site that are
relatively species rich, a lack of management has reduced its ecological
interest. The loss weighs into the planning balance.

5.50

Biodiversity
Detailed biodiversity calculations have been undertaken. The countryside
officer had concerns with the way that the calculations had been carried out
and required a number of amendments to be made. The final calculation,
checked and agreed by the countryside officer, is that the development would
result in a net loss of -5.26 biodiversity units. The applicant has agreed to
provide the necessary compensation to offset the -5.26 units within its own
land, with the creation of a new area of orchard. This requirement will be
secured via the s106 legal agreement. These offset provisions would allow the
proposals to achieve a no net loss for biodiversity as required by policy CP46
of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.51

The applicant will need to ensure that the detailed proposals to come forward
at any subsequent reserved matters stage attain as a minimum a net loss of 5.26 units. If the detailed scheme results in a greater net loss then this will have
to be compensated for through financial contributions for offsite biodiversity
enhancements in addition to the compensation secured through the s106 legal
agreement. National Planning Practice Guidance confirms that this approach
can be achieved.

5.52

The parish council would prefer that a financial contribution be made to
enhance the Radley Lakes area. However, the applicant has put forwards a
suitable approach to address their required mitigation given that they own a lot
of additional land in the vicinity and would be able to accommodate the off-site
mitigation in this manner. The approach is accepted by the council’s
countryside officer and there is no justification to be able to necessitate an
alternative method of mitigation.

5.53

Biodiversity and ecology conclusion
Subject to the recommended conditions and legal agreement provisions,
Officers therefore consider that the scheme complies with the requirements of
Policy CP46 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 because measures can be
provided that would mitigate against and compensate for the adverse effects
likely to result from the development. Overall in the planning balance officers
consider the benefits of the scheme outweigh the limited harm identified.

5.54

Landscape and Visual Impact
The application site is not located within any national landscape designation,
but is within the local landscape designations of the North Vale Corallian Ridge
and Lowland Vale (Saved Local Plan 2011 Policies NE7 and NE9) which seek
to protect the special prevailing character and appearance of the landform.

Page 79

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.55

The application site has been through the local plan examination process and
has been found to be sound by the local plan inspector. The principle of
development on this site is therefore acceptable, but the detailed proposals will
be highly important to the successful integration of the scheme.

5.56

The application is supported by a landscape and visual assessment which has
been reviewed by the council’s Landscape Officer who has confirmed that it is
an appropriate assessment of the site.

5.57

Overall, the landscape officer has no objections to the development in
landscape terms but retains concerns regarding more detailed elements of the
proposal which would be assessed at any later reserved matter stage.

5.58

Landscape assessment and mitigation
The landscape impacts of this application mainly relate to the loss of the open
arable land, the extension of the village to the south-west and visual impact of
the built form, predominantly when seen from neighbouring properties and the
public right of way located to the south-west of the site. From the Oxford Green
Belt Way which is located along the eastern boundary of the site the impact
would be minor adverse, the impact from wider viewpoints would be limited.

5.59

The overall scheme has been designed to direct the built form towards the
centre of the site, concentrating on the main spine road running from north to
south. The amended land use parameter plan and illustrative masterplan show
a larger area of open space to the south-east, and areas of landscaping along
the majority of the boundaries of the site, including along Whites Lane. This
provides a suitable landscape buffer in this area which will assist in assimilating
the scheme into the landscape over time.

5.60

The land use and green infrastructure parameter plans and landscape concept
for the site set appropriate principles for the reserved matters to follow. This
includes two main park areas (Quarry Park and Brook Park), retained and
additional tree and hedge planting on the site including around key boundaries
and green routes through the development. Earth mounding and a ha-ha type
feature is also proposed for the boundary of Whites Lane. While these are
interesting approaches to reduce the impact of the prominence of the
development and standard boundary treatments, the landscape officer has
requested further details of these to ensure that they are designed sensitively
for the area, not within root protection zones and still provide sufficient privacy
to the gardens. This detail is able to be assessed at any subsequent reserved
matters stage.

5.61

The mitigation proposed will help to break up the built mass of development
and will mitigate the development over time as landscaping would mature to
reduce the moderate adverse impacts to minor adverse. The details of the
wider landscape scheme, to be assessed at any future reserved matters stage,
will be highly important to the development’s successful integration.

5.62

Officers acknowledge that the morphology of the settlement would be changed
by this development. However, it would be seen within the context of the

Page 80

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

existing development to the north and east of the site and would assimilate as
a new settlement edge over time.
5.63

Trees
The council’s forestry officer has been consulted on the development and
raised no objections in principle, subject to full details being received at any
subsequent reserved matters stage and a condition relating to tree protection
details being provided, which is recommended.

5.64

There would be some loss of trees to facilitate the development of the site,
including the loss of some lime trees along White’s Lane to facilitate the access
point. The tree officer requires that the loss of these trees be mitigated with
suitable replacement tree planting along the radial curves of this new access,
to continue the strong positive form and character that the trees provide. This
can be sought any subsequent reserved matters stage when layout and
landscaping are matters to be considered. It is also expected that the layout to
be considered at that stage will include opportunities for replication of this
characteristic planting which would be a positive element to incorporate.

5.65

The loss of trees is able to be adequately mitigated by replacement planting as
part of the comprehensive landscaping scheme. Mature trees recognised to be
particularly worthy of retention are to be kept (such as the Sycamore
immediately west of the junction of Whites Lane and Radley Road) and the line
of predominantly over-mature Willow adjacent to the southern boundary of the
site will require specific management which is able to be conditioned at any
later detailed application stage. The draft tree protection plan submitted does
not cover all required elements and as such the tree officer requires that an
amended tree protection plan is submitted by way of condition, which is
recommended.

5.66

Agricultural land
The application would result in loss of agricultural land. Part of the land
appears to be classified as Grade 2 – Very Good and part of the land appears
to be Grade 3 – Good to Moderate. Officers therefore acknowledge there will
be limited harm in the loss of this agricultural land. The application site does
form part of a local plan allocation which has been assessed and found sound
by a local plan inspector and therefore this would have formed part of the
examination considerations.

5.67

The development would lead to a loss of agricultural land, although Officers do
not consider it to be ‘significant’ in terms of the NPPF paragraph 112 when
account is taken for the threshold for consultation with Natural England is 20
hectares of agricultural land for development. This is considered in the planning
balance.

5.68

Landscape conclusion
Officers acknowledge there will be some limited landscape harm as a result of
the proposal including the loss of some trees and the loss of agricultural land.
These factors weigh into the planning balance. The mitigation proposed will
alleviate these impacts and overall Officers are satisfied that the proposed

Page 81

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

development would not cause unacceptable landscape or visual harm to the
North Vale Corallian Ridge or Lowland Vale. Officers are of the opinion that the
benefits of the scheme are considered to outweigh the limited harm identified.
5.69

Design and Layout
While in outline form, the application has come forward with an illustrative
masterplan to demonstrate how the development could be accommodated on
the site and parameter plans to set principles for land use, density, open space
and access and movement.

5.70

Illustrative masterplan
The illustrative masterplan demonstrates a broad but irregular perimeter block
structure centred around a main spine road running north to south throughout
the development. There is a generally legible hierarchy of streets, although
increased connectivity between some of the indicative cul-de-sacs will need to
be addressed. A network of open spaces, green routes and pedestrian/cycle
connections is provided for as well as significant areas of landscaping to the
boundaries of the site. The illustrative masterplan is considered to be a suitable
foundation on which to base subsequent reserved matters proposals, but
officers will expect it to comply with the requirements of the council’s adopted
policies and Design Guide 2015 SPD.

5.71

Density
The average density for the site using the developable area would be
approximately 29 dwellings per hectare (dph). This would likely increase (areas
including smaller dwellings and/or flats) or decrease (areas including larger
dwellings) depending on the specific area of the site, which the design and
access statement indicates would have seven key identifiable character areas
(Main Street, Mews, Village Edge, Ferny Close Edge, Internal Street, Green
Edge and Key Green Space). While not part of the parameter plans, the design
and access statement indicates that building heights would be predominantly 2
and 2.5 storeys in height, with the maximum height being 2.5 storeys.

5.72

A density parameter plan has been submitted with the application to set
principles with relation to the density pattern for the site. The higher density
areas would be located either side of the main spine road and the lower density
areas would be located to the edge of the development, helping to assimilate
the development transition into the countryside. It also demonstrates a reduced
density adjacent to the existing residential development to the east and south
of the site so as to minimise the effects of the development.

5.73

Any subsequent reserved matters applications would have to comply with the
parameters set out by this parameter plan.

5.74

29dph is below the desired minimum 30dph as set out in policy CP23.
However, this policy allows for consideration of site specific context. Officers
consider that 29dph is acceptable for this edge of village site with its sensitive
landscape effects and habitat and biodiversity considerations.

Page 82

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.75

Open space and landscaping
Saved Local Plan 2011 Policy H23 requires that sites deliver 15% useable
public open space. The application submission indicates that 3.43 hectares of
the total area of the site would be open space split into five forms: amenity
open space, natural green space, parks and gardens, green corridor and
formal play. This equates to approximately 25% of the site, which exceeds the
policy requirement. Two play areas are also proposed, as well as a trim trail
around the site. The provision of a playground is a policy of the Radley
Neighbourhood Plan. While this the plan is not made, Officers have had regard
to the intent of the policy.

5.76

The landscape officer has concerns that the amount of ‘useable’ open space
would be much closer to the required 15%. Some areas of the identified open
space such as areas for attenuation basins would not be able to be classed as
useable open space, and some of the identified open space is predominately
linear in form and may not be able to be counted as useable due to their
constrained nature.

5.77

This is a valid matter and must be addressed at the reserved matters stage.
Officers are satisfied that the development is able to come forwards with the
policy requirement for 15% open space, given that a higher percentage is
currently identified. It will be for the detailed layout and landscaping stage to
accommodate this and it will have to be in line with the set parameters at the
outline stage.

5.78

Connectivity
Pedestrian and cycle connectivity is a point of key concern locally; some
representations have referred to this particularly one from Radley Village Shop
Association. The parish council are particularly passionate about securing
further pedestrian and cycle connectivity to the east to facilitate more direct
linkages with the village’s services and facilities and further social integration.
This is an intention in the Neighbourhood Plan, which is not yet made. This
matter has been thoroughly considered.

5.79

The site template document contained within the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part
1 is clear that the site should: “include linkages (where possible and
appropriate) between the site, the adjacent housing developments and nearby
services and facilities.”

5.80

Officers consider that the application site caters for sufficient pedestrian and
cycle links. These include:






Two main points of connectivity via the accesses at Whites Lane (south)
and Church Road (north) to include pedestrian/cycle paths;
Crossing points across Whites Lane and Church Road;
Provision of a cycle path to the east of Kennington Road;
Safeguarding of land for a further cycle path to the west of the railway
track;
Improvement of the Radley Road/Twelve Acre Drive/Audlett Drive
roundabout to better cater for pedestrians and cyclists;

Page 83

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018



Widening of existing shared footway/cycleway along Radley Road from
2m to 3m.

5.81

This is considered to be significant provision and have been identified as being
possible (deliverable) and appropriate to connect the development to the wider
area.

5.82

Officers acknowledge that due to the site’s location, there is limited opportunity
for direct links to the east of the village. This is because the site is bounded by
existing residential development to the east and south.

5.83

Planning policy is clear that obligations and requirements of developments
should only be sought where they are directly required to mitigate the effects of
the application and are fairly related scale and kind and are reasonable in all
respects.

5.84

In order to facilitate a more direct link to the east, this would have to go through
a private residential property. This would involve purchasing a dwelling,
demolishing it and constructing a suitably wide footpath/cyclepath to required
standards.

5.85

The request of the parish council is acknowledged and the intention to seek
additional connectivity is understandably desirable. However, planning policy is
very clear that any obligations for contributions or infrastructure placed on
applications can only be sought where they are necessary to make a
development acceptable in planning terms.

5.86

In addition, representations have been received which indicate that a linkage
between existing residential development would not be supported by some
residents, depending on where it was, due to increase concerns regarding
disturbance and security.

5.87

Taking into consideration the additional cycle and pedestrian provision being
proposed, that the site is connected to both available roads to the north and
south and that there is no specific policy requirement for a link through existing
development to the east, Officers do not consider that this would be a
reasonable or proportionate obligation for the development. It is not necessary
to make the development acceptable in planning terms.

5.88

The site template document requires linkages which are possible and
appropriate. These linkages have been secured. An additional link requiring the
purchasing of a private property in third party ownership would not be
appropriate or possible within the scope of this application.

5.89

The land use parameter plan confirms that there would be area of open space
along the southern boundary of the site, and along some of the eastern
boundary of the site. This means that there would not be private properties and
gardens in these areas. Therefore, the development would not preclude the
future provision of a link to the site from one of these areas if the parish wished
to pursue their intention separately.

Page 84

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.90

Design conclusion
Overall, with the additional information provided Officers are satisfied that the
development is able to come forward at a density and layout which can
respond to the character of the area and integrate with its surroundings without
resulting in harm to the appearance of the locality. All remaining detailed
elements regarding layout, scale, appearance and landscaping would be
covered at a subsequent later reserved matters stage.

5.91

Residential Amenity
The closest existing dwellings to the site are those located to the east, along St
James Road, Ferny Close, Selwyn Crescent and to the south in Foxborough
Road and White Lane. A number of representations have been received from
properties which raise concerns regarding a loss of privacy, overlooking and
disturbance which have been fully considered.

5.92

The illustrative masterplan submitted with this application indicates that the
required back-to-back distance (21 metres) and back-to-side distance (12m)
would be able to be achieved from the new dwellings to those existing
properties adjoining the site. It also indicates additional landscaping along the
boundaries of the site.

5.93

This provides support to show that development can come forward at a
satisfactory distance and with appropriate landscaping to ensure no harmful
impact on amenity.

5.94

A detailed layout showing the exact locations of the proposed dwellings would
be forthcoming to be assessed at any subsequent reserved matters stage. The
layout would be expected to comply with all local plan policy and design guide
requirements to ensure amenity of the properties is protected.

5.95

Due to the site being adjacent to existing residential development, it is
considered reasonable and necessary to seek that construction work be kept to
specific hours: (8am and 6pm on Mondays to Fridays and 8am to 1pm on
Saturdays. No work on Sundays and Public Holidays). A condition to secure
this is recommended.

5.96

The council’s environmental health officer has requested a condition requiring
an air quality screening assessment be undertaken to assess current and
future levels of nitrogen dioxide and that this assessment is used to guide the
arrangement of the site to demonstrate that housing within the development
would all fall within UK air quality objectives for nitrogen dioxide. This condition
is recommended.

5.97

The environmental health team also request conditions relating to
implementation of identified noise mitigation measures and the carrying out of a
phased contaminated land risk assessment. These are also recommended.

5.98

Overall, officers are satisfied that the proposal is able to come forward without
resulting in harm to existing neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking,

Page 85

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

dominance, loss of light, noise or disturbance and that adequate amenity
standards could be achieved within the site.
5.99

Historic Environment and Archaeology
The application site is not within a conservation area, but is adjacent to a
number of listed buildings. The closest of these is the grade II listed building on
the Church Farm site directly adjacent to this application site, to the north-west.
Beyond this, there are listed structures further from the site including at Radley
College and the Church of St James.

5.100

The application is supported by a heritage statement which has been assessed
by the council’s conservation officer who concurs with the conclusion that the
development would lead to less than substantial harm and would have a low
level, minor impact.

5.101

The listed building at the Church Farm site is part of the proposed conversion
and redevelopment of that site for dwellings to be used by staff at Radley
College. The development on this site would have to be designed to sensitivity
assimilate with the associated development and could be achieved through the
detailed design elements at any subsequent reserved matters stage. Lower
building heights and density, traditional materials and boundary treatments and
suitable landscaping will be necessary.

5.102

Detailed elements such as layout, scale, landscaping, building heights,
materials, boundary treatments and lighting would all be very important to a
successful scheme in terms of its integration into the village and heritage
assets. The conservation officer is of the opinion that the scheme is able to be
designed sensitively to achieve this and would look to review these details at
the detailed stage.

5.103

Where less than substantial harm is identified, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal. Officers have reviewed all of the
information and consider that the public benefit of contributing 240 dwellings
towards the plan-led growth of the district in a sustainable location does
outweigh the less than substantial harm in this specific case. This is also taking
into consideration the mitigation which can be built into the layout, appearance,
scale and landscaping of the scheme which would likely reduce the less than
substantial impact to a negligible impact.

5.104

The conservation officer raises no objections to the development subject to
details being provided at reserved matters stage for building heights, densities,
materials, boundary enclosures and landscaping.

5.105

Archaeology
The application is supported by a geophysical survey and archaeological
investigation, which has been assessed by the County Council Archaeologist.
This has revealed the presence of later prehistoric activity on the site.

5.106

The OCC Archaeologist has commented that none of the revealed features are
of sufficient significance as to preclude the principle of development and as

Page 86

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

such planning conditions requiring implementation of a programme of
archaeological work are appropriate. Radley Parish Council support the
inclusion of these conditions.
5.107

With the inclusion of these conditions, Officers are satisfied that the proposal
would not result in damage to any significant archaeological remains or their
settings, in compliance with local and national planning policy.

5.108

Flood risk and drainage
The Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) submitted with the application has
confirmed that the site falls within Flood Zone 1, and as such is at low risk of
fluvial flooding.

5.109

Drainage and flooding are known local concerns and a number of
representations received make reference to these important issues, including
from the Parish Council. Each element is addressed here.

5.110

Surface water drainage
The south-western section of the development site is highlighted at risk of
surface water flooding for extreme events. The FRA confirms that the
development would utilise appropriate SuDS techniques to manage surface
water runoff as close to the source as possible.

5.111

A combination of attenuation and infiltration drainage has been considered for
the site. The site disposal would be into the existing ditch located within the site
to drain to northern part and via infiltration into the ground for the southern part
of the site.

5.112

For the southern area of the site where infiltration is possible, run off from hard
areas will be disposed of via soakaways, permeable paving, swales and
infiltration basin. The northern region will drain into attenuation features (ponds)
with controlled discharge into the existing ditch at equivalent greenfield runoff
rates. It is recommended that additional infiltration tests are carried out before
the detailed design stage to determine the wider suitability of infiltration
drainage across the site and the proposed location of SuDs features.

5.113

All SuDS features (infiltration/storage basins, swales, soakaways, permeable
paving) will be designed to accommodate the 1 in 100 year event plus 40% to
allow for the climate change in line with the latest EA guidance on climate
change allowances.

5.114

The development will not increase surface water run-off and will not exacerbate
flooding in the local area.

5.115

The council’s drainage consultant has reviewed the application and has raised
no objections to the proposed drainage strategy set out, subject to conditions
requiring full details of the drainage strategy, maintenance plan, groundwater
monitoring, survey and clearance of the existing culvert and ditch, a method
statement for groundwater management during construction and foul water
drainage details.

Page 87

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.116

Foul water
Thames Water require further information to be submitted to be able to
determine the waste water infrastructure needs of the development. They have
requested that a condition be attached to any consent granted which states
that no properties should be occupied until confirmation has been provided that
either – all wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the
additional flows from the development have been completed, or a housing and
infrastructure phasing plan has been agreed to allow additional properties to be
occupied. This condition is recommended.

5.117

Thames Water have also highlighted that the development would be located
within 5m of a strategic water main. Thames Water do not permit the building
over or construction within 5m of a strategic water main. They have requested
a condition requiring details of how the water main will be diverted or how the
development will be aligned to avoid potential for damage to the water main.
This condition is recommended.

5.118

Thames Water have confirmed that they do not have any objections in relation
to water network or water treatment infrastructure capacity.

5.119

Drainage conclusion
Overall, officers are satisfied that with the recommended conditions there are
no outstanding flooding, surface water, foul water or water supply concerns
with this development.

5.120

Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
Policy CP24 of the draft Local Plan 2031 requires that applications provide
35% affordable housing. If the full 240 units are achieved on this site, this
would result in the provision of 84 units on site, on a 75% rent to 25% shared
ownership basis. This complies with policy and is acceptable. The housing
team would provide advice on the mix of affordable units and their required
sizes, which will be secured as part of a S106 legal agreement.

5.121

The application has not stipulated any specific market housing mix at this
stage. Officers expect that it should closely reflect the SHMA.

5.122

The SHMA contains estimated figures. Paragraph 7.35 of the SHMA states:
“…we do not strongly believe that such prescriptive figures should be included
in the plan making process and that the “market” is to some degree a better
judge of what is the most appropriate profile of homes to deliver at any point in
time.”

5.123

Officers will therefore seek to secure an appropriate housing mix for the site
which closely responds to the SHMA mix, with suitable justification provided by
the applicant for any deviations. A condition requiring the housing mix to be
secured at reserved matters is recommended.

Page 88

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.124

Financial contribution requests
The NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be sought where they
meet all of the following tests in paragraph 204:
I. Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;
II. Directly related to the development; and
III. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.

5.125

Policy CP7 of the Adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 provides that development
will only be permitted where the necessary physical infrastructure and service
requirements to support the development can be secured.

5.126

The following developer contributions are considered fair and proportionate and
should be secured though a section 106 agreement:

5.127

District Council
Waste/recycle bins
Public art
Street Naming and Numbering
Monitoring
Total

Amount (£)
£40,800
£72,000
£3,216
TBC
£116,016

Oxfordshire County Council
Lodge Hill South facing slips
Public transport – enhance local
bus services
Public transport infrastructure – 4
x solar powered RTI displays
Public transport infrastructure – 4
x standard cantilever bus shelters
Cycle parking provision at Radley
Train Station
Travel Plan Monitoring Fee
Public Rights of Way –
enhancements to local PRoW
routes
Secondary school land - towards
land for a new secondary school
Monitoring
Total

Amount (£)
£840,000
£114,763.20

Overall Total
Overall total per dwelling

£1,188,347.20
£4,951.40

£40,408
£32,920
£7,200
£2,040
£35,000

TBC
TBC
£1,072,331.20

Education
It is a requirement of the site development template in the local plan that this
site contribute towards the expansion of Radley Primary School and expansion
of secondary school capacity in Abingdon.

Page 89

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.128

The application is able to provide mitigation in terms of additional land to be
able to facilitate the primary school expansion as suitable areas of land are
located adjacent to the school that are in the applicant’s ownership. Land
provided for schools is able to be secured via S106 legal agreement rather
than by CIL, in accordance with the adopted CIL regulation 123 list.

5.129

OCC require the applicant to provide 0.54ha of suitable remediated and
serviced land suitable for use and provided to the County Council free of cost.
The County Council’s requirements for school land have been provided to the
applicant and the exact location of the land to be transferred will be part of the
S106 legal agreement discussions; indicative potential options have been
identified by OCC.

5.130

The primary school site is located within the Green Belt. Policies relating to
development in the Green Belt would therefore apply for a planning application
to extend the school. Very special circumstances would need to be evidenced
as part of that application. Without prejudice to any future separate application,
Officers consider that the necessity of the school to expand to accommodate
plan-led growth as part of the adopted strategic site allocations would form an
argument to which weight could be attached, in the planning balance. The
County also have a statutory duty to provide school places, and the NPPF
places great weight on providing new or expanding existing schools. The
expansion of Radley primary school is a community action identified in the
Radley Neighbourhood Plan. While this the plan is not made, Officers have
regard to the intent of the community action.

5.131

OCC have requested a ‘Grampian’ condition to prevent implementation of the
permission until the school expansion has been undertaken, or to at least link
the permissions. This is an unreasonable condition because it is not within the
applicants control as to when the expansion would be carried out. It is not
reasonable or enforceable and therefore fails the requirement to meet all six
tests for applying planning conditions as set out in the NPPF.

5.132

OCC have also indicated that a financial contribution towards securing further
secondary school land would be required. OCC have yet to confirm the
contribution required but this would be secured via the S106 legal agreement
as again it relates to land. If alternative provision towards school infrastructure,
rather than land, is determined to be OCC’s requirement for mitigation then this
would fall to be captured via CIL.

5.133

Community Infrastructure Levy
The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) charging schedule was adopted in
September 2017 and implemented in November 2017.

5.134

CIL is a levy charged on new development in the district; the money raised will
be used to fund infrastructure and support growth. In general, off-site mitigation
would be sought via CIL so items such as off-site leisure, GP/NHS facilities and
community facilities. The on-site elements and direct mitigation elements would
still be sought via a S106 agreement and as such are listed in the table above.

Page 90

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.135

This site would fall within the ‘Zone 1’ charging schedule which would be
£131.33 per square metre of residential development (subject to index linking).

5.136

CIL cannot be calculated at this stage because the layout and scale are not
fixed and therefore the final amount of floor space is unknown. The final
amount would therefore be dependent on the actual amount of built
development; depending on whether all 240 units came forward and how big
they were. It would be calculated as part of any subsequent reserved matters.

5.137

The mitigation to be collected by way of CIL would then have to apply to be
funded from the overall pool of CIL contributions.

5.138

The parish council have expressed concerns with how CIL receipts will be
allocated. In line with CIL legislation, a CIL spending strategy needs to be
adopted by the council. This is currently being worked on. Once it is adopted, it
would set out how CIL would be spent in the District to fund infrastructure to
support development.

5.139

A proportion of the CIL collected by the District Council goes to the Town
Council. At the present time as Radley do not yet have a made neighbourhood
plan, 15% of CIL receipts in relation to development permitted in the parish
would go to the Parish Council.

5.140

Conditions
The recommended conditions are considered to be reasonable, necessary and
related to the development in all respects. Some condition requests made at
this outline stage are more detailed and relevant to the reserved matters stage
and as such would be reviewed as part of any subsequent application.

5.141

The conditions mainly focus on key principle elements of this outline application
such as access and ecology. Some condition requirements may more
appropriate to be covered within the S106 legal agreement such as timing for
delivery of certain highway works, but will be secured either by condition or
legal agreement.

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION

6.2

The application will provide an economic and social role through construction
employment, increased investing in the local economy and providing additional
market and the policy complaint 35% affordable housing. The application will
make contributions towards local infrastructure, whether via S106 or through
CIL. It would provide off-site highway mitigation in terms of improvements to

The application has been assessed on its merits, against the requirements of
the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policies of the adopted Local Plan
2011 and the National Planning Policy Framework. Regard has been given to
the draft Radley Neighbourhood plan but as this is yet to be adopted, it’s
policies hold limited weight. The application site is included as a strategic
allocation in the council’s adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 to contribute towards
the sustainable planned growth of the district.

Page 91

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

local junction designs, new and improved cycle tracks and through a
contribution towards the strategic highway infrastructure project of the Lodge Hill
Slips. It would also provide land to facilities the expansion of the village primary
school.
6.3

In terms of the environmental role, limited harm has been identified with
respects to localised landscape impact, loss of agricultural land and loss of
habitats on the site. Mitigation in terms of a landscape strategy and biodiversity
mitigation has been agreed to alleviate these impacts.

6.4

The application would also result in less than substantial harm to the setting of
identified heritage assets. Mitigation in terms of a landscape strategy and
detailed design, scaling and layout of dwellings has been proposed to alleviate
this impact. Officers consider that the proposed benefits of the scheme as
identified above outweigh the less than substantial harm in this case.

6.5

There are no technical objections to the proposal, subject to appropriate
conditions.

6.6

Overall in the planning balance, the benefits of the scheme particularly in
providing housing towards the District’s plan-led sustainable growth and
provision of contributions towards highways and local infrastructure which will
have local and wider benefits, are considered to outweigh the limited harm that
has been identified. As such, the application is recommended for approval.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan Policies 2011
DC3 – Design against crime
DC5 – Access
DC6 – Landscaping
DC7 – Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9 – The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
DC10 – The effect of neighbouring or previous uses on new development
DC12 – Water Quality and Resources
DC20 – External lighting
H23 – Open Space in New Housing Development
HE4 – Setting of listed buildings
HE8 – Historic Parks and Gardens
HE9 – Archaeology
HE10 – Archaeology
HE11 – Archaeology
NE7 – North Vale Corallian Ridge
NE9 – The Lowland Vale
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part One Policies
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Page 92

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

CP02 - Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
CP03 - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04 - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP05 - Housing Supply Ring-Fence
CP07 - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP08 - Spatial Strategy for Abingdon on Thames and Oxford Sub-Area
CP12 - Safeguarding of land for Strategic Highway Improvements within the
Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-Area
CP13 - The Oxford Green Belt
CP22 - Housing Mix
CP23 - Housing Density
CP24 - Affordable Housing
CP33 - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36 - Electronic communications
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38 - Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39 - The Historic Environment
CP42 - Flood Risk
CP43 - Natural Resources
CP44 - Landscape
CP45 - Green Infrastructure
CP46 - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
CP47 - Delivery and Contingency
Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part Two
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been
subject to public consultation, and will likely be examined in the summer. Until
examination, this Local Plan remains at an early stage of preparation and
accordingly, its policies have limited weight at present. Notwithstanding, the
following policies are material to the consideration of this application:
DP16 – Access
DP17 – Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
DP20 – Public Art
DP21 – External Lighting
DP23 – Impact of Development on Amenity
DP24 – Effect of Neighbouring or Previous Uses on New Developments
DP25 – Noise Pollution
DP26 – Air Quality
DP27 – Land Affected by Contamination
DP28 – Waste Collection and Recycling
DP33 – Open Space
DP36 – Heritage Assets
DP38 – Listed Buildings
DP39 – Archaeology and Scheduled Monuments
DP47a – Delivery and Contingency
National Planning Policy Framework 2012

Page 93

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

National Planning Practice Guidance 2014
Radley Neighbourhood Plan
Radley Parish Council is working on creating a neighbourhood plan. The draft
plan and responses to the consultation on it have been submitted for
independent examination. As the plan has not yet completed the examination
process or proceeded to referendum, its policies hold only limited weight for
assessment.
Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD 2015
Supplementary Planning Guidance
 Planning and Public Art – July 2006
 The Conservation of habitats and species regulations 2010
 The Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000
Equality Act 2010 (Section 149)
Due regard has been paid to the equalities act, specifically in relation to safe
and convenient access for all, including the elderly and school children.
Adequate and safe pavements alongside the development boundary on Church
Road and Whites Lane have been provided.
Human Rights Act 1998
Author:
Email:
Tel:

Holly Bates – Major Applications Officer
holly.bates@southandvale.gov.uk
01235 422600

Page 94

P17/V1894/O - Appendix One - 1of5

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
05.03.18 K.D. C.P.

Revision
R
Updated Site Layout

N

Project

NORTH WEST RADLEY
(240)

Site Boundary

Drawing Title

ILLUSTRATIVE SITE LAYOUT
- 240 UNITS
Date

Scale

Drawn by

Check by

05.12.16

1:1250@A1

M.D.

D.S.

Project No

Drawing No

21979

Revision

R

RG-M-46
10
0

30
20

50m
40

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

Page 95

J:\21000 - 21999\21900 - 21999\21979 - Land Of Radley Road, Site Promotion\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\M Planning\21979 - RG-M-46R - Illustrative Site Layout - 240 Units.dwg - RG-M-46

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

P17/V1894/O - Appendix One - 2of5

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
05.03.18 K.D. C.P.

Revision
J
Update Based on Illustrative Layout

The lnfirmary
Vicarage

Tennis Court
68.8m
St James's
Church

GP

Tra

ck

Radley
C of E Primary School

67.3m

Lower
Shrubbery

LB

Church

Pond

Walk

Radley
Kennel Cottage

Kirkby
Cottages

LA
NE

64.4m

TE
'S

G
ra

W
HI

ve

60.7m
ya

rd

CH
UR
CH

RO
A

D

M
ST JA
AD

O
ES R

White's Plantation

L
TT

LI

LANE

E

WHITE'S

W
HO
E
O
CL
SE

El
Sub

Sta

OWE

E

CLOS

CLOSE

EH
LITTL

FERNY

El
Sub
Sta

en
ow

r
en
Gl

ST
ES

JAM

AD

RO

ENT

RESC

YN C

SELW

ST
ES

JAM
ACE

R
TER

Track

WHIT
A
E'S L
NE

TCB

59.1m

O
BOR
FOX

UGH

D

ROA

ESS

59.2m
LB

HOU

STON

BADGERS COPSE

te

Hidco

GP

Con
ifers

Ashbrook

58.9m

GO

OS

EA

CR

E

Hall
NORFOLK CL

60.0m

OSE

ALE CL

DRYSD
Path

N

Project

NORTH WEST RADLEY
Site Application
Boundary

Amenity Open Space

Residential

Natural Green Space

Spine Street
Indicative Alignment

Green Corridor

Drawing Title

Formal Play

PARAMETER PLAN
LAND USE

Parks & Gardens

Date

Scale

Drawn by

Check by

12.12.16

1:1250@A1

M.D.

D.S.

Project No

Drawing No

21979

Revision

J

RG-M-47
10
0

30
20

50m
40

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

Page 96

J:\21000 - 21999\21900 - 21999\21979 - Land Of Radley Road, Site Promotion\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\M Planning\21979 - RG-M-47J - (PARAMETER)-Land Use Plan.dwg - (1-1250@A1)

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

SE C

P17/V1894/O - Appendix One - 3of5

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn
03.04.18 NB

Ckd
CP

Revision
B
Red Line and Areas Updated

The lnfirmary
Vicarage

Tennis Court
68.8m
St James's
Church

GP
Tra
ck

Radley
C of E Primary School

67.3m

Lower
Shrubbery

LB

Church

Pond

Walk

Radley
Kennel Cottage

Kirkby
Cottages

LA

NE

64.4m

W
HI
TE
'S

G
ra

60.7m

ve
y

ar

d

CH

UR

CH

RO
A

D

D
ROA
MES

ST JA

White's Plantation

E
TL

T
LI

WHITE'S

LANE

E

W
HO
E
OS
CL

El
Sub

Sta

LOSE

WE C
E HO

CLOSE

LITTL

FERNY

El
Sub
Sta

n

len

ro

we

G

ST
ES

JAM
D

A
RO

ENT

RESC
YN C

SELW

ST
ST

E
JAM
ACE

ERR

Track

A
E'S L

WHIT
NE

TCB

59.1m
OAD
GH R

OU
BOR
FOX

ESS

59.2m
LB

EC

S
HOU

STON

BADGERS COPSE
ote
Hidc

GP

Con

ifers

Ashbrook

58.9m

GO

OS

EA

CR

E

Hall
NORFOLK CL

60.0m

LOSE

ALE C
DRYSD
Path

N

Project

NORTH WEST RADLEY
Drawing Title

Outline Application
Boundary

Medium Density

DENSITY PLAN

Low Density

High Density

Date

Scale

Drawn by

Check by

21.02.17

1:1250@A1

J.W.

S.G.

Project No

Drawing No

21979

Revision

B

RG-M-55
10
0

30
20

50m
40

Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Environmental Planning ● Graphic
Communication ● Public Engagement ● Development Economics

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

Page 97

J:\21000 - 21999\21900 - 21999\21979 - Land Of Radley Road, Site Promotion\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\M Planning\21979 - RG-M-55B - Density Plan.dwg - (1-1250@A1)

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

P17/V1894/O - Appendix One - 4of5

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
17.04.18 NB A.D.

Revision
C Updated Layout

The lnfirmary
Vicarage

Tennis Court
68.8m
St James's
Church

GP
Tra
ck

Radley
C of E Primary School

67.3m

Lower
Shrubbery

LB

Church

Pond

Walk

Radley
Kennel Cottage

Kirkby
Cottages

LA

NE

64.4m

W
HI
TE
'S

G
ra

60.7m

ve
ya
rd

CH

UR
CH

RO

AD

MES
ST JA
D
ROA

White's Plantation

E
TL

T
LI

WHITE'S

LANE

E
W

HO
E
OS

CL

El
Sub

Sta

LOSE

WE C

E HO

CLOSE

LITTL

FERNY

El
Sub

Sta

n

we

ro

en
Gl

ST
JAM
ES

AD
RO

NT
ESCE

R
YN C

SELW

ST
ES

JAM
E

RAC

TER

Track

ANE

E'S L

WHIT

TCB

59.1m

H
OUG
BOR
FOX

D
ROA

ESS

59.2m
LB

SE C

HOU

STON

BADGERS COPSE
te
Hidco

GP

Con

ifers

Ashbrook

58.9m

GO

OS

EA

CR
E

Hall
NORFOLK CL

60.0m

DRYSD

SE

O
ALE CL

Path

N

Project

NORTH WEST RADLEY
Drawing Title

Site Application
Boundary

Primary Access

Residential

Indicative Link Road

ACCESS & MOVEMENT PLAN
Date

Scale

Drawn by

Check by

28.02.17

1:1250@A1

J.W.

S.G.

Project No

Drawing No

21979

Revision

C

RG-M-54
10
0

30
20

50m
40

Planning ● Master Planning & Urban Design ● Architecture ●
Landscape Planning & Design ● Environmental Planning ● Graphic
Communication ● Public Engagement ● Development Economics

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

Page 98

J:\21000 - 21999\21900 - 21999\21979 - Land Of Radley Road, Site Promotion\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\M Planning\21979 - RG-M-54C - Access & Movement.dwg - (1-1250@A1)

Offices at Birmingham Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh
Glasgow Leeds London Manchester Newcastle Reading Southampton

P17/V1894/O - Appendix One - 5of5

The scaling of this drawing cannot be assured
Date
Drn Ckd
05.03.18 K.D. C.P.

Revision
B Updated Layout

The lnfirmary
Vicarage

Tennis Court
68.8m
St James's
Church

GP

Tra

ck

Radley
C of E Primary School

67.3m

Lower
Shrubbery

LB

Church

Pond

Walk

Radley
Kennel Cottage

Kirkby
Cottages

LA
NE

64.4m

TE
'S

G
ra

W
HI

ve

60.7m
ya

rd

CH
UR
CH

RO
A

D

M
ST JA
AD

O
ES R

White's Plantation

L
TT

LI

LANE

E

WHITE'S

W
HO
E
O
CL
SE

El
Sub

Sta

OWE

E

CLOS

CLOSE

EH
LITTL

FERNY

El
Sub
Sta

en
ow

r
en
Gl

ST
ES

JAM

AD

RO

ENT

RESC

YN C

SELW

ST
ES

JAM
ACE

R
TER

Track

WHIT
A
E'S L
NE

TCB

59.1m

O
BOR
FOX

UGH

D

ROA

ESS

59.2m
LB

HOU

STON

BADGERS COPSE

te

Hidco

GP

Con
ifers

Ashbrook

58.9m

GO

OS

EA

CR

E

Hall
NORFOLK CL

60.0m

OSE

ALE CL

DRYSD
Path

N

Project

NORTH WEST RADLEY
Drawing Title

Site Application
Boundary

Parks & Gardens

Amenity Open Space

Green Corridor

Natural Green Space

PARAMETER PLAN
OPEN SPACE
Date

Scale

Drawn by

Check by

21.02.17

1:1250@A1

J.W.

S.G.

Project No

Drawing No

21979

Formal Play

Revision

B

RG-M-53
10
0

30
20

50m
40

bartonwillmore.co.uk
Certificate FS 29637

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Map with the permission of the Controller of HMSO. Crown Copyright Reserved. Licence No. 100019279.

Page 99

J:\21000 - 21999\21900 - 21999\21979 - Land Of Radley Road, Site Promotion\A4 - Dwgs & Registers\M Planning\21979 - RG-M-53B - (PARAMETER)-Open Space.dwg - (1-1250@A1)

Offices at Bristol Cambridge Cardiff Ebbsfleet Edinburgh Leeds
London Manchester Newcastle Reading Solihull Southampton

SE C

P17/V1894/O - Appendix Two - 1of1
Radley Parish Council

APPLICATION NUMBER: P/17/V1894/O, LAND TO THE NORTH WEST OF
RADLEY COMMENTS BY RADLEY PARISH COUNCIL, second consultation
Radley Parish Council OBJECTS to this application.

1 SUMMARY
Radley Parish Council (RPC) accepts that the Local Plan designates the North-West Radley
site for housing but objects to this application because the development proposed is not
sufficiently connected to the existing village community and facilities. This is contrary to
Local Plan policy and to what is needed for a thriving integrated community, and in our view
is a fatal flaw.
Our objection was originally set out in our consultation response of 10 September 2017.
Since then the applicants have not taken any action to meet our concern, so our objection
stands.
We also have comments on a number of other issues, on some but not all of which the
applicant has now provided further material. The paragraphs below follow the same
sequence as in our 10 September response, except that the items on CIL, Church Road access
and archaeology are new.
Site connectivity (2)
Sewerage (3)
Cycletrack to Kennington (4)
Sugworth Lane traffic (5)
Construction traffic (6)
Housing mix (7)
Biodiversity (8)
Developer obligations (9)
Community Infrastructure levy (10)
Church Road pedestrian crossing (11)
Archaeology (12)
All our comments are consistent with the policies in the Radley Neighbourhood Plan, the
submission draft of which is currently being considered by the Independent Examiner.
2 SITE CONNECTIVITY
It will be greatly regretted in future years if the development proceeds as proposed, with such
inadequate pedestrian and cycle connectivity to the existing village and key facilities such as
the pub and station. Below are three comments from recent consultations
“Has the feel of an add-on that doesn’t connect properly to the rest of the village.
Residents could live there and never need to come through the village. It would be
1

23 April 2018

Page 100

Radley Parish Council

more difficult for residents to integrate into the community.” (Response 45. Radley
College consultation. March 2015)
“This site will be a separate village as there is no integration into the village as the site
is surrounded by existing houses and there is no way through into the village.”
(Comment 4. Comments from Neighbourhood Plan exhibition May 2016, Part 2.)
“The biggest issue to my mind is that two villages will be created, an east and a west
with no convenient access from one to the other.” (Comment 207. ‘Other concerns’
question. RPC household survey. May 2016.)
The Local Plan places great emphasis on good connectivity, both for the strategic housing
sites and more generally, and we believe would provide a sound basis for the Vale planning
committee to refuse this application.
Our arguments on connectivity were set out in full in our 10 September comments and annex.
Additionally we are annexing now a further note explaining why we believe our views on
connectivity are supported by the Local Plan site templates.
Since 10 September, Radley Parish Council and the Benefice Housing Group have pressed
the applicants to purchase a property which was on the market and would have provided a
good link between the development site and the heart of the village, and said that we would
contribute to the net cost through our own CIL receipts. The applicants have however not
agreed to this course of action and have made no proposals of their own. They have not even,
as we had hoped as a bare minimum, agreed to safeguard land bordering the back of
Foxborough Road gardens that would enable the creation of a link at some future date.
The application should be withdrawn and be replaced by new proposals providing good
walking and cycling connectivity between the new housing and the existing community
and village facilities. If the application proceeds land should be safeguarded to enable
creation of a link in the future.
3 SEWERAGE
RPC have since 10 September seen further details from Thames Water (TW) and now accept
that it should in principle be possible to devise solutions which can accommodate the extra
flow from the North West Radley site. We accept that the existing sewer pipe along Church
Road is adequate. However TW have said that the capacity at the Lower Radley pumping
station is inadequate, They have proposed some extra storage capacity just above the
pumping station. We believe the pumping station and rising main beyond it should be
upgraded, obviating the need for a storage tank. If the storage tank is pursued we believe it
should be as close as possible to the pumping station, not next to residential properties as
currently proposed. We would also like TW to provide evidence that the infrastructure
downstream of Radley is adequate to take the combined extra flow from the North-West
Radley and South Kennington sites.
Planning approval should be subject to a Grampian condition requiring a designed and
costed scheme to be agreed before development commences and all the necessary
enhancements to be completed before occupation.

2

23 April 2018

Page 101

Radley Parish Council

4 CYCLETRACK TO KENNINGTON
RPC welcome the applicants’ proposals as set out on page 2 of the developer’s letter of
11 April. and look forward to these being secured through a legal agreement. We would
like to be consulted on the detailed design.
5 SUGWORTH LANE TRAFFIC
31% of trips to/from the North-West Radley site are forecast to use Sugworth Lane, a narrow
country road much used by cyclists and pedestrians. RPC continue to believe that OCC
should undertake a holistic assessment of additional traffic flows and mitigation options on
the Lane, taking account also of additional traffic from the South Kennington site and the
southbound A34 slips, so that appropriate financial contributions can be secured. We are
disappointed that there has been no apparent progress on this since our 10 September
comments.
The development should contribute to the costs of designing and implementing
measures to address increased traffic on Sugworth Lane.
6 CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC
There has been no response to our 10 September comments and our position remains as
below
The applicants should be required to agree a scheme for controlling construction traffic.
Access to the site should be from White’s Lane not Church Road, and the new White’s
Lane junction and alignment should be delivered before work on the housing site starts.
Construction traffic should not use Sugworth Lane where weight restrictions are in
place. Traffic should be limited to weekday working hours.
7 HOUSING MIX
We note that the applicants have modified the description of their proposal to encompass the
development of 1-, 2-, 3-, 4-, and 5-bedroom dwellings. This clarification is welcome.
8 BIODIVERSITY
We are concerned by a continued lack of clarity in the applicants’ proposals. The original
application contained biodiversity calculations which were shown by the Vale to be flawed
and did not provide sufficient safeguarding for badgers setts on the site. The papers now
submitted acknowledge that there is a biodiversity deficit, but do not contain revised
calculations. While housing lay-out has been amended to provide more space for the
badgers, this is not explained. We would like assurance that the Vales’ countryside officer is
now satisfied with the applicants’ biodiversity calculations and proposals for badgers.
Assuming that biodiversity off-setting is required we believe that this should be in Radley
Lakes, a Conservation Target Area, consistent with Local Plan CP46 and the Radley
Neighbourhood Plan. There is also a more general case for the applicant to provide financial
support for Radley Lakes, matching that of the North Abingdon developer, and they indicated
their willingness to do this at a meeting with RPC on 8 September 2017.
3

23 April 2018

Page 102

Radley Parish Council

The impact of the development on biodiversity needs clarifying. Any biodiversity off-set
required should be applied to the Radley Lakes area.
9. DEVELOPER OBLIGATIONS
RPC are disappointed that the applicants have not responded to the points we made in our 10
September comments, which are updated below.
The applicants’ Planning Statement (page 23) lists heads of terms for developer obligations.
The list, which has not since been amended, has major omissions which need correcting. No
mention is made of the following.






Off-site traffic mitigation. The list needs to include the measures which the applicant
has since said they will deliver: the Foxborough Road/White’s Lane junction redesign
and new and improved cycle tracks. It also needs to include extra cycle storage at
Radley station, on which the applicant has made no response.
Radley primary school land. Although the school building falls to CIL (see item 10
below) the Vale’s Regulation 123 List requires that the land for the primary school
development be provided by the developer.
RPC’s own requests for developer contributions. Our list was tabled in the developer
forum process and was annexed to our comments of 10 September. We recognise that
it includes some items that overlap with those sought by OCC and some that have
since been allocated to CIL, but are concerned that it has not been properly addressed.

Planning approval should not be given until there is satisfactory agreement on heads of
terms for developer obligations, which should include off-site traffic mitigation, land for
Radley primary school expansion and items sought by RPC.
10. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL)
The acceptability of the application depends crucially on the provision of infrastructure,
especially social infrastructure, which under the new CIL arrangements cannot be secured
through developer obligations. There is however still no mechanism for allocating CIL
receipts to the infrastructure providers and hence no assurance can be given that the
infrastructure will be provided.1
This is a matter of great concern to RPC, especially in respect of primary education and
healthcare, both of which are crucial to the community.




Primary education. There is an agreed need to expand the existing school in Radley to
accommodate the extra demand from the North West Radley site, but Oxfordshire
County Council have not been able to give the school governors any assurance that
CIL funding, even at a basic level, will be available.
Primary healthcare. The Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group, in their
comments of 12 April, have expressed great concern about the extra load which the

1

The District Council’s Supplementary Planning Document on developer contributions of June 2017
(para 1.7) says ‘The Council will develop a CIL Spending Strategy setting out how the spending of CIL
funds will be prioritised and administered’. This has however not yet emerged.

4

23 April 2018

Page 103

Radley Parish Council

North-West Radley site will place on the infrastructure which is already under
‘immense pressure’. They have registered an objection to the application.
We recognise that these issues go beyond the remit of Vale planning officers and of the Vale
planning committee, but in the absence of a solution it is difficult to take a properly informed
decision on the acceptability of the application.
Before a decision is made on this application, the Vale District Council should clarify
how CIL receipts are to be allocated, especially for essential health and education
infrastructure.
11. CHURCH ROAD PEDESTRIAN CROSSING
Since our 10 September comments a meeting was held with the applicant on 20 November
2017 to consider the proposed site access onto Church Road and the safety of pedestrians
crossing Church Road towards the primary school. It was confirmed that there would be a
pedestrian crossing, delivered by the applicant, but it was agreed that its positioning should
be left open until related decisions had ben taken about expansion of the primary school,
which could well have implications for walking routes. It was also agreed that the type of
crossing (zebra or puffin) should be left open pending further views from the school. The
crossing needs to be in place before the first houses are occupied.
The applicant should deliver a pedestrian crossing over Church Road between the site
and the primary school on the basis agreed at the meeting of 20 November.
12. ARCHAEOLOGY
Since our comments of 10 September the applicants have submitted an archaeology
evaluation report showing significant new evidence of an iron age settlement on the site. In
their comments of 9 February 2018 OCC have proposed that planning permission should be
subject to detailed condition requiring further archaeological investigation and recording
ahead of development taking place. RPC support this.
A planning condition should be imposed requiring further archaeological investigation
and recording ahead of any development taking place.

5

23 April 2018

Page 104

Radley Parish Council

Annex: additional note by RPC on the requirements for connectivity in the Local Plan
site templates
Local Plan CP5 provides as follows.
Development will be supported at strategic site allocations through a masterplanning
process involving the community, local planning authority, developer and other
stakeholders where they meet the requirements set out within the Development Site
Templates shown by Appendix A and are in accordance with the Development Plan
taken as a whole.
The Plan’s allocation of the North-West Radley site is therefore clearly conditional on
compliance with the site templates. These templates were examined by the inspector along
with the policies in the Plan.
The site templates have five requirements addressing connectivity.
The following two requirements apply to all strategic sites
Access and Highways
Connect to existing footpaths, cycleways and Public Rights of Way wherever possible
to enhance pedestrian permeability and connectivity.
Urban design principles
Design of development should enable a high degree of integration and connectivity
between new and existing communities.
The following three requirements apply specifically to the North-West Radley site
Urban design principles
Include linkages (where possible and appropriate) between the site, the adjacent
housing developments and nearby facilities and services.
Access and highways
Improvements to existing bus stops (Gooseacre and Radley Church) and walking
access routes to these and the rail station may also be required.
Landscape considerations
Carefully design the interface between the existing settlement of Radley and the new
development with improved footpath linkages.
The current planning application includes site access within its scope. We assume that
pedestrian and cycle access are part of that and the requirements of the site templates as to
such access are relevant. If those requirements are not met, then it is difficult to see how the
requirements of CP5 are met.
There is scope for debate about the precise import of the site templates given that similar
things are said in five slightly different ways. However, three points stand out.
6

23 April 2018

Page 105

Radley Parish Council







For connectivity to be addressed five times and under three separate heads (urban
design, access and highways and landscape) indicates it is a central issue and not a
peripheral one;
The wording shows that the requirement for connectivity applies not just where the
College proposals are relatively good (eg to the College, church and primary school)
but also where they are problematical (towards the station, bus stops and existing
housing)
There is no implication that existing connecting links are adequate. The templates
refer to the need for improvements.

We recognise that two of these requirements are qualified by a reference to ‘where possible’
which in turn leads to the need for judgements about what solutions might be considered
‘proportionate’. However, with such importance attached by the templates to connectivity,
and with RPC being so clear that the proposed connectivity is inadequate, we would hope to
see serious consideration of what can be achieved rather than the dismissal of the issue as a
‘nice to have’ which is not required by the Local Plan.

7

23 April 2018

Page 106

Agenda Item 9
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0301/FUL
Land East of Milton Hill Abingdon
MILTON
Variation of condition 2 (approved plans) of
planning permission P16/V2900/FUL
(Development comprising 458 dwellings with
associated public open space, infrastructure
and improved sports facilities. Reservation of
land for future primary school expansion).
Michael Murray
Mr David Bent
Liz Fay

RECOMMENDATION
To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:
1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.
3. Phasing plan.
4. Tree protection method statement.
5. Arboricultural method statement.
6. Sustainable drainage scheme and surface water scheme.
7. Bio-diversity method statement.
8. Construction traffic management.
9. Slab levels (dwellings).
10. Archaeological watching brief.
11. Implementation of programme or archaeological work.
12. Boundary details with Milton United Football Club.
13. Sample materials.
14. Hard and soft landscaping scheme.
15. Acoustic surveys.
16. Details of locally equipped area of play, public seating, bins.
17. Implementation of Thames Water sewer impact study.
18. Visibility splays.
19. Access in accordance with specified plan.
20. New estate roads.
21. Car parking.
22. Permitted development restriction, extensions and outbuildings.
23. Pedestrian access between football pitch and changing facilities.
24. Hours of work.
1.0
1.1

ADDENDUM REPORT
This addendum report is produced as an update to the previous report that
was produced for consideration by Planning Committee on 9 May 2018. It
was deferred from that committee meeting at the applicant’s request, for them

Page 107

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

to address the objection raised by the Forestry Officer and the concerns raised
by the Landscape Officer. The applicant has subsequently made
amendments to the layout of the site in response to the issues identified by
officers.
1.2

The report to 9 May planning committee recommended refusal of the
application, as it was considered the proposal would result in unsatisfactory
standards of living accommodation for the plots adjoining the south-western
boundary, and would have an unacceptable impact on the character and
appearance of the local landscape through both the provision of unsatisfactory
boundary treatments as well as through the pressure to remove or prune the
poplar trees which are subject to a Tree Preservation Order.

1.3

The amended plans have altered the layout of properties along the southwestern boundary of the site adjacent to the poplar trees, altering the
boundaries of plots and dwelling types to move the proposed dwellings away
from these trees and attempt to address concerns raised by officers. A plan
showing the south-western boundary is attached at Appendix 1. This report
concentrates on the amendments that have been made, and should be read in
conjunction with the report to 9 May planning committee, which is attached at
Appendix 2.

1.4

Design and Layout
The proposed boundary treatments to the southern end of the site have been
amended to provide a wire mesh fence accompanied by vegetation. The
proposed boundary treatments are now acceptable and the plans comply with
principle DG29 of the Design Guide.

1.5

Residential Amenity
Plots 14-18, 19, 45-46, 52, 53, and 57-59 along the south-eastern boundary of
the site are located in close proximity to a row of poplar trees situated just to
the south-east of the site. The amended plans have moved these properties
away from the boundary from a distance of approx. 7m to 15m, although the
properties are still located closer to the boundary than was the case on the
extant permission (approx. 25m). The gardens for the plots have also been
adjusted and are now significantly larger. The applicant has provided plans
which show the level of shading that will be cast by the poplar trees during the
summer time between 10am and 2pm, which gives shade up to 21m from the
boundary during this time. On a site visit carried out at approx. 12:30pm in
mid-May the shade extended to 14m.

1.6

It is likely that the existence of the poplar trees will have an impact on the use
of a significant proportion of the amenity space for these plots, caused by the
proximity of these trees and the resulting shadowing. However, the shading
plans and evidence from the site visit indicate that the majority of plots will have
parts of the garden that receive light during the middle of the day. I have also
had consideration to the size of the amenity space provided, which is
significantly larger than the 100m per 3+ bed property required by principle
DG63 of the Design Guide.

Page 108

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

1.7

A concern was also raised in the 9 May committee report regarding the
overshadowing of habitable space within the properties. The amended layout
has altered somewhat the angle of the plots to the south-western boundary,
with the result that key living areas no longer face in the direction of the poplar
trees but instead the properties habitable rooms are directed more towards the
east and/or west. This, combined with locating these properties further away
from the boundary, is likely to result in more light to habitable rooms. Overall, I
feel that the level residential amenity provided within both the dwellings and
their gardens will be acceptable, and in accordance with Local Plan 2031 Part
1 CP37, Local Plan 2011 DC9 and the principles of the Design Guide.

1.8

Landscape and Visual Impact
The information submitted by the applicant has made it clear that the amended
plans can be delivered without damage to the poplar trees, and the Council’s
Tree Officer is satisfied that this is possible.

1.9

The Council’s Tree Officer continues to raise an objection regarding the
proximity of development to the poplar trees. Although it is my assessment
that living standards within the dwellings and amenity space provided would be
at acceptable levels, there pressure to remove the trees to provide greater
levels of light and views over the open countryside is likely to remain. There
remains the risk of a perception of insecurity given the height of the trees and
the propensity of poplar trees to shed small branches, which although unlikely
to land on the roofs of the proposed dwellings would still fall within gardens.
The Council’s Tree Officer continues to advise that the amended layout is not
compatible with the long-term retention of the trees.

1.10

The applicant has suggested that any potential occupants of the housing on the
south-eastern boundary would agree to purchase or live in the property having
viewed and understood its relationship to the poplar trees. This is accepted but
I also take into consideration that the full impact of the trees is unlikely to be
understood until the occupants move into the properties. I consider that the
risk to these trees is reduced following the amendments to the plans, however,
some risk remains.

1.11

Should these trees be lost in the future, the proposed boundary treatment of a
mesh fence with shade tolerant vegetation would provide an alternative edge to
the development which, while I do not suggest would compensate in any way
for loss of the trees, is a boundary treatment that would be considered
acceptable under different circumstances.

1.12

The landscape and visual impacts need to be balanced against the benefits of
the development. There is now a reduced risk that the amended plans would
lead to the loss of a row of poplar trees of significant value, leaving a
development edge with a landscaping treatment that is not unacceptable. On
balance, I consider that the substantial benefits brought by this development in
terms of the delivery of housing, a scheme that is otherwise improved and
financial contributions to deliver infrastructure to support the development, are
sufficient to warrant taking the risk that these trees may be lost in the future.

Page 109

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

1.13

Financial contribution requests
This S73 application would introduce a liability for CIL on the increase in
floorspace from the extant permission, calculated at £319,391.33.

2.0
2.1

CONCLUSION

2.2

It is recommended that planning permission be granted subject to conditions.

The proposed amendments to this application would result in a standard of
residential amenity that can be supported. Although there may remain some
pressure to remove trees that are the subject of a Tree Preservation Order, I
consider that the risk of this is now reduced. Satisfactory arrangements for
boundary treatments are now provided.

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;
CF1 - Protection of Existing Services and Facilities
CF2 - Provision of New Community Services and Facilities
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP02 - Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
CP03 - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04 - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP05 - Housing Supply Ring-Fence
CP07 - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP15 - Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area
CP17 - Delivery of Strategic Highway Improvements within the South-East
Vale Sub-Area
CP22 - Housing Mix
CP23 - Housing Density
CP24 - Affordable Housing
CP33 - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36 - Electronic communications
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38 - Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39 - The Historic Environment
CP40 - Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42 - Flood Risk
CP43 - Natural Resources
CP44 - Landscape
CP45 - Green Infrastructure
CP46 - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
DC3 - Design against crime
DC4 - Public Art
DC5 - Access
DC6 - Landscaping
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
H23 - Open Space in New Housing Development
HE10 - Archaeology
HE9 - Archaeology

Page 110

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

L1 - Playing Space
NE9 - The Lowland Vale
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015

Case Officer: Liz Fay
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 111

Appendix 1: Amendments made to south-western boundary

Page 112

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0301/FUL

Land East of Milton Hill Abingdon
MILTON
Variation of condition 2 (approved plans)
of planning permission
P16/V2900/FUL.(as amended by
drawings received 19 April 2018).
(Development comprising 458 dwellings
with associated public open space,
infrastructure and improved sports
facilities. Reservation of land for future
primary school expansion).
Michael Murray
Mr David Bent
Liz Fay

RECOMMENDATION
Refusal of Planning Permission for the following reasons:
1 : Landscape and visual impact
The proposal would result in damage to, pressure to remove or prune, trees which are
subject to a Tree Preservation Order. Loss or damage of these trees would have an
unacceptable impact on the character and appearance of the local landscape. The
proposal would provide close-board fencing along the southern boundary, providing
an unacceptable and insensitively designed edge to the development. As such the
proposal is contrary to Core Policy 44 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policy NE9
of the Local Plan 2011 and the Council’s adopted Design Guide.
2 : Residential amenity
That the proposed development would result in unsatisfactory standards of living
accommodation for occupants of the proposed dwellings at plots 14, 15, 16, 19, 45, 46,
53, 57, 58 and 59, as the proximity and location of trees in relation to these plots would
result in over-shadowing of habitable rooms and rear gardens. Contrary to Local Plan
2031 part 1 core policy CP37, Local Plan 2011 policy DC9 and Design Guide principle
DG63.

1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
This application is submitted under Section 73 of the Planning Act and seeks
to vary condition 2 (approved drawings) of planning permission
P16/V2900/FUL.

Page 113

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

1.2

This application is referred to planning committee because of its size.

1.3

Application reference P16/V2900/FUL granted planning permission for a
development comprising 458 dwellings with associated public open space,
infrastructure and improved sports facilities. It also reserved land for the future
expansion of St Blaise primary school. There was an accompanying S106
agreement which secured monies towards education, transport infrastructure
including a footbridge and cycleway over the A34, leisure, social and
community uses. A full list of contributions secured is provided at paragraph
5.42.

1.4

A site location plan is provided below:

1.5

The majority of this application is on land allocated in the Local Plan 2031 Part
1 as a strategic housing site. (An area of land immediately south of the site
access from Milton Hill is outside the site allocation).

1.6

North of the site is existing housing in Milton Heights. To the east and south
are open farm land, horse paddocks and stables. To the west are houses at
Appledore Cottages and Bramley Cottage. Milton Hill Bowls Club, Milton
United Football Club and St Blaise primary school are to the north and west.
The site falls from north to south and gently to the east.

1.7

Consent is sought to vary the approved drawings, altering the layout, mix and
dwelling house types. The submitted drawings include details of landscaping
and materials. The site layout plan from extant permission P16/V2900/FUL is
attached as Appendix 1. Extracts from the application submission are
attached at Appendix 2. The houses in the revised layout largely front a
series of interconnecting streets and large open spaces with existing tree lines
and hedgerows retained except for access. Some small closes are provided to
the south of the site, adjacent to the countryside. Pedestrian connections to
existing streets in Milton Heights is achieved at the northern boundary, and a

Page 114

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

pedestrian footbridge will link the site over the A34 to allocated site Valley
Park.
1.8

No change is proposed to the vehicular access to the site from Milton Hill, or to
measures to decrease traffic speed and improve pedestrian safety along
Milton Hill including footpath widening, provision of bus stops, traffic calming
and extension of the 30mph speed limit.

1.9

The application site is subject to a S106 agreement securing contributions for
the district and county councils. The previously agreed 106 matters will apply
to any S73 application granted in respect of the extant application, as the
S106 agreement provides for a S73 application. A deed of variation would not
be required.

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS ON
A summary of the responses received to the current proposal is below. A full
copy of all the comments made can be seen online at
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk
Milton Parish
Support:
Council
 Fully Supports planning application
P18/V0301/FUL.
Harwell Parish
Council

Natural England
Environment
Agency
Highways
England
Thames Water

Comment:
 Wishes to prevent coalescence of Milton &
Harwell.
 Suggest provision of footpath link from
development to Harwell.
No comments
No comments
No objection
Comment:


Oxfordshire
County Council
Single
Response

Countryside
Officer
Contaminated
Land

Ensure Grampian style condition imposed
requiring submission of drainage strategy.
Comment:
 Ensure transport related planning conditions
imposed on permission P16/V2900/FUL are
carried over.
 Submission of revised vehicular tracking plans
(now provided).
 Internal roads to be constructed to an adoptable
standard.
No comments on revised layout.
No objection

Page 115

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

Air Quality

No comments

Environmental
Protection

Comment:
 Assessment of acoustic environment and impact
on suitability of site should be carried out.
 Mitigation measures should be identified.
 Seek provision of alternative housing mix

Housing
Development
Waste
Management
Officer (District
Council)

Comments:
 Confirmation of bin storage points required for
plots 288-291, 292-295, 296-299, 320-323, 324327, 328-331, 332-335
 Communal collection points required for any
private drive longer than 25m
 Updates to refuse vehicle tracking required
(provided)

Drainage
Landscape

No comments
Comments:
 Close proximity of existing trees on western
section of southern boundary to proposed
development will cause shading of gardens and
properties, putting the long term retention of those
trees at risk.
 Site boundaries not adequately defined, especially
at Plots 1, 59,60,61,63, 64 and along the tree belt
on the south western boundary.
 No softening of south-eastern area of housing,
west of the attenuation basin
 Excessive areas of timber knee rail
 Planting plans could be simplified, with use of
planting areas rather than spreading species
across the site.
 Flats should have private amenity space rather
than sitting in public open space.
 Details of street lighting and visibility spays
required to inform details landscape plans.
 Concern over provision of LEAP within Phase 3.
 Additional space required for hard surface tree pit.
 Additional seating should be provided within public
open spaces.
 Additional plans required to provide details of
LAPS, LEAP and a Landscape Implementation
and Management Plan.

Forestry Team

Comments:
 Close proximity of existing trees on western
section of southern boundary to proposed
development will cause shading of gardens and

Page 116

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018



properties, putting the long term retention of those
trees at risk.
There will be significant pressure from future
occupants for the management of these trees.

Oxfordshire
Clinical
Commissioning
Group
Milton Hill
Bowling Club &

Objection:
 Objects to development, as was previously
unaware of the plans.

MHBG
(Management
Ltd) (Owners of
Milton Hill
Bowling Club
land)
Milton United
Football Club

Support:
 Impressed by landscape strategy

Local Residents

Support (1):
 New layout works well.
 Expansion of play area and new link supported.
 Good level of open space provided.
 Important than expansion of school goes ahead.

Support:
 Proposed style of housing and layout sits better in
the environment and will be less intrusive

Support:
 Application is an improvement on the extant
application

Object (1):
 Wants to ensure fence provided to boundary of
site with 24 Mackenzie Avenue.
 Object to row to trees to south norther boundary
adjacent to Mackenzie Avenue properties.

3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P17/V2536/FUL - Approved (27/11/2017)
Construction of a vehicular access junction and associated works including
landscaping, drainage, service road.
P16/V2900/FUL - Approved (26/10/2017)
Development comprising 458 dwellings with associated public open space,
infrastructure and improved sports facilities. Reservation of land for future
primary school expansion (Amended plans including amended site plan)

Page 117

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

P14/V0513/FUL - Other Outcome (06/08/2014)
Variation of Condition 1 of Planning Permission P13/V0145/O to extend the
time limit for the submission of a Reserved Matters application.
P14/V0848/O - Approved (01/08/2014)
Erection of 18 dwellings, internal road and paths, general works and open
space. (Renewal of permission granted in 2013 under P13/V0145/O)
P13/V0145/O - Approved (05/09/2013)
Erection of 18 dwellings, internal road and paths, general works and open
space
3.2

Pre-application History
P15/V2562/PEJ – Pre-application advice given (09/12/2015) for a residential
development to provide 458 dwellings. The advice offered may be summarised
as follows:
 Principle of housing acceptable
 Landscape and visual impact should be addressed through an
assessment
 The housing mix should be compliant with the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment 2014
 Judgement on residential amenity was reserved
 Comments on the layout were given including increasing internal
connections of streets, proposal showed good open space provision,
make site entrance more attractive, make less car parking dominant,
relate houses to the open spaces, protect and retain existing boundary
vegetation, more street planting to be provided
 Take account of highway advice and consider cumulative impacts
 Agree a scheme of archaeological investigation with the County
archaeologist
 No adverse impacts for any conservation area or listed building
 Biodiversity recommendations from the phase habitat survey should be
incorporated into the scheme
 Site is flood zone 1. Sustainable drainage scheme needed
 Consult Thames Water on foul drainage capacity
 Site is grade 2 agricultural land
 Acoustic assessment needed
 S106 agreement needed to secure affordable housing and infrastructure
improvements
 Comments expressed are an officer opinion only and not binding on the
council
P17/V2235/PEM – Pre-application advice given (15/09/2017) for the
construction of vehicular access junction, service road and temporary
compound in addition to a separate temporary construction access to facilitate
wider development. Advice also provided on two amended layout options.

Page 118

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

Access advice
 No objections to separate application for access details
 Liaise with Bowls Club and Milton Unity football club re. location of
access construction compound.
 Consider impacts of construction vehicles on residential amenity, noise
and air quality.
 Address any implications for archaeology.
Amended layout advice
 Principle of submitting application to amended plans under S73
considered acceptable
 ‘Option 2’ which provided a crescent of dwellings fronting an open space
is preferred.
 Consider neighbours, especially if impact is increased in relation to
extant permission.
 Dwellings behind houses in Milton Heights should be two-story at most.
 Tall trees on the southern boundary need to be protected with houses
sufficiently distant to avoid overshadowing and prevent pressure in the
future. Trees are an important component in helping to break views of
the development.
 Avoid back fences abutting the countryside in accordance with the
Design Guide.
 Football field and School land must remain inside red line area.
Comments expressed are an officer opinion only and not binding on the council
3.3

Screening Opinions
P15/V2073/SCR – screening opinion on development of up to 460 dwellings,
public open space, primary access from Milton Hill with emergency / pedestrian
/ cycle link from Lambe Avenue, land reserved for future school expansion and
associated infrastructure. EIA not required

4.0
4.1
5.0
5.1

5.2

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
As set out above, a screening opinion has been issued advising a development
of this scale in this location is not considered EIA development.

MAIN ISSUES
The relevant material planning considerations in relation to the determination of
this application are:
 The principle of varying conditions
 Changes to condition 2 (approved drawings)

The principle of varying conditions
When planning permission is granted, development must take place in
accordance with the permission and conditions attached to it, and with any
associated legal agreements. New issues may arise after planning permission
has been granted, which require modification of the approved proposals, and

Page 119

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 an application
can be made to vary or remove conditions associated with a planning
permission.
5.3

Condition 2 – changes to the approved drawings
This condition agreed the plans by which the development would be
implemented. The proposed changes to the approved drawings will result in
revisions to the market housing mix, the house types, design and layout of the
site. It is therefore necessary to consider whether the impact of these changes
would be acceptable. Should the impacts be considered acceptable, the
proposed changes to the approved drawing list are acceptable.

5.4
5.5

Housing Mix
Core policy 22 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 expects a mix of house types that
is in accordance with the SHMA unless an alternative approach can be
demonstrated to be more appropriate through the Housing Register or where
proven to be necessary due to viability constraints.

5.6

The affordable housing mix provided in the extant permission is the same as
the mix proposed in this application, and is therefore acceptable. An
alternative housing mix has been suggested by the Council’s housing team,
however, it would not be appropriate to require the applicant to vary the mix
from that which has already been agreed.

5.7

The market housing mix provided in the extant permission, provided in the
layout submitted within this application, is shown in the table below:
Market Housing Mix
1-bed
Extant
8
Proposed 0
SHMA
17

2-bed
59
38
64

3-bed
136
140
127

4+ bed
94
119
89

Total
297
297
297

5.8

The market housing mix is somewhat less compliant with the SHMA estimate
than the mix provided as part of the extant permission. However, it is
considered that this issue should be balanced against the proposed layout and
use of character areas, as set out in the Design and Access Statement
addendum. The applicant has raised concerns that one-bedroom properties
are not viable in this location. The alterations to the market housing mix allow
for the provision of distinctive character areas and variations in density across
the site to respond to its context. I consider the revised SHMA mix to
acceptable, taking into account the site location and density of development
proposed.

5.9

Design and Layout
Core policy 38 of the Local Plan requires proposals for housing allocations to
be accompanied by a site wide design strategy including a masterplan and
design and access statement. This application builds on the design and access
statement submitted under the extant permission P16/V2900/FUL, and its
accepted principles, and seeks to revise the detailed site layout and building

Page 120

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

designs. A Design and Access Statement addendum explains how the
proposed layout has been developed.
5.10

The extant permission provided a range of pedestrian and vehicular access
routes, including vehicular access from Milton Hill, a pedestrian link to Lambe
Avenue to the north, and funding and connection to a footpath and cycle link
across the A34 to North West Valley Park. These connections will continue to
be provided as part of the amended plans.

5.11

Urban design principles of the site allocation include:
 mitigating visual impact from the A4130
 designing roads to permit the operation of bus routes through the site
 not prevent the school from expanding its facilities due to proximity of
buildings or overlooking/child protection issues. Development should be
set back from the shared boundaries
 affordable housing should be evenly distributed across the site and not
used as a buffer between the A34 and market housing

5.12

Views from the A4130 are limited through topography, distance and screening
including that on the site boundaries, between the site and the A4130.

5.13

Roads are designed to allow a bus to access and circulate around the site
should a bus operator choose to do so.

5.14

Land is identified for the school expansion. The housing is away from the
school boundaries and would not result in any unreasonable overlooking of
existing school buildings or play areas. A small number of dwellings would
adjoin or be separated by a road from the proposed school expansion site. In
this respect the amended plans do not differ from the extant permission and
this is considered acceptable.

5.15

Affordable housing is distributed across the site and is not used as separation
between the A34 and market houses.

5.16

The amended plans comply with the urban design criteria of the site allocation.

5.17

This is a greenfield site that relates to Milton Heights which itself is an area of
20th Century housing of mixed design, household types and a density of in
excess of 30 dwellings per hectare (dph). There is no distinctive house design
to follow. The extant permission provided two and some two and a half story
dwellings, with house types with simple balanced elevations that were
considered reasonable. The amended house types proposed are all of two
stories, and provide a comparable level of design and detail. There are a
number of affordable maisonettes, which are similar in form and elevation to
the proposed dwellings, and which provide individual front doors to their
occupants. Affordable housing types provide similar levels of floorspace to the
extant permission. The amended house types are considered acceptable.

5.18

The amended layout uses the same road hierarchy as the extant permission.
Connectivity of vehicular access through the site remains similar to that

Page 121

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

provided previously, with curvatures and changes in material which seek to
naturally lower traffic speeds. The connectivity and legibility through the site for
pedestrians is improved. Of particular note is the provision of a direct
pedestrian walking route through the site from the access road off Milton Hill to
the new footbridge that will be provided over the A34. There is also a more
legible pedestrian link between the proposed A34 footbridge and St Blaise
school. In providing these links the amended layout responds well to existing
and proposed desire lines, in accordance with Principles DG23 of the Design
Guide.
5.19

The number of units proposed, and the density of the overall scheme, remains
the same as the extant permission at 18dph, or 24dph with the open spaces
deducted. The is in accordance with Landscape Capacity Report 2013 which
forms part of the evidence base for the Local Plan 2031 Part 1. However,
where the extant permission provided a largely similar density across the site,
with a slightly lower density along the rural edge, the amended layout aims to
more fully respond to the contexts at different parts of the site. Hence the
northern areas of the site closest to the existing settlement at Milton Hill is
provided at 38dph (excluding POS), similar to the density of adjacent dwellings.
At the southern areas of the site adjacent to the countryside the density is
much lower at 17dph. This accords with principle DG26 of the Design Guide.

5.20

Dwellings front the roads, providing active street frontages. The proposed
house types include specifically designed “corner plots” which provide active
frontages to two elevations. These have been utilised at the more prominent
corners within the site. The applicant has also added windows to the side
elevations of the more standard house types, where these are on corner plots.
In this respect the house types and layout respond well to principles DG27 and
DG53 of the Design Guide.

5.21

Parking is provided in close proximity to the property it serves. Parking is
provided to the side of dwellings in the lower density areas, and to the side or
front of dwellings in the more dense part of the site towards the north. Parking
does not dominate the streets as the impact of parking on the street scene is
softened by the use of street trees and hedgerow planting. This accords with
principles DG33 of the Design Guide.

5.22

Focal points and visual stops are created by the use of distinctive house types
in key locations. The amended plans provide clear gateways at all three
access points. Clear and legible links are provided through the site for
pedestrians and cyclists, with the street hierarchy allowing for the use of streets
as social spaces. The proposal accords with principles DG30, DG31 & DG32
of the Design Guide.

5.23

Open spaces and play areas amount to approximately 7.5ha which is in excess
of the 15% open space expected by saved policy H23 of the Local Plan 2011.
The open spaces provide protection to existing trees and hedges crossing the
site and forming the field boundaries. The open spaces are well connected and
provide pedestrian and cycle access across them. The LAP and LEAP
continue to be provided in similar locations to the extant permission. The open

Page 122

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

space continues to provide a green link travelling east-west across the site, but
has been reorganised so that less of the open space is adjacent to the primary
street, which will make it more attractive for use by the public. All the open
spaces play areas have good levels of surveillance.
5.24

The proposed boundary treatments to the southern end of the site would
provide close board fencing along those parts of the southern boundary that
are adjacent to dwellings. This would not be in accordance with principles
DG29 of the Design Guide, which requires boundary treatments adjacent to the
open countryside to make use of landscaping to soften the built form, and
which expressly states that close board fencing is not acceptable at the
development edge.

5.25

With the exception of the southern boundary treatment, the appearance, scale
and layout of the amended plans are considered to be an improvement when
compared to the extant permission on this site, and compliant with core policies
37 and 38 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and the adopted Design Guide. The
proposed southern boundary treatment of close board fencing is not acceptable
when considered against core principle DG29 of the Design Guide, and this
point is considered further in the section considering landscape and visual
impact below.

5.26

Residential Amenity
Two storey houses in Havers Avenue and MacKenzie Avenue back on to the
site. Most of those in Havers Avenue are separated from the site itself by a
vehicular access to rear parking and some hedge planting on the site
boundary. Dwellings in Mackenzie Avenue have more open boundaries to their
rear gardens which back on to the site.

5.27

The south facing windows in Havers Avenue dwellings are at least 31m from
the north facing windows in proposed dwellings. In the case of MacKenzie
Avenue proposed dwellings are all in excess of 21m distant.

5.28

Appledore Cottages and Bramley Cottage have windows in their rear
elevations facing the site. There is also an annexe in the grounds of Bramley
Cottage. This annexe is approximately 24m from plots 9 and 10 and their rear
facing windows. Bramley Cottage itself and the four Appledore Cottages are all
over 35m from proposed dwellings.

5.29

The Design Guide recommends a minimum distance of 21m between facing
habitable windows to prevent unreasonable overlooking. In all cases the
proposal meets this guidance and the proposals will not result in unreasonable
overlooking or an overbearing impact. Representations were received on the
extant permission and in response to these amended plans asking that trees
are avoided behind Mackenzie Avenue houses to prevent overshadowing. The
submitted landscaping plans do show some trees located in this area but the
applicant has indicated their willingness to adjust the tree planting to address
individuals concerns, and further adjustments can be made if necessary as part
of the discharge of a landscaping condition.

Page 123

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

5.30

Assessments of construction dust, noise from the A34 and the football pitch
floodlighting were considered during the assessment of the extant permission,
and found to be acceptable to residential amenity. The amended plans do not
vary significantly in this respect.

5.31

Plots 14-18, 19, 45-46, 52, 53, and 57-59 along the south-eastern boundary of
the site are located in close proximity to a row of poplar trees situated just to
the south-east of the site. The properties are located significantly closer to the
boundary than was the case on the extant permission. I consider this issue
more fully below, however, it is likely that the existence of the poplar trees will
have an impact on residential amenity, caused by the over-shadowing and
proximity of these trees. It is not possible to fully assess the impact as full
details of the extent of the canopies of these trees, along with the amount of
shading they provide, has not been submitted alongside this application.
However, it is probable that the impact is significant and possible that the
dwellings may be located below the canopies of the trees. In the absence of
evidence to the contrary, it is not possible to conclude that the amended plans
comply with saved policy DC9 of the Local Plan 2011 and Design Guide
principle DG63.

5.32

Landscape and Visual Impact
The site is located in the Lowland Vale landscape. The Oxfordshire Wildlife and
Landscape Study defines the site as part of the ‘Lowlands Village Farmland’
regional character area. It describes the landscape in this area as large, open
arable fields with some surviving orchards. It recognises the shelter belts of
trees. The landscape strategy for this character area includes strengthening
field patterns by planting gappy hedges and minimising intrusive land uses by
judicious planting of trees to screen the development and integrate it into the
countryside.

5.33

The landscape sensitivity of the site was considered ‘medium’ by the
Landscape Capacity Report 2013 and the landscape value was considered
low. Circumstances have not changed.

5.34

The impacts of the extant permission on views from the A4130, Grove Road,
the A34 and public rights of way to the south and east of the site, and on the
wider landscape, were considered to be acceptable. The extant permission
was found to have no impact on the North Wessex Downs AONB, located
1.4km to the south of this site. The amended plans have a similar level of
impact and protection of existing landscape features to the extant permission
with one exception, the potential impact on the poplar trees located on the
southern boundary of the site, and the proposed boundary treatments along
this boundary.

5.35

The poplar trees are located to the south east of the site, just outside the site
boundary, and are some 28m tall, with a radius of 11.75m. They are
considered by both the applicant’s Arboricultural Report and the Council’s Tree
Officer to be of significant value, and the Council has served the owner of the
trees with a Tree Preservation Order. The extant permission provided a strip of
landscaping to the north of the poplar trees, within the public realm, with an

Page 124

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

access road beyond followed by dwelling which fronted towards the trees with
gardens to the north. In doing so, the layout for the extant permission avoided
over-shadowing of properties and gardens by the poplar trees and most
dwellings were provided at least 23m from the southern boundary.
5.36

The amended plans provide dwellings which back onto the southern boundary,
and the poplar trees. These dwellings are detached properties on relatively
large plots, but they are still located in close proximity to the boundary, with the
closest dwellings being only 7m from the boundary. The applicant’s
Arboricultural Report supplied with the extant permission indicated that the root
protection areas for these trees extends approximately 10m into the site. The
applicant’s Arboricultural Report has not been updated to provide detailed
information on how the proposed layout would impact on the poplar trees,
although the applicant has stated that it would be possible to build the
proposed dwellings without damaging the trees this statement has not been
supported by evidence. My assessment of the amended plans is that
significant parts of the proposed dwellings would require construction within the
area proposed for protection by a Tree Protection Barrier within the applicant’s
Arboricultural Report. It is not clear from the information provided that it is
possible to carry out the construction of the dwellings without damaging the
roots of the poplar trees.

5.37

The Council’s Tree Officers has raised an objection regarding the proximity of
development to the poplar trees, and the Council’s Landscape Officer has also
raised concerns. There is the risk of conflict between the occupants of plots to
the south-eastern boundary and enjoyment of the available garden space, as
well as the perception of insecurity given the height of the trees and the
propensity of poplar trees to shed small branches. The Council’s Tree Officer
has advised that the amended layout is not compatible with the long-term
retention of the trees.

5.38

The applicant has suggested that any potential occupants of the housing on the
south-eastern boundary would agree to purchase or live in the property having
viewed and understood its relationship to the poplar trees. However, the full
impacts on the trees are unlikely to be understood until the occupants move
into the properties. With a radial branch distance of 11.75m, and properties
located 7m from the boundary, it cannot be ascertained from the information
provided by the applicant that the properties would not be located directly
below the tree canopy.

5.39

Any properties built underneath, or in close proximity to, to the canopy of these
trees, will be affected by leaf loss blocking gutters, falling branches and
considerable overshadowing of the property and its garden. This will result in a
lack of light to both the open-plan kitchen/dining/family rooms that are provided
to the rear of these properties, and which would be likely to be used by the
occupants as their main living space, and the rear-facing first floor bedrooms.
This will lead to considerable pressure to prune or remove the trees.

5.40

The landscaping scheme for the site, and the Landscape and Visual Impact
Assessment supplied by the applicant, rely on the poplar trees retention.

Page 125

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

Should these trees be lost in the future, there is insufficient room within the site
to enable satisfactory landscaping and treatment of the development edge, with
no room for landscaping to soften the built form. The amended plans propose
the use of close board fencing along the south-eastern boundary, which is not
an acceptable boundary treatment in any case, but would be highly
inappropriate were the poplar trees to be lost. This would have a detrimental
impact on the Lowland Vale landscape area and would be in conflict with the
landscape strategy for this character area.
5.41

The landscape and visual impacts need to be balanced against the benefits of
the development. There is a significant risk that the amended plans would lead
to the loss of a row of poplar trees of significant value, leaving a development
edge that provides no landscaping treatment, contrary to core policy 44 of the
Local Plan 2031 Part 1, saved policy NE9 of the Local Plan 2011 and principle
DC29 of the Design Guide. This development does bring substantial benefits;
however, I do not feel these are sufficient to compensate for the potential
landscape and visual impacts.

5.42

Financial contribution requests
The NPPF advises that planning obligations should only be sought where they
meet all of the following tests in paragraph 204:
I.
Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms;
II.
Directly related to the development; and
III. Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development.
Policy DC8 of the Adopted Local Plan provides that development will only be
permitted where the necessary physical infrastructure and service
requirements to support the development can be secured

5.43

A section 106 agreement relating to the extant permission has secured the
following contributions, which will also apply to any grant of planning
permission under S73:
District Council
Pressure washer & vacuum cleaner for
Milton Bowls Club
Underlay & carpet for Milton Bowls Club
Removable winter cover for Milton Bowls Club

Milton United football club pavilion
Milton United football pitch provision
Community hall in Milton Parish
Street naming for the proposal
Bin provision for this development
On site public art
Cricket pitch & pavilion – Milton or
Steventon Parishes

Page 126

Amount (£)
£2,000
£36,000
£2,600
£307,074
£140,000
£425,473
£6,640
£77,860
£137,400
£45,994

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

Rugby pitches & pavilion – Milton Parish
or Harwell village or Harwell Campus
Tennis – Milton or Harwell Parishes
Sports hall - Didcot
Swimming pool - Didcot
AGP – MUFC, on site or in Didcot
Youth sport – Milton Parish
S106 monitoring
Total
Oxfordshire County Council
Footbridge over A34
Speed limit extension (Potash Lane)
Pedestrian crossing on the A4130 near
junction with Potash Lane/Milton Hill
New bus shelters to replace existing on
A4130
Bus services in the area
Travel plan monitoring
School travel plan monitoring
St Blaise Primary School expansion
Provision of St Blaise school expansion
land
Contribution towards land for new
secondary school in Didcot
New secondary school at Didcot
New SEN school in Didcot
Didcot Library
Adult day care
Total
Overall Total
5.44
6.0
6.1

6.2

£36,470
£6,773
£181,460
£221,866
£31,318
£28,750
£8,702
£1,667,630
Amount (£)
£1,966,515 (Dec 2016)
£2,600 (cost)
£80,000
£45,000 (Dec 2016)
£364,110 (Dec 2016)
£2,040 (Dec 2016)
£1,240 (Dec 2016)
£2,707,377 (2Q16)
To be provided by the
applicant – direct
delivery
£229,163 (Feb 2016)
£2,037,000 (3Q15)
£174,000 (3Q15)
£111,426 (3Q15)
£13,200 (3Q15)
£7,733,671
£9,401,301

In addition, this S73 application would introduce a liability for CIL on the
increase in floorspace from the extant permission, calculated at £301,461.

CONCLUSION
This application seeks to vary condition 2 which agreed the plans by which the
development permitted under application reference P16/V2900/FUL would be
implemented. The proposed changes to the approved drawings will result in
revisions to the market housing mix, the house types, design and layout of the site,
and my consideration of the proposals has therefore been limited to these areas
and the potential impacts of the amendments proposed.
The design and relationship of the proposal to neighbours is acceptable, and in
accordance with the Design Guide. The proposed mix of market housing is
somewhat less compliant with the SHMA than previously proposed, but I
consider the amended plans to be acceptable in this regard, in order to achieve

Page 127

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

a level of internal layout design which is goes beyond the minimum required by
the Design Guide.
6.3

My main concern relates to the likelihood that this development would lead to
the loss of a row of protected trees located just outside the site that are of
significant value, and the potential impact of this loss of the landscape.
Landscape and visual impact is inevitable when a greenfield site is allocated for
housing, however, it is not possible to fully assess the impacts of this scheme
on the basis of the information provided. It is likely that the impacts of the
amended scheme will be significantly greater than the extant permission. I
therefore consider that the level of impact is beyond what is necessary to deliver
the benefits of the development of this site.

6.4

A secondary concern is the lack of appropriate landscaping and boundary
treatments to the southern boundary of the site, at the development edge. This
inappropriate treatment of the development edge would be exacerbated should
the loss of the poplar trees occur.

6.5

The extant permission provides significant financial contributions towards
community, leisure, recreation and sport improvements. However, these
benefits are not considered sufficient justification to depart from policy or to
permit a development that would otherwise be considered unacceptable.

6.6

It is recommended that planning permission be refused.
The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 (SOLP 2011) policies;
CF1 - Protection of Existing Services and Facilities
CF2 - Provision of New Community Services and Facilities
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP02 - Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
CP03 - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04 - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP05 - Housing Supply Ring-Fence
CP07 - Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
CP15 - Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area
CP17 - Delivery of Strategic Highway Improvements within the South-East
Vale Sub-Area
CP22 - Housing Mix
CP23 - Housing Density
CP24 - Affordable Housing
CP33 - Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP36 - Electronic communications
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP38 - Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
CP39 - The Historic Environment
CP40 - Sustainable Design and Construction
CP42 - Flood Risk

Page 128

Appendix 2
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 9 May 2018

CP43 - Natural Resources
CP44 - Landscape
CP45 - Green Infrastructure
CP46 - Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity
DC3 - Design against crime
DC4 - Public Art
DC5 - Access
DC6 - Landscaping
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
H23 - Open Space in New Housing Development
HE10 - Archaeology
HE9 - Archaeology
L1 - Playing Space
NE9 - The Lowland Vale
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015
Case Officer: Liz Fay
Email: liz.fay@southandvale.gov.uk

Page 129

Agenda Item 10
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
APPLICATION TYPE
REGISTERED
PARISH
WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
SITE
PROPOSAL

P18/V0744/RM
RESERVED MATTERS
22.3.2018
EAST CHALLOW
Yvonne Constance
Crest Nicolson (Chiltern)
Land at Park Farm East Challow
Reserved Matters application following Outline
Approval P16/V0652/O (as varied by application
no. P17/V2884/FUL) for the appearance,
landscaping, layout and scale. Development of
up to 88 dwellings including 40% affordable
housing, landscaping and other associated
works with all matters reserved with the
exception of access.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that reserved matters be approved subject to
conditions summarised as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Approved plans.
Relocation of proposed beech trees.
Landscaping implementation and retention.
Road surfacing.
Parking spaces to be provided before occupation.
Boundary details to be provided before occupation.
Working hours to be Monday to Friday 0730 to 1800 and 0800 to
1300 Saturday. No works on Sundays or public holidays.

The planning conditions and s106 agreement for the outline permission
remain applicable.

1.0

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1

The application is presented to committee as East Challow Parish
Council objects to the proposal.

1.2

The application seeks approval of reserved matters following the grant
of outline planning permission for up to 88 dwellings on this site. The
reserved matters are appearance, landscaping, layout and scale.

1.3

This reserved matters application is not an opportunity to revisit the
principle of development which is established by the outline permission.
Access to the site from the A417 and via a right hand turn lane
staggered junction has been approved (application no.
P17/V2884/FUL). Surface water and foul water drainage strategies are
the requirement of planning conditions attached to the outline

Page 130

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

permission and these do not need to be submitted or agreed at this
stage.
1.4

The site location is shown on the plan below. The land falls from south
to north. North of the site are dwellings and open fields. The A417 and
housing form the western boundary with the A417 to the south with
fields beyond. A house and open fields form the eastern boundaries. A
public footpath adjoins the north and east boundaries to the site. The
proposed site layout is attached as Appendix 1.

2.0

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS AND
REPRESENTATIONS ON CURRENT SUBMISSION

2.1

A summary of the responses received to the current proposal is below.
A full copy of all the comments made can be seen online at
www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk
East Challow Parish Council
Object. Their concerns may be summarised as follows:
 Following consultation with villagers the outline scheme showed 21
parking spaces within the site for use by villagers. This was an ideal
alternative to the on-street parking which still continues along the A417
outside The Park and a benefit for existing residents.
 Concerned the existing lay-by parking beside The Park and A47 may
not be available should this development proceed
 Disappointed the developer has not engaged with the Parish Council
since the outline permission was granted and this does not seem to be
in the spirit of the NPPF.
Local residents and interest groups
Five letters of objection have been received. The concerns expressed may be
summarised as:
 Lack of visitor parking on the site - only 5 shown on the plan and entirely
on road. With the shortage of parking in East Challow adjacent to the
site the County standards and the Vale Design Guide should be applied.

Page 131

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018














Unsafe parking could affect emergency vehicle access
Previous development has provided additional parking for the benefit of
the community
Unclear if the required amount of 15% open space is provided without
the inclusion of attenuation ponds and SUDS. (Officer note. Over 2ha of
open space is provided after subtracting the attenuation ponds. This
exceeds the 0.95ha expected by saved policy H23).
Deficiency in social facilities such as St Nicholas primary school – no
s106 money has been made available towards the school expansion.
(Officer note: The outline permission secures over £350,000 towards St
Nicholas primary school improvements and expansion)
Lack of village amenities to support the development including an
infrequent bus service. The proposal makes no provision for village
amenities e.g. a village shop
Not sustainable development
Two clumps of social housing are shown and whilst this does not exceed
the 15 social houses in a clump as set out in the Design Guide this
seems to be contrary to the spirit of community integration and contrary
to Core Policy 24.
Access for construction vehicles would not be acceptable adjacent to a
neighbouring dwelling. (Officer note: construction access is subject to
agreement through condition 13 on the outline permission).
Houses should be moved closer to the A417 with rear access provided

Oxfordshire County Council
Highways and Drainage
No objection.
 All dwellings will be provided with allocated on plot parking. It is noted
that there are only a few unallocated on-street parking spaces provided
for visitors but this is offset by an over-provision of on-plot parking which
averages at 2.84 spaces per dwelling. However, there does appear to
be the opportunity to accommodate additional visitor spaces.
 In some locations, while the service vehicle can complete necessary
manoeuvres it would do so only by encroaching beyond the adoptable
highway. These encroachments into private driveway areas are not
preferable.
Archaeology
No objection.
 A written scheme of investigation has been submitted and approved and
the mitigation will proceed in line with the agreed methodology.
Housing team
Comments:
 The demand for two-bedroom shared ownership properties is much
higher than for one-bedroom properties, therefore the overall affordable
housing mix may be more suitably delivered with a higher proportion of
two-bedroom properties than is indicated in the SHMA guidance.
 The mix of affordable housing should reflect the significant demand for
two-bedroom units for both rented and shared ownership tenures with a

Page 132

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018






reduction in one-bedroom accommodation and an adjustment to the
number of larger homes.
Where possible, parking courts should be avoided with parking spaces
provided either on-plot or adjacent to the properties.
The affordable housing should be distributed evenly across the site to
avoid any concentration in any part of the site and to assist with
ensuring that the affordable housing is indistinguishable from the market
housing.
Plots 45-49 should be broken up to avoid concentration of children at
one part of the development.

Thames Water
No objection.
 In terms of water supply they seek a condition to ensure adequate
infrastructure improvements are provided prior to occupation of the
dwellings.
Drainage engineer
No objection.
 Conditions on the outline permission remain applicable.
Countryside officer
No objection
 The proposals which should ensure that the development complies with
Policy CP46 and delivers a net gain for biodiversity.
Conservation officer
Support
 The appearance, landscaping, scale and layout for the development are
acceptable. The materials and contextual details respond to housing in
the village and landscape details will retain the rural setting of the listed
buildings.
Landscape officer
Generally satisfied with the proposals. Has some comments which could be
addressed by condition:
 North west corner of the site proposes mixed native woodland and tree
planting. There is an existing property located adjacent to this boundary.
The trees should be moved further to the south and the planting
adjacent to the fence line changed to native shrub planting rather than
woodland planting.
 A smaller tree species than beech should be proposed next to
Greenacre.
 A Landscape Maintenance and Management Plan is required to ensure
the long term establishment and management of the landscaping
 Can planting be implemented on top of the proposed drainage tank?
 The connection from this tank to the offsite headwall passes close to the
trunk of a retained tree, has this been covered in the Tree Protection
assessment?

Page 133

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018







Seats should be provided within the wider areas of public open space
Details of the design of the play area will be required but can be covered
by condition.
The play area is located within 10m of a property boundary. As this area
will have equipment it would be better to move it future away from the
adjacent properties. (Officer note: condition 5 on the outline permission
requires details of the play area to be submitted)
There are a number of high retaining walls needed to accommodate the
level changes with walls 2.6m and 2m in height proposed. Reducing the
height of the proposed fencing on top of the walls, or having a
combination of fencing and trellis would reduce the impact of the fencing
on top of the retaining walls.

Forestry Officer
No objection
 Most of the trees across the site are retained. The greatest impact will
be the creation of the access but the quality of the trees within the
hedgerow indicates that a large proportion consists of Elm regeneration
that is either dead or in decline. The result is an intermittent
unmaintained hedgerow that could be replaced with a much better
species mix to ensure a longer life expectancy and an increasing
contribution to the visual amenity of the area.
 The proposed landscape scheme shows substantial replacement trees
to comprise a shelterbelt, set within the public open space along the
boundary, to offer appropriate levels of screening when the site is
viewed from outside and to give future occupants a measure of visual
separation from the adjacent carriageway.
 The submitted method statement includes a tree protection plan and a
condition requiring compliance with its recommendations should be
attached to any forthcoming planning permission.
Environmental protection team (noise)
No objection
 Subject to the implementation of the scheme of acoustic mitigation
submitted.
Health and Housing (air quality)
No objection
 No significant adverse air quality impacts are predicted.
Waste Management
No objection.
 Ensure vehicles are unable to park outside the parking bays marked for
plots 36 and 37 as we are required to use this are off the highway to turn
the collection vehicle.

3.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

3.1

P17/V2884/FUL - Approved (15/03/2018). Variation of Conditions 9, 10,
11 and 15 and removal of Condition 8 of P16/V0652/O (as amended 18

Page 134

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

January 2018). This application permitted a right hand turn lane into the
site instead of a roundabout previously approved under the original
outline permission.
3.2

P17/V2031/RM – Undetermined - Reserved Matters application in
respect of Land at Park Farm, East Challow. Seeking approval of the
appearance, landscaping, scale and layout for the development.
Pursuant to the permitted outline permission P16/V0652/O:
Development of up to 88 dwellings including 40% affordable housing,
landscaping and other associated works with all matters reserved with
exception of access.

3.3

P17/V2084/DIS - Approved (29/09/2017). Discharge of condition 15 Wildlife Protection on application ref. P16/V0652/O - Development of
up to 88 dwellings including 40% affordable housing, landscaping and
other associated works with all matters reserved with the exception of
access.

3.4

P17/V2082/DIS - Approved (30/08/2017). Discharge of condition 8 Archaeology on application ref. P16/V0652/O - Development of up to
88 dwellings including 40% affordable housing, landscaping and other
associated works with all matters reserved with the exception of
access.

3.5

P16/V0652/O - Approved (27/10/2016). Development of up to 88
dwellings including 40% affordable housing, landscaping and other
associated works with all matters reserved with the exception of
access.

4.0

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT (EIA)

4.1

The proposal comprises fewer than 150 dwellings but the site exceeds
5ha in size and is therefore, above the thresholds set in Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment)
Regulations 2017. A screening opinion previously provided for a
proposal for up to 92 dwellings on this site opined it was not EIA
development. Considering government guidance in paragraph 58 of the
NPPG on thresholds that may trigger the need for EIA this negative
opinion remains.

5.0

MAIN ISSUES

5.1

The main planning considerations relevant to the assessment of this
application are the reserved matters which are:
1.
Appearance
2.
Landscaping including impacts on trees
3.
Layout
4.
Scale

Page 135

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Appearance
5.2

East Challow is a mix of house types and designs of varying ages with
no one form dominating. There is no set pattern of dwelling form or
arrangement. Housing densities are variable. Adjacent to the site are
large dwellings including barn conversions and higher density
developments at The Park and The Orchard which comprise smaller
dwellings. Dwellings do tend to have simple forms and massing being
rectangular under pitched roofs. Materials are mixed comprising
red/brown brick, render and some natural stone.

5.3

The Design Guide 2015 expects the form and massing of new
development to be kept simple with a rectangular floor plan and pitched
roof. It does allow more complex forms such as ‘L’ shaped buildings.

5.4

The proposed dwellings comply with the Design Guide in having simple
forms with rectangular floor plans, pitched roofs and balanced
elevations. Some ‘L’ shaped dwellings are provided to turn corners with
side windows providing surveillance of side roads and open spaces.
The proposals accord with Design Guide principles DG52 and DG53.

5.5

Proposed materials are red/brown multi stock bricks with some
rendered elevations under pitched slate grey coloured tiled roofs. The
appearance of the dwellings is considered to respond positively to the
Design Guide and general forms of dwellings and materials used in the
village.

Landscaping
5.6

The A417 boundary is defined by a hedge mainly comprising elm which
is in part dead and in a declining state. Part of the hedge needs to be
removed to allow access. The hedge to the east of the access through
to the eastern boundary is proposed for removal on grounds of sound
arboricultural management. This is acceptable and allows the
opportunity for its replacement with a much better species mix to
ensure a longer life expectancy and an increasing contribution to the
visual amenity of the area. A native woodland mix of trees and shrubs
is proposed as a replacement and this is acceptable. Two beech trees
are proposed close to the boundary with Greenacre (an adjacent
house). The species of tree is acceptable but should be moved away
from the boundary given the height and spread that these trees can
reach. A condition can secure this. An ornamental cherry tree is
adjacent to the northern boundary. The arboricultural statement and
drainage strategy plans shows work beyond its root protection zone.
Landscaping uses species native to the area. The proposal accords
with saved policy DC6 of the Local Plan 2011.

Layout
5.7

Affordable housing and housing mix
The affordable housing percentage agreed at outline stage and
reflected in this submission is 40% with a tenure mix of 75% affordable
rent and 25% shared ownership. The affordable housing unit size mix

Page 136

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

proposed and requested by the Vale housing team are shown in the
table below:
No. of
beds
Proposed

Housing
team

1

2
20
5

3 (5
person)
3
4

3 (6
person)
3
0

Rent
S/O

0
0

Rent
S/O

0
0

20
5

4
4

2
0

5.8

There is a unit difference between the 3 bed rented units and this small
difference is considered acceptable. There is no planning justification
for seeking to avoid a concentration of housing that may accommodate
children. Parking is not provided in courtyards. The affordable dwellings
are in two clusters of 15 dwellings with one cluster in the west of the
site and one cluster to the eastern part of the site, and with five
affordable dwellings set slightly away from the eastern cluster. They
are reasonably distributed across the site. The affordable dwellings are
indistinguishable from the smaller market dwellings. The proposal is
considered compliant with core policy 24 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.9

The market housing unit size mix proposed is:
No. of beds
Proposed
SHMA

1
0
3

2
11
11.5

3
21
22.5

4+
21
16

5.10 This mix is reasonably SHMA compliant and is considered acceptable
and in accordance with core policy 22 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1.
Layout
5.11 A single access road serves the site with cul-de-sacs leading off it.
There is a connected road within the centre of the site. Houses face the
roads including the A417 providing enclosure and opportunities for
landscaping including frontage hedges and tree planting. The
boundaries of the site are mainly free of development to retain
openness particularly against the adjacent fields. Dwellings turn
corners by providing windows on the two street elevations. Other
dwellings create focal points and visual stops. This provides continuity,
enclosure, legibility and landmarks. Open spaces amount to over 2ha
(excluding attenuation ponds) and this is more than the 15% expected
by saved policy H23 of the Local Plan 2011. Dwellings front open
spaces providing passive surveillance. A play area is also provided as
required by the outline permission. Paths are proposed linking the
development to the public footpath adjacent to the site and a proposed
pavement on the A417 frontage.
5.12 A grade II listed barn exists adjacent to the western boundary of the
site. It is well screened by and existing hedge and small trees. Open

Page 137

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

space separates the barn from the proposed houses. The rural setting
of this listed building is retained.
5.13 Parking is set close to dwellings as expected by the Design Guide
being to the sides of dwellings or in some cases their frontage. Parking
does not dominate the streets. The proposal accords with principles
DG27, 28, 29, 31, 33, 39 and 44 of the Design Guide, core policies 37
and 38 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 and policy H23 of the Local Plan
2011.
Parking
5.14 Representations from two local residents and two interest groups and
the Parish Council request a village parking area on site to meet the
need of existing villagers particularly occupants of dwellings fronting
the A417. They point out that such a parking area was shown on the
plans accompanying the outline permission. I am also advised that
village parking on all major development is an expectation of a
proposed policy in an emerging Neighbourhood Plan for East Challow.
5.15 This proposal does not include village parking. It was not a requirement
of the outline permission. Furthermore, I can give very little weight to an
emerging Neighbourhood Plan policy that has not been subject to
formal consultation or Examination. In addition, a parking area adjacent
to 10 The Park as shown on the illustrative plan with the outline
permission would be detrimental to living conditions, as this house has
a conservatory exposed to the site. In any event, the council could not
ensure such parking would be retained exclusively for village parking.
5.16 Core policy 35 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 requires adequate car
parking to be delivered on site in accordance with County Council
standards. These standards provide a means for calculating allocated
and unallocated parking spaces for a proposed development.
5.17 Applying the parking standards results in the following parking
requirements:
 176 allocated spaces
 37 unallocated spaces
5.18 The proposal includes space for 278 on plot (allocated) spaces
(including garages) and 5 unallocated spaces. Overall 70 more parking
spaces are provided compared to the total required by the standards.
5.19 I note the parking standards allow the number of unallocated spaces to
be reduced in the interests of good design. Core policy 37 of the Local
Plan 2031 Part 1 seeks to ensure the needs of traffic do not undermine
the quality of places. The adopted Design Guide acknowledges parking
is rarely aesthetically pleasing and poor design can have a significant
impact on the appearance of streets and spaces. It expects a balanced
approach to achieve convenient parking close to households whilst
reducing the dominance of car parking in the street scene. Providing an

Page 138

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

extra 32 unallocated parking spaces would result in parking dominating
the street scenes and erode open spaces.
5.20 The highway authority has no objection. It suggests more visitor
parking could be provided but that there is an over provision of parking.
Surplus on plot parking can be used by visitors to occupants of the
dwellings.
5.21 There is no development plan policy expectation that this proposal
should provide more parking than required by this development. Should
Members consider it necessary, more unallocated parking could be
provided throughout the site and secured by planning condition.
However, in this case I consider adequate car parking is provided as
proposed and I give greater weight to good design, as expected by the
NPPF. I also note a parking lay-by beside the A417 will remain for
village parking. Overall, the proposal complies with saved policy DC5 of
the Local Plan 2011 and core policy 35 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1.
Residential Amenity
5.22 The Design Guide recommends a minimum distance of 21m between
facing habitable windows to prevent unreasonable overlooking. In the
only cases of proposed dwellings facing existing dwellings (The Barn
and Park Farm to the north of the site), distances are at least 55m or
more. New tree, shrub and hedge planting is also proposed on the site
boundary. In the case of the neighbouring house called Greenacre the
distance from proposed dwellings are a minimum of 45m (to plot 88). In
respect of the existing house at 10 The Park, plot 19 is side on to its
garden at a distance of 8m and with a first floor landing window. As this
is a window to a non-habitable room overlooking is considered
acceptable. 10 The Park also has a conservatory facing onto the site.
The distance from the nearest house (plot 19) is 22m although any
views would be at an oblique angle. Open space and planting is
proposed adjoining the conservatory. In all instances there is no
unreasonable overlooking or overbearing impact on neighbouring
residents even considering the higher level of the site. The proposal
complies with the Design Guide and policy DC9 of the Local Plan 2011.

Scale
5.23 Scale relates to the height, width and length of each building proposed
within the development in relation to its surroundings. Neighbouring
dwellings vary in scale. The proposed dwellings have heights that vary
from approximately 8.3m to 9m. Lengths and widths of the dwellings
also vary from some 7.5m to 12m. The scale of the dwellings is
consistent with the variations in heights, widths and lengths of
dwellings on adjacent sites and within the village.

6.0

CONCLUSION

6.1

This application has been considered in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Page 139

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

6.2

The reserved matters are appearance, landscaping, layout and scale.
Access was approved at outline application stage as was the principle
of up to 88 dwellings on this site.

6.3

The site can accommodate 88 dwellings whilst providing acceptable
design, adequate public open space including a play area, without
detriment to the character of the area and living conditions of
neighbours. On plot parking exceeds expectations. Unallocated parking
is limited and this is agreeable to secure good design. There is no clear
justification for parking to meet needs other than this development.

6.5

It is recommended that this proposal is approved

The following planning policies have been considered:
VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031: PART 1 – CORE POLICIES 1,
2, 3, 4, 7, 20, 22, 23, 24, 33, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 42, 43, 44, 45, 46
VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2011 – SAVED POLICIES DC3,
DC5, DC6, DC7, DC9 H23, HE9, HE10, NE9 and NE10
DRAFT VALE OF WHITE HORSE LOCAL PLAN 2031 PART 2 –AND
DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICIES 2, 16, 21, 23, 25, 28, 31 and 33
VALE OF WHITE HORSE DESIGN GUIDE 2015
NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK
PLANNING PRACTICE GUIDANCE
Case Officer – Adrian Butler
Email – adrian.butler@southandvale.gov.uk
Tel – (01235) 422600

Page 140

2
4

This drawing is the copyright of Roberts Limbrick Ltd
and should not be reproduced in whole or in
part or used in any manner whatsoever without
their written permission.
Do Not scale off this drawing, use only figured
dimensions and report any discrepancies or
omissions to the Architect immediately.

rev. date

9
11

B

02.02.2018 Size of the roads updated (next
to plots :56-53; 35-36; 17-20;
13-16; 1-4) ; BCPs location
updated; Visitor parking spaces
updated; Shape and location of
the Proposed Attenuation
Feature updated;

Area next to plots 77-82
updated to Client's and
Engineer's comments;
21.02.2018 Updated to Client's and LPA's
comments;

13
15

14
16

Shelter

A

7

LB
TCB

THE ORCHARD

Hall

description

Lych Gate

St Nicholas Pl

1 2

St Nicolas Church

Appendix 1

East Challow

87.2m
1

h
Pat

The Park
Proposed
Attenuation Feature

5

Bin
Collection
Point

CALDW
AS
WOLV
AS

38

35
37

39

36

39

36

34

35

37

37

WOLV
OPP

35

36

35

36

34

40

28
31

30

41

33

32
28

29

28

33

41

29

29

ADDER
AS

31

30

30

WOLV
OPP

ADDER
OPP

41

KING
AS

KING
OPP

29

CHUR
OPP

ELSE
OPP

4

30

7

40

33

33

ELSE
AS

30

29

41

Talbott Hall
House

CHUR
OPP

33

32

40

34

1

39

40

34

35

32

Park Farm

39

37

36

31

28

39

ADDER
AS

38

37

34

28

38

1

CHUR
OPP

Parkside

38

Pond

38

Par
Terrakce

6

The Barn

32

31

The Park
42

58

57

58

ELMS
AS

KING
AS

61

43

46

45

46

AFF3B5P
AFF3B5P
OPP
AS

45

66

66

68

68

10

09

10

11

11

EL
OP MS
P

09

08

68

68

09

50

66

08

W
O
AS LV

AFF2B4P AFF2B4P
OPP
OPP

10
07

06

07

ELMS
OPP

49
48

Challow Park

B4P AFF2B4P
AFF2B4P AFF2
AS
AS
AS
51

50

67

07

06

CH
OP UR
P

12

11

67

WOLV
OPP

12

12

51

50

68

07

13

08
07

13

49

HUNT-T2
AS

14

AFF2B4P
AFF3B5P
AS
AS

14

67

47

63

63
64

64
65

65

49

47

52

52

66

48

62
62

ELMS
AS
ELMS
OPP

ELMS
AS
ELMS
OPP

53

47

60

60

KING
OPP
26

26

26
25

25

25

53

53

AFF3B6P
AFF3B6P
AS
AFF3B6P
AS
AS

61

AFF2B4P AFF3B5P
OPP
OPP

for
Parking tion
ta
Sub S

vis

54

51

52

09

vis

46

48

Bin
Collection
Point

13

55

B4P
AFF2B4P AFF2 P
OP
OPP

54

15

14

TETBURY
OPP

H
U
N
AS T-T
2

AFF2B4P AFF2B4P
AS
AS

15

15

65

69

54

69

69

64

55

69

69

63

45

56

B4P
AFF2B4P AFF2
AS
AS

24

55

22

56

22

21

HUNT-T2
OPP

56

21

vis

24

59

70

16

Posts

20

20

23

23

59

70

70

16

16

62

70

Challow Lodge

60

61

CALDW
AS

17

4P
FF2B
B4P A OPP
AFF2 P
OP

17

25

42

57

58

59

71

Bin
Collection
Point

70

18

B4P
AFF2S
A

18

2B4P
AFF2B4P AFF2B4P AFF
OPP
OPP
OPP

AFF3B5P AFF2B4P
AS
AS

17

43

44

71

26

18

71

19

B4P
AFF2S
A

19

Proposed
Sub
Station

19

23

22

21

20

24

71

Page 141

27

Proposed
Attenuation
Feature

43

ELMS
AS

57

27

44

27

ELMS
AS

42

27

44

AFF2B4P
OPP

10

AFF3B5P
AFF3B5P
AS
AS

ADDER
OPP

71

06

05

06

04
vis
vis

97.8m

04

TETBURY
OPP
77
76

74

Greenacre

72

76

75

107.8m

73

79

72

80

79

79
79

80

EL
OP MS
P

83

EL
M
AS S

Bin
Collection
Point

O
SO PP
ME

KI
OPNG
P

HUNT-T2
OPP

01

01

73

74

72

01

77

76

76

02

84

85
84

80

86

85

86

87

87

87

88

17
4
A

81

A

84

81

81

7
41

82

HU AS
NT
-T

2

OAD

LR

HIL

-a
e
d
i
H

-way

76

01

78

t
wep

75

02

03
02

75

02

03

KIN
AS G

GE

tral
s
i
M

03

78

AD
OPDER
P

78

03

AFF2B4P AFF2B4
P AFF2B4P
AS
AS
AS

04

73

77

78

KIN
AS G

Challow Park Studios
74

05

05

ds
n
i
W

HU
N
OP T-T
P 2

06

03

77

KI
OPNG
P

KI
OPNG
P

HED

na
n
a
Viv

72

05
04

82

86

87

88

87

ELSE
AS

84

88

85

83

KING
OPP

KING
AS

82

88

86

CHUR
OPP

k
n
a
h B ge
g
i
H
ta
t
o
C

88

83

ELSE
OPP
82

85

WOLV
OPP

83

project

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
EAST CHALLOW
client

CREST NICHOLSON
drawing

102.2m

Mokundange

LB

111.0m

Goodlake Arms

PH

status

Gr

5

llowges
i
W tta
Co

mbe H

The Estates Office, 25 - 26 Gold Tops,
Newport, NP20 4PG

LANDSCAPING INDICATIVE ONLY.
REFER TO LANDSCAPE DRAWINGS
FOR MORE DETAILS.

ill
MS

T. 03333 405 500
mail@robertslimbrick.com
www. robertslimbrick.com

Key:

The
Croft

Registered Office : England No. 06658029

Rented Units (26No. Units)

scale

Shared Ownership Units (9No. Units)

1:500 @ A0

date

author
Nov 2017

1

th)
a
P
y(

The Carriage Building, Bruton Way,
Gloucester, GL1 1DG

Letco

1

a
W
y
dre
l
i
h

2

C

bl

ROBERTS LIMBRICK LTD

e
1

Ga

o
C
e

PLANNING

Drain

s
ampi en

g
tta

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT
-

0

10m

20m
50ft

30m
100ft

40m

50m
150ft

100m
200ft

300ft

project

drg no.

8579 PL203

rev.

B

Agenda Item 11
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P17/V3039/FUL
8 Elms Road, Botley, Oxford, OX2 9JZ
NORTH HINKSEY
Demolition of the existing house at 8 Elms Road
and creation of nine new apartments, as a
development of the extant permission on the
site P17/V1418/FUL (As amended by plans
and details in accompanying schedule received
29 March 2018) (As amended by plan received
2 May 2018_revised bin annotation).
Debby Hallett
Emily Smith
Box Clever Development
Sarah Green

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission be
delegation to the head of planning subject to:
I.

The completion of a legal agreement to secure an amendment to the
Traffic Regulation Order to remove eligibilty for resident parking
permits, and

II.

The following conditions:

Standard
1. Commencement three years - full planning permission.
2. Approved plans.

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Prior to occupation
Access and parking in accordance with plan.
Landscaping as approved under P18/V0391/DIS.
Refuse storage provided in accordance with plans.
Cycle stores provided as approved under p18/V0391/DIS.
Foul and surface water to be in accordance with details to be
approved under P18/V0391/DIS.
Travel information packs to be submitted and approved.

Compliance
9. Materials as approved under P18/V0391/DIS.
10. Construction delivery times between 9.30am and 2.30pm only.
11. Tree protection as approved under P18/V0391/DIS.
1.0

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1

This application is referred to planning committee as it was originally classified
as a major application and the parish council object.

Page 142

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

1.2

The site is in Elms Road, Botley as shown on the location plan below.

1.3

To the rear and side of the site is Botley Primary School and the medical
centre. The opposite side of the road is characterised by two storey residential
properties being terrace, semi-detached and detached in nature.

1.4

Planning permission was granted last year by planning committee for the
demolition of the exisiting house and the erection of 8 flats on the site. The
flats were designed to be contained within one building of two storeys,
designed to look like a series of terrace properties from the front. The site was
to be accessed via the existing shared access, with 9 parking spaces to the
rear of the site. Extracts of the approved scheme are attached at Appendix 1.
Works have commenced on site.

1.5

This application originally sought the erection of 10 flats on the site. Following
both highway and officer comments the scheme has been amended to now
seek the erection of 9 flats on the site. The amendments also include reducing
the building size back down to that which had previously been approved.

1.6

The additional flat over the approved scheme would be contained with the
roofspace of the building. The rest of the roofspace would provide additional
floorspace to two of the first floor flats, which would be rearranged internally to
move one of the bedrooms to within the roof and therefore enlarge the living
space to the flats at first floor. The building would be the same size and form
as that already approved. The number and layout of the parking would be the
same as that approved, albeit without the extra visitor space previously
approved. Visually the main difference to the building is the removal of the
dormer windows and the inclusion of rooflights. Extracts of the application
plans are attached at Appendix 2.

Page 143

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
North Hinksey Parish Council

Neighbour Object (11)

Oxfordshire County Council
Single Response
Thames Water Development
Control
Waste Management Officer

3.0
3.1

Objection
Issue with ownership of access
Parking too dense, impact of parking
movements on site
Overdevelopment of site, lack of amenity
Impact on privacy of properties opposite
Design not in tune with properties opposite.
Lack of primary care infrastructure
Lack of parking
Increased vehicle movements
Noise impact from development on school
Overlooking into school
No objection subject to conditions
No objection

Comments on bin locations

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P18/V0391/DIS Discharge of conditions 3(materials), 4(surface water), 5(Bin & Bike Storage),
6(Tree protection), 7(Landscaping) & 8(Traffic Plan), on P17/V1418/FUL
P17/V1418/FUL - Approved (03/10/2017)
Demolition of an existing two storey house and the creation of a two storey
apartment block to accommodate seven 2 bedroom and one 1 bedroom
apartments. (As amended by plans received 30 June 2017_changes include
bin stores, cycle stores, design amendments) (As clarified by plans received 20
July 2017_bin and cycle store details) (Additional Information received on
ownership of access on 24 July 2017.)
P92/V1090 - Approved (11/03/1993)
New pitched roof over existing garage. 8 Elms Road, Botley, Oxford. BR No.
83/93
P92/V1089 - Approved (17/12/1992)
Two storey extension to east elevation to provide larger hall, utility room and
study.
P80/V1235 - Approved (07/01/1981)
First floor extension to form two bedrooms.
P79/V1383/RM - Approved (21/11/1979)
Erection of a two bedroom bungalow. Site area 0.1 acre.
Plot adjoining no. 8 Elms Road, Botley.
P77/V1188/O - Refused (17/10/1977)

Page 144

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Erection of a bungalow. (Site area 0.027 hectares).
Land adjoining no. 8 Elms Road, Botley. Planning Application History
3.2

Pre-application History
P17/V0518/PEM – (05/04/2017)
Request for further Pre-Application advice for the demolition of an existing two
storey house and the creation of a two storey apartment block to accommodate
seven 2 bedroom and one 1 bedroom apartments.
Advice on design, amenity, bin storage and parking provided.
P16/V2079/PEJ - (21/12/2016)
Demolition and creation of ten new apartments
Advice on design, amenity, bin storage and parking provided. Likely
overdevelopment of plot and design not in keeping

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES

5.2

Design and layout
The building’s scale and design is the same as that approved under the
previous application. Visually the difference from the street would be the
addition of 6 rooflights. The half dormers that were on the rear element have
been replaced by windows and rooflights. Officers consider that these changes
are relatively minor and would not result in a building that looks materially
different to that already approved.

5.3

An additional bin storage area has been incorporated behind the brick piers for
flat 9.

5.4

Residential amenity
The relationship between the building and the neighbour at No 6 would be the
same as in the approved scheme. The number of car parking spaces accessed
from the shared access point is 9, the same as in the approved scheme.

5.5

In terms of the comments from the parish council about overlooking of the
neighbours on the opposite of the road, this was considered as part of the
previous scheme. It was advised that the proposed building is sited so as to
follows good design principles by providing an active frontage and overlooking
to the street. Elms Road is a public road and levels of privacy for front windows
have to be assessed in this context. The proposed building is considered to be
far enough away from neighbours opposite so as not to harm the outlook from
these properties.

5.6

In relation to the comment from Botley Primary School, the position and size of
balconies and windows to the rear is the same as in the approved scheme.

The site area is less than 5ha, fewer than 150 dwellings are proposed and the
site is not in a ‘sensitive area’. The proposal is not therefore, EIA development.

The relevant planning issues are the following:

Page 145

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

This scheme will not differ in impact from that scheme. The additional 4
rooflights would be over 11m away from the boundary with the school, the
other side of which is the school car park.
5.7

In terms of the flats themselves, the additional flat would have a roof terrace
within the roof. The terrace would be enclosed so it would not be seen from
outside the site, but it would provide a small external space for the flat.

5.8

Eight of the flats would be provided with some external space. It is only the 1bedrom flat, already approved, that would not. The site has relatively good
accessibility to facilities in the local area and given it is only a 1-bedroom flat,
officers consider this is acceptable and it is the same as that already approved.

5.9

Traffic, parking and highway safety
The site is within a sustainable and accessible location close to the local
centre. Elms Road is subject to an Oxfordshire County Council traffic regulation
order (TRO) which requires permits for on street parking during the daytime.

5.10

The amended scheme for 9 flats has been reviewed by the highway authority.
The access to the site is the same as that previously approved.

5.11

The proposal has 9 car parking spaces. The same as the previous proposal for
8 flats. The highway officer has stated “Nine car parking spaces will be
provided on site. Given the application site’s ease of access to local bus
services, local facilities, Oxford City Centre and Oxford Railway Station
discussed above the Local Highway Authority are willing to accept nine off
street car parking spaces for residents and visitors.”

5.12

The highway authority do require the applicant to enter into a legal agreement
to secure the costs of removing the development properties from the existing
traffic regulation order for Elms Road, so they cannot apply for resident and
visitor parking permits. The applicant entered into the same agreement last
time and paid the costs upfront. The same legal agreement will need to be
completed with the county council prior to any planning permission being
released.

5.13

The highways officer has requested that a travel information pack condition is
applied to this application. It was not to the previous application. Due to the
location of the site and that, in this application, there is no dedicated on-site
visitor parking proposed, officers consider it is reasonable for future occupants
to be provide with travel information packs detailing alternative means of
transport that are available to them in this highly sustainable location.

5.14

The parish council have also raised the issue of ownership of the access. The
access location will be the same as in the approved scheme. As set out in the
previous officer report, the neighbour at No.6 has a right of access over the
application site and this will not change as a result of this proposal. This was
confirmed and clarified by the agent as part of the approved scheme.

Page 146

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

5.15

In terms of management of construction traffic, given the scale of the proposal
combined with the facts that the site is on a cul-de-sac and has a primary
school adjacent, officers considered it reasonable last time to require details of
construction traffic delivery times to mitigate potential conflict with peak school
times. This condition on the approved scheme has now been discharged. The
delivery times are to be only between 9.30am and 2.30pm. These are the
hours required by the highway authority. These hours can be applied to this
application. Members will be aware that planning conditions cannot be used to
prevent parking on a public highway.

5.16

CIL
This application is liable to pay the CIL levy, approximately £56,000.

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
Sustainable development has three strands – social, economic and
environmental. The site is within a sustainable and highly accessible location.
The proposal would have social benefits in terms of providing additional housing
and economic benefits in terms of construction and investment in the local and
wider economy. There would be a change to the environment however officers
consider that this change would not be significantly harmful to outweigh the
balance. The application is therefore recommended for approval.
The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part1
CP01 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
CP03 - Settlement Hierarchy
CP04 - Meeting Our Housing Needs
CP35 - Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
CP37 - Design and Local Distinctiveness
CP42 - Flood Risk
CP44 - Landscape
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011
DC5 - Access
DC6 - Landscaping
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
Design Guide SPD 2015
Equalities Act 2010
The proposal has been assessed as part of the public sector equality duty under
Section 149 of the Equalities Act, No recognised groups should suffer
discrimination as a result of the proposal.

Author:
Email:
Tel:

Sarah Green
planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk
01235 422600

Page 147

2

1

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

Garden
Flat 3

Flat 3

Entrance
Flats 6, 7
and 8

Entrance
Flats 6, 7
and 8

Bedroom 1
Kitchen

240l bin

Living

Scale 1:100

Street elevation (South-West)

2m HIGH WALL

Flat 2

BRICK PIERS
TO HIDE BINS

Flat 2

BIN
STORAGE

240l bin

Bedroom 2

LOW BRICK WALL
WITH RAILING

Terrace

ing house

BIN
STORAGE

240l bin

Kitchen

Living

240l bin

Flat 1

BRICK PIERS
TO HIDE BINS

Flat 1

Shower

CAR PARK LIGHTING
SURFACE MOUNTED
TO BUILDING

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

SUDS COMPLIANT
VEHICLE SURFACE

140l
food bin

Communal
Bins
Store

Flat 5

BIKES FOR FLAT 1

Flat 5

1100l
recycling
bin

1100l
waste
bin

SITE
ACCESS

3745

New 2m high closed
boarded fence
with planted
screening inbound

Vehicular Access

ACCESS TO
NEIGHBOUR

0

1

3

Bike Store

Bin Store
Plan

Bike Store

Front Elevation

Bin Store

1678

2.5

Scale 1:100

5

1083

Bike Store
Side Elevation

1083

Side Elevation

Bin Store

N O. 6

Proposed Bin and Bike Store

Painted hardwood framed doors

Painted hardwood post

Hinged lid to store

Brick pier

Painted hardwood framed doors
Stainless steel footing for post
1730

EXISTING
PLANTING ON
NEIGHBOURS SIDE

Painted hardwood post

LOW BRICK WALL
WITH RAILING

Bedroom 1

Bathroom

95
0

Scale 1:100

Bedroom 2

Living

Bathroom

Terrace

Balconies above

Outline of exist

garage

6565

Site Plan

Secure
access
to bikes

Flat 3

Living

Bathroom

Outline of existing

ss

Bedroom 1

Flat 4

cov

ena
nte
d

lan
d fo
r ac
ce
Hinged lid to store
Painted hardwood fascia

2m HIGH WALL

COMMUNAL BIKE STORAGE

Garden
Flat 4

BIKE
STORAGE

1175

COMMUNAL BIKE
STORAGE

1205
1175

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

1175
1205

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

1175

Side Elevation

858

10m

4

www.riacharchitects.com

Plan

240l bin

Front Elevation

1092

1494_CP_203

Drawing Number

Planning

Stage

12/05/2017

Date

Scale 1:100

-

Revision

SB

Checked By

Botley Primary School
Car Parking
Entrance

Painted timber post
Painted timber doors

Hinged lid to store

Brick pier

Painted hardwood framed doors
Stainless steel footing for post

Painted hardwood post

Hinged lid to store
Painted hardwood fascia

Brick pier

HW

Drawn By

Scale
1:100 @ A2

Proposed Site Plan and Elevation

Drawing title

8 Elms Road, Botley

Project

Brad Andrews

Client

mail@riacharchitects.com

Tel:01865 553772

Company Number: 8867519
65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.

Proposed Single Bin Store

Rear Elevation

Date
17/07/17

Riach Architects Limited,

Rev
C

Revisions:

Notes:

This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.

1205

Existing wall

1205

New semi mature tree

1175

Page 148

N

Approved scheme

Appendix 1

Scale 1:100

Front elevation

Page 149

Brick

Render

Scale 1:100

Rear elevation

Scale 1:100

Bin store

Side elevation (North)

Flat 3
Entrance
Flats 6, 7
and 8

Brick quoins

Flat 2

Brick

Render

Brick quoins

3
Scale 1:100

Flat 4

Side elevation (South)

Flat 1

0

1

2.5

Flat 5

5

10m

Brick soldier course

Balcony

Painted timber fascia

Brick quoins

Date
30/06/2017

1494_PA_202

SB
Revision

HW

Drawn By

Scale
1:100 @ A2

Drawing Number

Planning

Stage

12.05.2017

Date

Checked By

www.riacharchitects.com

Proposed Elevations

Drawing title

8 Elms Road, Botley

Project

Brad Andrews

Client

mail@riacharchitects.com

Tel:01865 553772

Company Number: 8867519
65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.

Riach Architects Limited,

Rev
A

Revisions:

Notes:

This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Appendix 1

4

2

Brick

Brick quoins

Clay Roof Tile

1

Brick

Balcony

Render

Render

Clay Roof Tile

N

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.

Approved scheme

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.

Approved scheme

Appendix 1

This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Notes:

Revisions:
Rev
A

Date
30/06/2017

Roof Plan

1

Scale 1:100

2m

2m

Bedroom
Bathroom

Living
Kitchen

Bedroom 2
Bathroom

Bathroom
Balcony

Balcony

Flat 8
Flat 6

Flat 5

Flat 7

Kitchen

Living

Kitchen

Kitchen

Living

Balcony
Living

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Bathroom

Bathroom

First Floor Plan

2

Scale 1:100

Flat 4

Bedroom 1
Bathroom

Living

Balconies above

Terrace
Bathroom

Terrace

1100l
waste
bin

Bathroom
Shower

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 2

Living

1100l
recycling
bin

Living

Communal
Bins
Store
140l
food bin

Living

Flat 3

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 1

Kitchen

Kitchen

Bedroom 1

Entrance
Flats 6, 7
and 8

Flat 5
Flat 2

3

Flat 1

Ground Floor Plan
Scale 1:100

Riach Architects Limited,

Company Number: 8867519

65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.
mail@riacharchitects.com

Tel:01865 553772

www.riacharchitects.com

Client

Brad Andrews
Project

8 Elms Road, Botley
Drawing title

N

Proposed Plans

0

1

2.5

5

10m

Date

12/05/2017

Page 150

Scale
1:100 @ A1

Stage

Drawn By

Checked By

Planning

HW

SB

Drawing Number

Revision

1494_PA_201

-

Page 151

2

1

2m HIGH WALL

2m HIGH WALL

BROXAP CARDIFF
BIKE SHELTER ABOVE

Scale 1:100

400

Garden
Flat 3

Suds compliant
drainage surface

Garden
Flat 4

Street elevation (South-West)

Scale 1:100

Proposed Site Plan

Root protection areas remain outside the
site so do not constrain any construction
methods
New boarded fence installed prior to works

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

New photinia hedge
1.5 m high
750 mm centres

Bins for Flat 3

240l

240l

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

Flat 3

LOW BRICK WALL
WITH RAILING

BIKE
STORAGE

COMMUNAL BIKE
STORAGE

BRICK PIERS TO
HIDE BINS

240l

Entrance Flats 6,
7,8 and 9

Bin store for Flat 9

240l

50X50 MM TREATED POST SIT ON
TOP OF STEEL FOOTING

1094

150X15 MM PAINTED HARDWOOD
CLADDING

95
0

Flat 2

240l

BRICK PIERS TO
HIDE BINS

Suds compliant
access surface

Bins for Flat 2

240l

Balconies above

6565
Bins for Flat 1

240l

Flat 1

BRICK PIERS TO
HIDE BINS

240l

CAR PARK LIGHTING
SURFACE MOUNTED
TO BUILDING

SUDS COMPLIANT
VEHICLE SURFACE

Suds compliant
drainage surface

Flat 5

BIKES FOR FLAT 1

1100l bin

Communal bin store for
Flats 4,5,6,7 and 8

1100l bin

SITE
ACCESS

3745

New 2m high closed
boarded fence
with planted
screening inbound

nte
ena

Suds compliant
drainage area

Vehicular Access

cov

ss
cce
for
a
d la
nd

ACCESS TO
NEIGHBOUR

EXISTING
PLANTING ON
NEIGHBOURS SIDE

New photinia hedge
1.5 m high
750 mm centres

858

1175

Side Elevation

4

N O. 6

Plan

240l bin

Front Elevation

1092

6 Elms Road

Scale 1:100

www.riacharchitects.com

Painted timber post
Painted timber doors

Hinged lid to store

Brick pier

Painted hardwood framed doors
Stainless steel footing for post

Painted hardwood post

Hinged lid to store
Painted hardwood fascia

Brick pier

F

1494_PA2_203

SB
Revision

HW

Planning

Checked By

Drawing Number

Drawn By

1:100 @ A2

March 2018
Stage

Scale

Date

Proposed Site Plan and Elevation

Drawing title

8 Elms Road, Botley

Project

Brad Andrews

Client

mail@riacharchitects.com

Tel:01865 553772

Company Number: 8867519
65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.

Riach Architects Limited,

Notes:

This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.

Proposed Street fronting Bin Store

Rear Elevation

1175

New 2m high closed
boarded fence

1205

Existing wall

1205

Silver birch planted at end of project after
the heavy construction has stopped. No
materials no be stored under the canopy
after planting

Appendix 2

Page 152

2

4

Brick

Render

Brick

Brick quoins

Clay Roof Tile

1

Flat 3

Scale 1:100

Rear elevation

Bin store

Scale 1:100

Side elevation (North)

Scale 1:100

Front elevation

Brick

Balcony

Render

Render

Clay Roof Tile

Entrance
Flats 6, 7
and 8

Brick quoins

Flat 2

Flat 4

Brick

Render

Brick quoins

3
Scale 1:100

Side elevation (South)

Flat 1
Flat 5

Scale 1:100

0

2.5

Appendix 2

5

Tel:01865 553772

1494_PA2_202

SB

Checked By

Revision

HW

Drawn By

Scale
1:100 @ A2

www.riacharchitects.com

Drawing Number

Planning

Stage

Feb 2018

Date

Proposed Elevations

Drawing title

8 Elms Road, Botley

Project

Brad Andrews

Client

mail@riacharchitects.com

10m

Company Number: 8867519

7.5

65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.

Riach Architects Limited,

Notes:

This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.

Do not scale from this drawing. All dimensions are approximate and
should be checked on site prior to construction.
All discrepancies must be reported to the Architect for verification prior to
commencement of the affected works.
This drawing is Copyright protected and must not to be reproduced
or used without prior written permission

Notes:

Appendix 2
Roof terrace
Below

Roof Plan

1

Scale 1:100

Kitchen
Roof terrace

Living

Shower
room
CUPD

CUPD

En-suite

Bedroom
Bedroom

Bedroom

Bedroom

En-suite

En-suite

Second Floor Plan

2

Scale 1:100

Bathroom

Bedroom
Living

Kitchen

Flat 8
Flat 9

Bathroom

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

Balcony

Balcony

Kitchen

Kitchen

Kitchen

Flat 6

Flat 5

Flat 7
Balcony
Living

Bedroom 1

Living

Bedroom 2

Bathroom

Bathroom
Bedroom 1

Bedroom 1

Living

First Floor Plan

3

Scale 1:100

Flat 4

Bedroom 1
Bathroom

Living

Kitchen
Balconies above

Terrace
Bathroom

Terrace

660l
waste
bin

Bathroom

Kitchen

Shower

Bedroom 2

Communal
Bins
Store

Bedroom 2
Living

Living
660l
recycling
bin

Living

140l
food bin

Flat 3

Bedroom 2

Bedroom 1

Bedroom 1

Kitchen

Bedroom 1

Kitchen

Entrance
Flats 6, 7, 8
and 9

Flat 5
Flat 2

4

Flat 1

Riach Architects Limited,

Ground Floor Plan

Company Number: 8867519

65 Banbury Rd, Oxford, OX2 6PE.

Scale 1:100

mail@riacharchitects.com

Tel:01865 553772

www.riacharchitects.com

Client

Brad Andrews
Project
0

2.5

5

7.5

10m

8 Elms Road, Botley
Scale 1:100

Drawing title

Proposed Plans
Date

Mar 2018

Page 153

Scale
1:100 @ A1

Stage

Drawn By

Checked By

Planning

HW

SB

Drawing Number

Revision

1494_PA2_201

-

Agenda Item 12
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0447/FUL
7 Rimes Close, Kingston Bagpuize, Abingdon,
OX13 5AL
KINGSTON BAGPUIZE
Proposed erection of a new 2 bed dwelling
adjacent existing dwelling (amended car parking
plan received 19 April 2018).
Eric Batts
Mr & Mrs P Brown
Andy Heron

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is granted, subject to the
following conditions:
Standard
1. Time limit - full application.
2. Approved plans.
Prior to commencement
3. Boundary walls and fences.
4. Sustainable drainage scheme.
5. Tree protection.
Prior to occupation
6. Car parking.
Compliance
7. Materials as specified.
8. Permitted development restriction on extensions and outbuildings.
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

The site is situated to the east of a large detached dwelling which is within a
1970’s residential estate in Kingston Bagpuize. Kingston Bagpuize is a larger
village within the Abingdon-Oxford Fringe Sub-Area. A site location plan is
provided below:

This application is referred to planning committee following a call-in request
from one of the local members, Councillor Eric Batts. Councillor Batts has
raised concerns with the impact of development on the nearby lime trees that
are protected by a tree preservation order (TPO). Councillor Batts also
considers the development would harm the character and appearance of the
conservation area to the south.

Page 154

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

1.3

The site currently consists of residential garden land. A detached flat-roof
double garage is located to the north-eastern area. Mature, TPO (tree
preservation order) listed lime trees are situated to the eastern boundary. The
surrounding street-scene is characterised by large, detached pitched roof
dwellings set within spacious plots.

1.4

The application follows a previous application (P17/V2831/FUL) for a larger
three bedroom house that was refused on 20th December 2017. This current
application seeks to address the previous concerns with regard to the
overbearing impact on the character and appearance of the area.

1.5

Planning permission is now sought for the erection of a new 2 bed detached
dwelling adjacent to the east of 7 Rimes Close. The proposal would involve
the demolition of the existing garage. The development is proposed to
resemble the original dwelling with an interlocking concrete tiled pitched roof.
The building will measure 9.51 metres by 6.05 metres with a maximum height
of 6.85 metres. The dwelling would be in-line with the building line and height
of 7 Rimes Close.

1.6

The dwelling would be constructed of brick to match the neighbouring
dwellings, it is also proposed to be finished with Redland slate grey tile
hanging on the ground and first floor north and south elevations. Vehicle
access will be to the north-west via Rimes Close. On-site car parking spaces
will be available for two vehicles at the proposed dwelling, with a further two
spaces at no. 7. Extracts from the application plans are attached at Appendix
1.

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received is set out overleaf. Comments made can
be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.

Page 155

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Kingston Pagpuize Parish
Council

Object.

Oxfordshire County Council
– Highways liaison officer

No objection, subject to condition.

Drainage officer

No objection, subject to condition.

Countryside officer

No objection.

Environmental protection
team

No objection.

Waste management officer

No objection.

Forestry officer

No objection, subject to condition.
I welcome the revised position of the parking
spaces, the benefit is
twofold; it avoids pressure for a pruning
solution to address debris falling on cars and
the existing roots will not be compromised
by works associated with the construction of
the parking spaces.
One of the parking areas slightly breaches
the root protection area (RPA) of the
northern most Lime but, as this is where the
existing garage is constructed, the
compacted ground will already act as a
constraint for root development. The
consequences, therefore, of breaching the
RPA at this point will not have a significant
impact on the future health or development
of the mature Lime.

Archeaology Team –
Oxfordshire County Council
Neighbours – 3 letters of
objection received. The
grounds for objection concern
can be summarised as:

No objection.

-

Page 156

Impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.
Inadequate car parking.
Impact on TPO listed trees.
Impact on neighbouring amenity.
Access implications.
Damage to private road during
construction.
Impact on wildlife.
Drainage implications.
Noise during construction.

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

3.0

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P17/V2831/FUL - Refused (20/12/2017)
Proposed erection of a new 3 bedroom house adjacent existing dwelling.

3.1

Pre-application History
P17/V1546/PEO - Other Outcome (09/06/2017)
Demolition of existing detached double garage, to enlarge plot area to the side
of existing property to enable potential building plot.
1st part-advice from VWHDC Tree officer Tim Stringer
**SITE MEETING ONLY**

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES
Principle of development

The application has been considered under the provisions of the Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. The
scale of the proposal is below relevant thresholds and the locality has no
recognised specific environmental sensitivity. Therefore, an Environmental
Statement is not required.

The settlement hierarchy set out in Core Policy 3 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1
identifies Kingston Bagpuize as a larger village within the Abingdon-Oxford
Fringe sub-area. Larger villages are defined as settlements with a more limited
range of employment, services and facilities. Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan
2031 Part 1 states that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable
development within the existing built area of market towns, local service
centres and larger villages.
The NPPF is clear that local planning authorities should look to significantly
boost the supply of housing in line with the principles of sustainable
development. Core Policy 4 of the Local Plan 2031 Part 1 sets out the
Council’s approach to delivering new homes and retaining the housing stock.
New homes will be located in accordance with the settlement hierarchy outlined
in Core Policy CP3.
The development is located in the settlement of Kingston Bagpuize within an
area that benefits from a range of services. It would provide an additional
dwelling unit in the Vale, meeting the Council’s requirement for the delivery of
new homes.
In view of the above the principle of development is therefore acceptable
providing it accords with other relevant development plan policies.
5.2

Design and layout
The NPPF is clear that good design is indivisible from good planning, it
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Visual

Page 157

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

appearance and the architecture of individual buildings are very important
factors, securing high quality and inclusive design goes beyond aesthetic
considerations. Permission should be refused for development of poor design
that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character and
quality of an area and the way it functions.
Core Policy 37 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that
new development must demonstrate high quality and sustainable design that
relates not only to the appearance of a development, but the way in which it
functions.
The surrounding area is characterised by relatively large 1970’s detached
dwellings set within spacious plots. The neighbouring dwellings are constructed
of brick and have a generally uniform scale and appearance with pitched tiled
roofs and main roof spans in the order of 7 – 8 metres.
Rimes Close is characterised by large dwellings set within spacious plots. The
proposed dwelling would have a 133.79 square metre rear garden that is much
smaller than neighbouring dwellings. This is considered acceptable as the
garden would be above the 50 square metre size for a 2 bed dwelling as
recommended by the Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD. Furthermore, a
similar 2 bed dwelling was recently approved on a key corner plot at 11 Rimes
Close with a 109.2 square metre rear garden.
The design and overall appearance of the building will fit with the general scale
and features of the surrounding area. The building is proposed to be built
approximately 0.2 metres below the height of no. 7. It would also be set in-line
with no.7’s building line. The design is intended to replicate that of the
surrounding neighbouring dwellings. These properties have a pitched roof
design with a slate grey finish on the front elevation. They are also
characterised by on-site car parking to the front of the dwelling. The proposed
property will provide adequate amenity space, parking and privacy for the
future occupants.
In view of the above the design and appearance of the proposed development
is in compliance with the advice contained within the NPPF, and Core Policy 37
of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1.
5.3

Residential amenity
Core Policy 37 of the Vale Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DC9 of the Vale of White
Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White
Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 2 are of importance with regard to the potential
impact upon neighbouring amenity. Policy DC9 states that development will not
be permitted if it would unacceptably harm the amenities of neighbouring
properties and the wider environment.
The impact upon neighbouring amenity will be minimal as the extensions will
be sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. It is therefore
considered that the criteria contained within Core Policy 37 of the Local Plan
2031 Part 1 and DC9 of the Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies will be adhered to.

Page 158

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

Overbearing impact
The proposed dwelling will be set below the height of 7 Rimes Close and will
not extend beyond the neighbouring building line. Larger properties are
situated within the surrounding area. The size and layout of the development
would not create an overbearing impact in this instance.
Noise
The property would be adequately distanced away from neighbouring
properties. If members feel it is necessary a condition to restrict the hours of
construction could prevent noise emissions to neighbouring occupants at
unsociable hours.
Overall the impact upon neighbouring amenity will be acceptable as the
building will be sufficiently distanced away from neighbouring dwellings. It is
therefore considered that the criterion contained within Core Policy 37 of the
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, DC9 of the Vale of White Horse
Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, and DP23 of the Draft Vale of White Horse
Local Plan 2031 Part 2 will be adhered to.
5.4

Visual impact
The proposed development is situated in an urban area which is characterised
by large dwellings of similar design and appearance. The development has
been designed to reflect the surrounding neighbouring dwellings in terms of
scale and appearance.
In view of the above the proposed development would be in accordance with
the character and appearance of the area and is in compliance with Core
Policy 44 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.5

Flood risk and drainage
The site is not situated in flood zones 2 or 3. Therefore fluvial flooding is
unlikely to occur at the site. The drainage officer has raised no objection,
subject to a sustainable drainage condition to ensure the effective drainage of
the site.

5.6

Traffic, parking and highway safety
The NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in
facilitating sustainable development. It states that transport assessments must;
ensure safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved for all people, and
improvements can be undertaken within the transport network that cost
effectively limits the significant impacts of the development. It further states
that, development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds
where the residual cumulative impacts of development are severe.
Plans should protect and exploit opportunities for the use of sustainable
transport modes for the movement of goods or people. Therefore,
developments should be located and designed where practical to
accommodate the efficient delivery of goods and supplies, and give priority to
pedestrian and cycle movements. Proposed development must have access to

Page 159

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

high quality public transport facilities, create safe and secure layouts which
minimise conflicts between traffic and cyclists or pedestrians, and avoid street
clutter.
Oxfordshire County Council as highway authority have reviewed the proposed
plans and raise no objections. Adequate car parking and access is available for
the existing and proposed dwellings. It is therefore considered that the
proposed development will comply with the criteria contained within Policy DC5
of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, Policy CP35 of the
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, and the NPPF.
5.7

Impact on TPO listed trees
Policy DC6 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan Saved Policies 2011 states
that proposals for development must protect and enhance the visual amenities
of the site and its surroundings including existing important landscape features.
Policy CP44 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 seeks to protect
the key features that contribute to the nature and quality of the districts
landscape from harmful development.
The Council’s tree officer has confirmed that the dwelling has been sited to
minimise the impact on the root protection areas of the TPO listed lime trees to
the east. Furthermore, the proposed car parking spaces for the original and
proposed dwelling would protect the trees by avoiding pressure for a pruning
solution to address debris falling on cars.
The tree officer considers the proposed development would protect the TPO
listed trees subject to a tree protection condition. It is therefore considered that
the development accords with Policy DC6 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan Saved Policies 2011, and Policy CP44 of the Vale of White Horse Local
Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.8

Impact on nearby conservation area
Councillor Batts has raised concerns that the development would harm the
character and appearance of the conservation area to the south. The
conservation area is situated approximately 68 metres to the south. Rimes
House is the nearest listed building distanced 18.6 metres away. Officers
consider the application is sufficiently distanced not to create a harmful impact
on the character and appearance of the nearby conservation area and grade II
listed building.
Core Policy 39 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 seeks to
protect the historic environment. It requires development to conserve, and
where possible enhance designated heritage assets and non-designated
heritage assets and their setting. Policy HE1 of the Local Plan 2011 Saved
Policies and DP37 of the draft Local Plan 2031 Part 2 states that proposals for
development within or affecting the setting of a conservation area will not be
permitted unless they can be shown to preserve or enhance the established
character of the area.

Page 160

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

The overall, footprint, mass and scale of the proposed dwelling is considerably
less than neighbouring properties. The development has been designed to fit
with the general scale and features of the surrounding area.
The development will preserve the character and appearance of the
surrounding conservation area, and the setting of the grade II listed Rimes
House. In view of the above the proposed development is in compliance with
Policies HE1 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies, Core
Policy 39 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1, and Policy DP37
of the Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2.
5.9

Impact on local wildlife
Local concerns have been raised with regards to the impact of the
development on local wildlife. The site is not a designated wildlife area. The
Council’s ecologist has reviewed the application and confirmed that there
would be no harmful impact on protected species or their habitat. The proposed
development is in compliance with Core Policy 46 of the Vale of White Horse
Local Plan 2031 Part 1.

5.10

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Policy CP7 of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031, Part 1 states that the
Council will work with infrastructure providers and stakeholders to identify
requirements for infrastructure provision and services for new development and
will seek to co-ordinate infrastructure delivery. The Council has implemented its
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as from 1st November 2017. Planning
applications which are decided after 1st November 2017 may be liable to pay
the levy.
The proposed new build in terms of the gross internal floor space area (GIA) as
defined by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) is 57m2. Under
the Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule adopted by Vale of
White Horse Council and the government Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations, new dwellings and new residential development of 100m2 or more
will be liable to pay the Community Infrastructure Levy. In this instance the site
is within zone 1 under which the chargeable rate is £131.33 per m2.
As such this application is CIL Liable.

5.11

Sustainable development
When considering development proposals, the Council is required to take a
positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable
development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework.
The National Planning Policy Framework places a strong emphasis on
sustainable development. All planning applications must result in sustainable
development with consideration being given to economic, social and
environmental sustainability aspects of the proposal. The proposed dwelling
would have a minimal impact upon the local services which operate in Kingston
Bagpuize. The environmental considerations have been assessed in terms of
design and the impact on the character and appearance of the area, and for

Page 161

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

the reasons given above are considered acceptable. Social considerations
overlap those of environmental in terms of amenity. As these have been found
acceptable the development is considered to constitute sustainable
development.
6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
The proposal will not unduly harm the character and appearance of the
surrounding area, nor impact upon neighbouring amenity and highway safety. It
is recommended that the application be approved.
This decision has been considered using the relevant policies related to the
proposal. These are listed below.
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
the determination of any planning application must be made in accordance with
the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The
statutory Development Plan comprises;
The Local Plan 2031 Part 1
The Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
The Oxfordshire Minerals and Waste Local Plan 2031
Neighbourhood Plans for; Drayton, Coxwell, Blewbury, Faringdon, Great
Coxwell, and Longworth.
Other material considerations include government guidance, in particular:
The National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012) (NPPF)
The National Planning Policy Guidance (March 2014) (NPPG)
Vale of White Horse Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) (March 2015)
Vale of White Horse Updated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP)
(December 2016)
Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and
Additional Sites
Other Relevant Legislation
Human Rights Act 1998
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into
account in the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.
Equality Act 2010
In determining this planning application the Council has regard to its
equalities obligations including its obligations under Section 149 of the Equality
Act 2010.
The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies which are relevant to
the proposed development consist of:
CP01
CP03
CP04
CP07

-

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Settlement Hierarchy
Meeting Our Housing Needs
Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services

Page 162

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

CP08
Area
CP33
CP35
CP37
CP46

- Spatial Strategy for Abingdon-on-Thames and Oxford Fringe Sub-

Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
Design and Local Distinctiveness
Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

The Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies which are relevant to
the proposed development consist of:
DC5
DC6
DC7
DC9

-

Access
Landscaping
Waste Collection and Recycling
The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses

The Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and Additional Sites
complements the Part 1 plan and sets out policies and locations for housing for
the Vale's proportion of Oxford's housing need up to 2031, which cannot be
met within the City boundaries. It contains policies for the part of Didcot
Garden Town that lies within the Vale of White Horse District, and detailed
development management policies to complement the Local Plan 2031 Part 1,
which replace the saved policies of the Local Plan 2011. It also allocates
additional development sites for housing.
Paragraph 216 of the NPPF states that decision-takers may give weight
(unless material considerations indicate otherwise) to relevant policies in
emerging plans according to:
•
The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);
•
The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies
(the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may
be given); and
•
The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan
to the policies in the Framework (the closer the policies in the emerging plan to
the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).
The Vale of White Horse District Council submitted the Local Plan 2031 Part 2:
Detailed Policies and Additional Sites to the Secretary of State on Friday 23
February 2018 for independent examination. The examination will be held
shortly.
Overall, taking into account the current stage of preparation, the emerging
Local Plan 2031, Part 2 now attracts limited weight.
The Draft Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2: Detailed Policies and
Additional Sites policies which are relevant to the proposed development
consist of:
CP4a – Meeting our housing needs
DP2 – Space standards

Page 163

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 30 May 2018

DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of development on amenity
DP28 – Waste collection and recycling
DP37 – Conservation areas

Case officer – Andy Heron
Email – andy.heron@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone – 01235 422600

Page 164

Appendix 1

Page 165

N EIL
A R M STR O N G
A R CH I TE C TUR A L

SER V I C ES

Page 166

N EIL
A R M STR O N G
AR C H I TE C TUR A L

SERV I CES

Page 167

N EIL
A R M STR O N G
AR CH I TE C TUR A L

SERV I CES

